
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 5 July 2011 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Room M71, Seventh Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 

Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 

Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Ann Jackson  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Rachael 
Saunders  

 

  
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Fozol Miah 
Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Amy Whitelock 
Councillor Zenith Rahman 
Councillor Helal Uddin 
 

Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor Harun Miah, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Fozol 
Miah) 
Councillor Judith Gardiner, (Designated 
Deputy representing Sirajul Islam, Ann 
Jackson, Rachael Saunders, Zenith 
Rahman, Helal Uddin and Amy Whitelock 
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer, 
(Designated Deputy representing Ann 
Jackson, Sirajul Islam, Zenith Rahman, 
Helal Uddin and Amy Whitelock) 
Councillor Bill Turner, (Designated Deputy 
representing Ann Jackson, Sirajul Islam, 
Zenith Rahman, Helal Uddin and Amy 
Whitelock) 
 



 
 
 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]. 

 

Co-opted Members:  
  
1 Vacancy – (Parent Governor Representative) 
Mr Mushfique Uddin – (Muslim Community Representative) 
Vacancy – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Canon Michael Ainsworth – (Church of England Diocese Representative) 
Jake Kemp – (Parent Govenor Representative) 
Rev James Olanipekun – (Parent Governor Representative) 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Amanda Thompson, Democratic Services, 
 
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: amanda.thompson@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 5 July 2011 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 10  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 7 June 2011. 
 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

5 .1 Report 'Called In' - East End Life Review   
 

11 - 76  

6. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT  
 

  

 Councillor Alibor Choudhury, Cabinet Member for 
Resources, will attend with Mr Chris Naylor, Corporate 
Director Resources, to report on the work of the Resources 
Directorate. 
 

  

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 

  

7 .1 Strategic Performance and Corporate Revenue and 
Capital Budget Monitoring - Year End 2010/11   

 

77 - 234  

7 .2 Cabinet Four Month Forward Plan   
 

235 - 302  



 
 
 
 

7 .3 Annual Residents' Survey Results 2010/11   
 

303 - 322  

8. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

9. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

  
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 

 
  

 

11. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section Two reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 8th June 2010. 
 
 

  

12. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO 
(RESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

13. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

 

  

 
 



1 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\3\AI00030308\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\3\AI00030308\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 

• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 

 
(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 

by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 

• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 
involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 

• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 
which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT TIME NOT SPECIFIED ON TUESDAY, 7 JUNE 2011 
 

ROOM M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair) 
  
 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Rachael Saunders 
Councillor Sirajul Islam 
Councillor Amy Whitelock 
Councillor Zenith Rahman 
Councillor Helal Uddin 
 
  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Mr Mushfique Uddin – (Muslim Community Representative) 
Canon Michael Ainsworth – (Church of England Diocese Representative) 
Jake Kemp – (Parent Govenor Representative) 
Rev James Olanipekun – (Parent Governor Representative) 

 
 

Officers Present: 
 
Afazul Hoque – (Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
David Galpin – (Head of Legal Services (Community), Legal 

Services, Chief Executive's) 
Michael Keating – (Service Head, One Tower Hamlets) 
Kevin Kewin – (Service Manager, Strategy Policy & Performance, 

One Tower Hamlets, Chief Executive's) 
Ruth Dowden – (Complaints Manager) 
Tony Finnegan – (Acting Head of Media, Communications, Chief 

Executive's) 
Sarah Barr – (Senior Strategy Policy and Performance Officer, 

Strategy Policy and Performance, Chief 
Executive's) 

Chris Saunders – (Political Advisor to the Labour Group, Chief 
Executive's) 

Amanda Thompson – (Team Leader - Democratic Services) 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

 
1. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010-2011  

 
COUNCILLOR ANNE JACKSON IN THE CHAIR 

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for the new Municipal Year.   
 
Councillor Zenith Rahman MOVED that Councillor Rachael Saunders be 
elected Vice-Chair and the Committee 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Rachael Saunders be elected Vice-Chair of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2011/2012. 
 
 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Stephanie Eaton and 
Fozal Miah. 
 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair Moved and it was:- 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 10 May 2011 be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record subject to the inclusion of apologies received from Canon 
Michael Ainsworth. 
 
 
 

5. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

 
There were no Section One reports called in from the meeting of Cabinet held 
on 11 May 2011. 
 
 

7. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
 
 

7.1 Overview & Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference, Membership, 
Quorum, Dates of meetings, Protocols and Guidance  
 
Miss Amanda Thompson, Democratic Services, introduced the report detailing 
the Committee’s Terms of Reference, Membership, Quorum and meeting 
dates for the 2011/2012 Municipal Year.  
 
The report also set out protocols and guidance to facilitate the conduct of the 
Committee’s business and meet its statutory and constitutional requirements. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Terms of Reference, 
Membership, Quorum and meeting dates be noted, and that the protocols and 
guidance be adopted. 
 
 

7.2 Appointment of Scrutiny Lead Members, Co-options to Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Health Scrutiny Panel Terms of Reference and 
Appointments  
 
Miss Amanda Thompson introduced the report and advised the Committee of 
the changes to Scrutiny Lead portfolios based on the Council’s Directorates, 
and the need to appoint Members to these. 
 
The Committee was also requested to agree the co-option of representatives 
in respect of education matters and also the Tower Hamlets Local 
Involvement Network in accordance with statutory requirements and the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 
The report further advised of the establishment of the Health Scrutiny Panel 
by full Council, and the need to make appointments to this Panel and appoint 
a Chair. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. That the Scrutiny Lead Portfolios based on the Council’s Directorates 

Plan be agreed and the following Scrutiny Lead Members be 
appointed:- 

 
 Communities, Localities and Culture – Councillor Zenith Rahman 
 Children’s Services – Councillor Amy Whitelock 

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

 Resources – Councillor Sirajul Islam 
 Development and Renewal – Councillor Helal Uddin 
 Chief Executives – Councillor Tim Archer 
 Adults, Health and Wellbeing – Councillor Rachael Saunders 
 
2. That the co-option of representatives in respect of education matters as 

detailed in the report be agreed, including Ms Memory Kampiyawo who 
had recently been nominated for appointment; 

 
3. That the establishment of the Health Scrutiny Panel and the 

appointment of Members thereto as detailed below be noted;  
 

Councillor Rachael Saunders (Chair) 
Councillor Abdul Asad 
Councillor David Edgar 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Doctor Emma Jones 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
 

4. That the co-option of Dr Amjad Rahi and David Burbridge from the 
Tower Hamlets Local Involvement Network to the membership of the 
Health Scrutiny Panel be agreed. 

 
 
 
 

8. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ISSUES  
 
 

8.1 Tower Hamlets Community Plan Refresh 2011  
 
Kevin Kewin, Service Manager, Strategy, Policy and Performance, introduced 
the report which included the final version of the Borough’s Community Plan 
which had been informed by assessments of needs in the Borough and 
through consultation with local residents, organisations and partners. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 
 

9.1 Corporate Complaints and Social Care Complaints Annual Report 2010 - 
2011  
 
Ruth Dowden, Corporate Complaints Manager, introduced the report detailing 
a summary of the complaints received by the Council for the period 1 April 
2010 to 31 March 2011 through the Corporate Complaints Procedure, 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

Children’s Social Care and Adults Social Care Complaints Procedures and 
those received and determined by the Local Government Ombudsman in the 
same period.  
 
The Committee noted the following key matters: 

 

• Under the Corporate Complaints procedure there had been significant 
improvements in response times at each of the three stages. 

 

• The statutory Adults Social Care Complaints procedure placed 
considerable focus on early resolution and community outreach, as 
well as putting the complainant at the heart of the process. 

 

• Children’s Social Care Complaints continued to be dealt with under the 
three stage statutory process. 

 

• The Local Government Ombudsman had in previous years commented 
positively in the Annual Letter to the Council about the focus on local 
resolution, and prompt responses. The 2010/11 Annual Letter had not 
yet been received and would therefore be presented with the half year 
update report in October 2011. 

 

• The Complaints Service had been accredited with the Customer 
Service Excellence Award for the third year running. 

 
In response to questions Ms Dowden advised that the number of complaints 
for the Chief Executive’s Directorate was high because these also included 
requests and refusals under the for Freedom of Information Act which were 
automatically included. 
 
She further advised that the relevant Cabinet portfolio holder received reports 
quarterly and these could also be provided to Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee if required although not necessarily as part of the meeting 
agenda. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
  
 

10. SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT  
 
 

10.1 Report of the Scrutiny Working Group - Supporting new Communities  
 
Councillor Ahmed Omer, who had been the Chair of the Supporting New 
Communities Working Group, introduced the report and recommendations of 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

the review which had used the Somali Community as a case study and 
examined three key areas: 
 

• Identify methods of increasing access to service provisions for new 
communities 

 

• Increase the voice and representation of new communities, particular in 
community leadership positions 

 

• Examine how the Partnership can continue to meet the needs of new 
communities considering a  period of efficiency savings 

 
The Chair moved and it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(1) That the report be agreed. 

 
(2) That the Service Head for One Tower Hamlets be authorised to amend 

the draft report before submission to Cabinet, after consultation with 
the former Scrutiny Lead for One Tower Hamlets. 

 
 

10.2 Report of the Scrutiny Working Group - Empowering Small and Medium 
Size Enterprises  
 
Councillor Rachael Saunders, who had been the Chair of the Empowering 
Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SME) Working Group, introduced the 
report and recommendations of the review which aimed to examine what 
support local SMEs received and make recommendations to enable them to 
flourish in the Borough. 
 
The Chair moved and it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(3) That the report be agreed. 

 
(4) That the Service Head for One Tower Hamlets be authorised to amend 

the draft report before submission to Cabinet, after consultation with 
the former Scrutiny Lead for A Prosperous Community. 

 
 
 
 

11. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
CABINET PAPERS  
 
There were no pre-decision scrutiny questions received. 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
07/06/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

 
12. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) BUSINESS WHICH THE 

CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Ann Jackson 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee: 

 
OVERVIEW 
AND 
SCRUTINY 
 

Date: 

 
5 July 2011 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda Item 
No. 
 

5.1 

Report of: 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Originating Officer(s):  
Alan Ingram  
Democratic Services Officer 

Title: Cabinet Decision Called-in: 
 
East End Life Review 
 
Wards: All 
 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 

1.1 The attached report of the Corporate Director, Community, Localities and Culture 
was considered by the Cabinet on 8 June 2011 and has been “Called In” by 
Councillors Zara Davis, Craig Aston, Dr Emma Jones, Peter Golds, David Snowdon 
and Gloria Thienel for further consideration.  This is in accordance with the 
provisions of Part Four of the Council’s Constitution. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee consider the contents of the attached report, review the 

Cabinet’s provisional decisions arising and decide whether to accept them or refer 
the matter back to Cabinet with proposals, together with reasons. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 
 and address where open to inspection 

Cabinet report  - 8 June 2011 Alan Ingram 
 02073640842

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 11



 

 

3. THE CABINET’S PROVISIONAL DECISION 
 

3.1 The Cabinet after considering the attached report provisionally agreed:- 

1. That a weekly publication of East End Life, reduced in size and cost as 
set out in Option 1 of the Review attached to the report (CAB 006/112), 
be adopted.   

 
     Option 1 will include:- 

 
(a) The implementation of the £200,000 budget reduction agreed by 

council on 8th March 2011. 
 

(b) The adoption of the revised editorial and advertising policies 
attached to the review document.   

 
(c) A redesign of East End Life to further differentiate it from 

commercial papers. 
 

(d) That by September 2011 East End Life will have a Pagesuite 
version available to encourage online usage.   

 
(e) That promotion of online access to information (including via My. 

Tower Hamlets) and monitoring of progress so that when the 
majority of East End Life readers access material online, the 
publication’s print-run can be reduced. 

 
       (f) The proposed change of the existing advertising strategy. 

 
2 That adherence to the Code of Recommended Practice on Local 

Authority Publicity shall be made a cornerstone of the editorial policy.   
 

 
4.  REASON FOR THE ‘CALL IN’ 

 
4.1 The Call-in requisition signed by the five Councillors listed above gives the 

following reason for the Call-in: 
 
 ‘Contravenes Government Guidelines as approved in Parliament 2011’ 
 

 
5. ALTERNATIVE COURSE OF ACTION PROPOSED: 

 
5.1 The Councillors submitting the Call-in requisition have proposed the 

following alternative course of action: 
  
 ‘Cease Publication 
 Properly investigate alternative methods of advertising and information’ 
 

  

Page 12



 

 

6.       CONSIDERATION OF THE “CALL IN” 
 

6.1  The following procedure is to be followed for consideration of the “Call In”: 
 

(a) Presentation of the “Call In” by one of the “Call In” Members 
followed by questions. 

(b) Response from the Lead Member/officers followed by questions. 
(c) General debate followed by decision. 

 
N.B. – In accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Protocols and Guidance adopted by the Committee at its meeting on 
5 June, 2007, any Member(s) who presents the “Call In” is not eligible 
to participate in the general debate. 
 

6.2 It is open to the Committee to either resolve to take no action which would 
have the effect of endorsing the original Cabinet decisions, or the 
Committee could refer the matter back to the Cabinet for further 
consideration setting out the nature of its concerns and possibly 
recommending an alternative course of action. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\6\3\AI00030369\51a1EELErratum0806110.doc 

1 

CABINET 8TH JUNE 2011 
Agenda Item 10.2 East End Life Review 

Erratum 
 
 
The following information has been identified as requiring correction within the 
East End Life Report:- 
 
Comments of the Chief Financial Officer - Paragraph 7.3 – Current Table to 
be replaced with the table below. 
 
 
7.3  The estimated costs to the council associated with the five options are 

described in paragraphs 13.1 to 13.5 of the detailed review.  The cost 
to the council in pursuing each option is presented below.   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

  

Committee/Meeting: 

 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 

 
8 June 2011 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
CAB 005/112 

Report of:  

 
Assistant Chief Executive Legal Services 
Isabella Freeman 
 
Originating officer(s) Takki Sulaiman – 
Service Head Communications 

Title:  

 
East End Life Review 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Mayor Lutfur Rahman 

Community Plan Theme 
  

A Great Place to Live 
A Prosperous Community 
A Safe and Cohesive Community 
A Healthy and Supportive Community 
One Tower Hamlets 

Strategic Priority 
 

Promotion of all strategic priorities as required but 
specifically:- 
Supporting residents through welfare reform 
Fostering enterprise and entrepreneurship 
Reducing fear of crime 
Fostering greater community cohesion 
Helping people to live healthier lives   

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 At a meeting of the Council’s Cabinet on 12th January 2011, Mayor Lutfur 

Rahman asked officers to conduct a review into the future of East End Life 
This report presents the findings of the review and makes recommendations 
for action.  

1.2 The review terms of reference, which were published on 31st January 2011, 
requested that the implications of the then draft Code of Recommended 
Practice on Local Authority Practice be explored.  Additionally the review was 
asked to examine the purpose, performance and role of East End Life in the 
context of government cuts to local authority finances and the need to direct 
resources towards priority services.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 The Mayor is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Adopt a weekly publication of East End Life reduced in size and cost as set 

out in Option 1 of the Review appended hereto.  Option 1 will include:- 
 

2.1.1 The implementation of the £200,000 budget reduction agreed by 
council on 8th March 2011. 

Page 17



APPENDIX A 

  

2.1.2 The adoption of the revised editorial and advertising policies attached 
to the review document.   

2.1.3 A redesign of East End Life to further differentiate it from commercial 
papers. 

2.1.4 That by September 2011 East End Life will have a Pagesuite version 
available to encourage online usage.   

2.1.5 That promotion of online access to information (including via My. Tower 
Hamlets) and monitoring of progress so that when the majority of East 
End Life readers access material online, the publication’s print-run can 
be reduced. 

2.1.6 The proposed change of the existing advertising strategy. 
 

2.2 That adherence to the Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority 
Publicity shall be made a cornerstone of the editorial policy.   

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The code requires local authorities to have regard to the principles contained 

within it. These are fully set out in the report at Appendix 4.  There are seven 
key principles and no indication of the weighting that should be applied 
between each principle. It is for local authorities to ensure that all these 
considerations are taken into account when reaching a decision. 

3.2 When developing options for consideration the review panel considered the 
following factors which they rated as the main issues in seeking to achieve a 
balance between value for money and keeping residents informed:- 

• the lack of cost-effective alternatives with sufficient reach for statutory 
notices and Housing Options 

• the need to communicate with residents about changes to service 
provision, transport disruption and events in the run up to the Olympics 

• the need to keep residents informed about service provision 

• the lack of a significant mass circulation alternative for community news 
and for delivering community plan priorities such as: 

o Supporting residents through welfare reform 
o Fostering enterprise and entrepreneurship 
o Reducing fear of crime 
o Fostering greater community cohesion 
o Helping people to live healthier lives   

• the ability of residents in Tower Hamlets to get access to a PC. 
 

3.3 The panel also considered the weight of views from residents revealed in the 
consultation exercises which was in favour of saving money but also strongly 
in favour of keeping a weekly council publication. 

3.4 In addition the following value for money factors suggest improving the current 
weekly format provides the optimum balance between cost effectiveness and 
the need to keep people informed:- 

• the findings of the latest cost benefit analysis; and 

• the lack of a costed commercial alternative (i.e. similar to the Hammersmith 
and Fulham model) from local media despite initial enquiries being made; and 

• options involving a significant reduction in publication frequency are not 
necessarily cost saving due to the impact on advertising income 

Page 18



APPENDIX A 

  

Given the priorities above and the weight of consultation evidence the review 
is minded to recommend the reduced weekly model (Option 1 on page 30) so 
there is no net cost to the Council.   

3.5 The new Code recommends that publications should not be issued more than 
quarterly. In this respect, the Cabinet is asked to resolve to depart from the 
Code for the several reasons set out in this report at sections 3, 4, 7 and 8 

3.6 East End Life plays a prominent role in the promotion of equality and 
community cohesion. This is dealt with at several points in the Review, for 
example in paragraphs 3.20, 3.26-3.28, 7.5, 7.7 and in the revised Editorial 
Policy at Appendix 4 of the Review. This important contribution to the 
promotion of equality and cohesion is a significant reason justifying this very 
limited departure from the Code. 

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Four alternative models were considered and costed including the abolition 

of East End Life and replacing advertising, marketing and the publication of 
statutory notices with a basket of local media. These are fully set out in the 
Review in Clause 13.  However the costings suggest that the recommended 
option presents the best value option for the Council  

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 East End Life has been a significant presence in Tower Hamlets since its 

inception in 1993. It has grown from a fortnightly paper of 12 pages to its 
current 40/44 page weekly format. In that time it has become an important 
communications tool for the council and delivered to 87,000 homes.  

5.2 The review report examines the genesis of East End Life, the findings of the 
2007 Cabinet report, the statutory and regulatory framework, public 
perceptions of East End Life including readership levels, the local media 
environment and financial options for the paper.   

5.3 At the 8th March 2011 Budget Council meeting the mayor accepted an 
amendment to save £200,000 from the budget of East End Life and requested 
that it be incorporated into the East End Life review. 

5.4 The new Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity was 
approved by the Houses of Parliament on 31st March 2011 and outlines seven 
key principles which are guidance for which the Council must have regard 
when coming to a decision on publicity. Publicity by local authorities should:-  

 

• be lawful  

• be cost-effective  

• be objective  

• be even-handed  

• be appropriate  

• have regard to equality and diversity  

• be issued with care during periods of heightened sensitivity 

Page 19



APPENDIX A 

  

 
Local authorities are required to have regard to its contents and the review 
has adopted the majority of the Code 

 
5.5 The following paragraphs of the revised code are the most relevant in guiding 

local authorities when coming to a decision on publicity 
“10. In relation to all publicity, local authorities should be able to confirm 
that consideration has been given to the value for money that is being 
achieved, including taking into account any loss of potential revenue 
arising from the use of local authority-owned facilities to host authority 
publicity.”  
 
“13. The purchase of advertising space should not be used as a 
method of subsidising voluntary, public or commercial organisations.”  
 
“Even-handedness  
19. Where local authority publicity addresses matters of political 
controversy it should seek to present the different positions in relation 
to the issue in question in a fair manner.  
 
“20. Other than in the circumstances described in paragraph 34 of this 
code, it is acceptable for local authorities to publicise the work done by 
individual members of the authority, and to present the views of those 
individuals on local issues. This might be appropriate, for example, 
when one councillor has been the ‘face’ of a particular campaign. If 
views expressed by or attributed to individual councillors do not reflect 
the views of the local authority itself, such publicity should make this 
fact clear.”  
 
“28. Local authorities should not publish or incur expenditure in 
commissioning in hard copy or on any website, newsletters, 
newssheets or similar communications which seek to emulate 
commercial newspapers in style or content. Where local authorities do 
commission or publish newsletters, newssheets or similar 
communications, they should not issue them more frequently than 
quarterly, apart from parish councils which should not issue them more 
frequently than monthly. Such communications should not include 
material other than information for the public about the business, 
services and amenities of the council or other local service providers.”  
 
“32. Local authorities should consider how any publicity they issue can 
contribute to the promotion of any duties applicable to them in relation 
to the elimination of discrimination, the advancement of equality and 
the fostering of good relations.”  

 
 
5.6 The council’s Community Plan contains four main priorities which East End 

Life helps to deliver both by communicating service information and more 
proactively by seeking to support changes in lifestyle such as the Healthy 
Borough programme or helping to promote greater community cohesion. 

Page 20



APPENDIX A 

  

5.7 The code supports the need to ‘influence public behaviour in relation to 
matters of health, safety, crime prevention, race relations, equality, diversity 
and community issues’ but it also states that council publications should 
appear no more than quarterly. By adopting the recommended option 
members will be departing from this one paragraph in the Code  

5.8 In addition local authorities are required to select the most cost effective 
option when deciding upon plans for communicating key priorities and 
services. 

5.9 The review seeks to balance these two elements and identifies a 
recommended course of action following a cost comparison analysis of the 
alternative options available to the council. 

 
5.10 The revised editorial policy at appendix 4 of the review contains an analysis of 

compliance with each of the seven principles of the review.  This is set out 
below: 

 
Principle 1 – lawfulness 
 
A number of legal rules relate to local authority publicity, including rules 
relating to referendums, and material designed to influence people in deciding 
whether or not to sign a petition relating to an authority’s constitutional 
arrangements. Plainly, publication of East End Life will adhere to legal 
requirements. 
 
Principle 2 – cost effectiveness 
 
As stated above it is necessary to be able to confirm that consideration has 
been given to value for money considerations. It can be seen from the East 
End Life Review that consideration has been given to such considerations. 
Financial matters are dealt with in particular in sections 8, 9 and 13 of the 
Review and in section 7 of this Report. Officers’ view is that ample 
consideration has been given to value for money considerations and that it 
has been demonstrated that the production of East End Life is and will remain 
cost effective.  
 
Principle 3 – objectivity 
 
It is necessary to ensure that publicity relating to central government policies 
and proposals is balanced and factually accurate. It is permissible to set out 
the authority’s views and reasons for holding those views, but the publicity 
should avoid anything likely to be perceived by readers as constituting a 
political statement or being a commentary on contentious areas of public 
policy. Furthermore, publicity regarding the authority’s own policies should be 
objective and fact-based, and should not attempt to persuade members of the 
public to hold particular views on matters of policy. In this regard, it is 
important to note that the objectives for East End Life (set out in Appendix 4 of 
the Review) includes communication of the council’s policies, initiatives and 
successes, and to create an understanding of the work of the council. In other 
words, it is not editorial policy to be persuasive, merely descriptive.  

 

Page 21



APPENDIX A 

  

Principle 3 also involves that paid for advertising must be clearly identified as 
such and that advertisements for staff recruitment should reflect the political 
impartiality of local authority staff. By incorporation of the Code into the 
editorial policy, this will be explicitly achieved. 
 
Principle 4 – even-handedness 
 
This principle requires that in areas of political controversy, publicity should 
seek to present the opposing arguments fairly. Publicity may explain the work 
done by individual members of the authority, but must make it clear when the 
positions of the individual and the authority diverge.  
 
Principle 5 – appropriate use of publicity 
 
The Code states that authorities should not publish newsletters which seek to 
emulate commercial newspapers in style and content. Publicity should clearly 
identify itself as a product of the local authority. The Conclusions and 
Recommendations in section 16 of the Review make it clear that East End 
Life is to have a redesign to further differentiate it from commercial 
newspapers. It is not considered that a redesigned East End Life will be 
confused with a commercial newspaper. It will identifiably be a free-sheet 
produced and distributed by the local authority.  
 
The Code also recommends that the publicity should not be issued more than 
quarterly. In this respect, the Cabinet is asked to resolve to depart from the 
Code for the several reasons set out in this report at sections 3, 4, 7 and 8. It 
is important to emphasise the important role that East End Life plays in 
promotion of equality and community cohesion. This is dealt with at several 
points in the Review, for example in paragraphs 3.20, 3.26-3.28, 7.5, 7.7 and 
in the revised Editorial Policy at Appendix 4 of the Review. This important 
contribution to the promotion of equality and cohesion is in and of itself a 
significant reason justifying this limited departure from the Code. 
 
Principle 6 – equality and diversity 
 
The Code permits publicity to seek to influence the attitudes of local people in 
relation to health, safety, crime prevention, race relations, equality, diversity 
and community issues. Authorities are also to consider how publicity can 
contribute to the fulfilment of their own public sector equality duties. It is a 
core principle of East End Life that it should achieve these objectives. For 
example, the third stated objective is to celebrate the diversity of the borough 
and to promote racial harmony and community cohesion. It is considered that 
this principle is strongly promoted by the publication, and indeed by the 
weekly publication, of East End Life. 
 
Principle 7 – care during periods of sensitivity 
 
By incorporation of the Code into the editorial policy of East End Life, plainly 
this principle will be observed. 
 

Page 22



APPENDIX A 

  

It is considered by officers that, with the limited adjustments to the editorial 
policy of East End Life, it will promote all of the key principles in the Code. 
There will be a limited departure from one aspect of the Code in that it will be 
published more frequently than the Code recommends. However, it is 
considered that a departure is justified in this case for a series of reasons, 
including economic, practical, social and in order to promote equality, diversity 
and social cohesion in the borough. 

 
6. BODY OF REPORT 
 
6.1 The review report at Appendix 1 sets out in detail the history of East End Life 

and how it has developed since it was launched by the council in 1993.  It was 
launched in response to the council’s desire to promote the activities and 
services of the Council. There were also worries about the negative portrayal 
of the borough’s diverse communities in the media. 

6.2 As well as highlighting and promoting council services and activities, EEL 
aims to portray a positive image of the community, build and strengthen 
community cohesion and encourage engagement with residents. 

6.3 The total budget for East End Life in 2010-11 was £1.48m with £1.05m raised 
in advertising revenue.   

6.4 The average annual cost to the council of East End Life over the last five 
years has been approximately £268k per annum. 

6.5 The council’s communications function seeks to contribute to the delivery of 
the community plan themes by supporting the strategic priorities.  For many 
priorities this will be a matter of communicating that a service is available to 
the public.  However for a defined number of community plan priorities a 
council publication is essential in promoting behaviour campaigns that benefit 
the borough as a whole.  The report identifies how for instance East End Life 
has been instrumental in supporting the Healthy Borough campaign. 

6.6 It is one of only two weekly newspapers produced by a local authority in the 
UK.  In 2010-11 a further 9 councils published fortnightly. 

6.7 The current print run is 99,000 of which 83,277 are distributed door to door.  
The remainder is delivered to over 450 drop off points across the borough. 

6.8 Editorial and advertising policies were agreed for East End Life by the Cabinet 
in 2007 after which the paper was given a re-design. 

6.9 Content is currently produced in line with the Code of Recommended Practice 
on Local Authority Publicity (as amended in 2001). The new Code of 
Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity was approved by both 
Houses of Parliament on 31st March 2011.  This review examines current 
practice and suggests a way forward to ensure the Council has regard to the 
code in its approach to publicity.   

6.10 The challenge of reducing publication frequency or the print run for East End 
Life in order to reduce cost is complicated by considerations of displacement 
costs and the impact on our ability to communicate effectively with residents.  
This is the balance the new code asks councils to consider. 

6.11 East End Life plays a major role in showcasing efforts to tackle inequalities 
and also to promote inclusion. 

6.12 The paper is regularly used by voluntary and community groups to promote 
services and events and NHS Tower Hamlets have a free monthly page to 
promote issues relating to Health and Wellbeing.   

Page 23



APPENDIX A 

  

6.13 There is also a regular page on crime and community safety supplied by the 
Police on their work with the council detailing efforts to improve community 
safety and reduce the fear of crime. 

6.14 Whilst audited and verified readership levels for East End Life are falling they 
are falling even faster for other local print media. The long term plan is to 
replace the printed copy with an online version once there is evidence that our 
readers are able and wish to access the publication online 

6.15 Of the 624 consultation responses received, 72% of respondents felt 
positively about East End Life, with 28% expressing a negative opinion. 

6.16 Over half (53%) of respondents would like to see East End life continue as a 
weekly publication, however  13% wished to see East End Life abolished 
entirely. Almost 1 in 6 (16%) preferred a fortnightly edition and 4% wanted the 
publication limited to quarterly. 

6.17 Five models are considered in the paper:- 

• reduced weekly 

• fortnightly publication 

• monthly publication 

• quarterly publication 

• abolish East End Life. 
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 This report describes the review requested by the Mayor of the implications of 

the Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Practice and the 
purpose, performance and role of East End Life and includes information on 
its financial costs and performance and an analysis of estimated comparative 
costs under various options.   

7.2  The budget for East End Life in 2011/12 is £82,000, which reflects the 
£200,000 savings target agreed at the Budget Council meeting.  It is an 
important objective of the review to ensure that the cost of East End Life can 
be contained within this new, stricter budget target.   

7.3  The estimated costs to the council associated with the five options are 
described in paragraphs 13.1 to 13.5 of the detailed review.  The cost to the 
council in pursuing each option is presented below.   

 

 

 

 

Page 24



APPENDIX A 

  

Options
Publication 

times
Net cost to the Council

1 Weekly £49,000

2 Fortnightly £75,500

3 Monthly £24,000

4 Quarterly £51,500

5 Closure Estimated between £600K-2.1M  

 

           The analysis of the five options in the report indicates that the lowest cost 
option, and therefore the one that can be contained within the available 
budget with least risk, is to maintain a scaled-down weekly publication.   

7.4 The financial viability of East End Life as an effective means of the authority 

meeting its duty to communicate does depend upon the generation of external 

income and the fact that the Council uses it to meet its own statutory and non-

statutory advertising needs.  These income sources are volatile are could 

change over time. Consequently it is important that the value for money 

offered by East End Life is kept under review going forward.   

7.5.     The costs of various options reflect the direct costs of running the newspaper. 

As the detailed report point out, the analysis has not included an allocation of 

all overheads to East End Life because these costs would be the same under 

all options and are thus not relevant when it comes to comparing one option 

with another.  However these costs may be subject to change in the longer 

term and this is another reason why the costs of East End Life should be kept 

under review.  

7.6.     The report contains an analysis of advertising costs compared with other 

alternative newspapers.  This is not a full market testing exercise, and it 

cannot be stated with certainty that the analysis fully reflects the outcome if 

such an exercise was to be carried out.   However the cost difference 

indicated is large enough to suggest that strong reliance can be placed on the 

conclusion that comparative costs would be likely to be greater if other outlets 

were used.    

8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
8.1 By s 2(1) of the Local Government Act 1986 local authorities are prohibited 

from publishing, or arranging for the publication of, any material which, in 
whole or in part, appears to be designed to affect public support for a 
political party. This prohibition applies at all times. 

 
8.2. S 4(1) of the 1986 Act (as amended) states: 
 

Page 25



APPENDIX A 

  

  “The Secretary of State may issue one or more codes of recommended 
practice as regards the content, style, distribution and cost of local 
authority publicity, and such other related matters as he thinks 
appropriate; and local authorities shall have regard to the provisions of 
any such code in coming to any decision on publicity1.” 

 
8.3  Case law clearly demonstrates that guidance such as that contained the Code 

of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity must be given due 
regard by the Council. However that case law also shows that it is permissible 
to depart from guidance where there is good reason to do so.  

 
8.4   This report and the Review Report at Appendix 1 set out a number of factors 

that have influenced the recommendation to publish East End Life weekly. In 
particular less frequent publication would oblige the Council to publish 
statutory notices in other newspapers, at additional cost to the Council. It 
would also reduce the effectiveness of East End Life as a means of 
communicating with those residents who are dependent on Council services 
and who are less likely to have access to the internet. As the most widely-read 
local newspaper including material in Bengali, and the only one containing 
material in Somali, reduced publication could deprive certain sections of the 
community of an important source of timely information about public services. 

 
8.5 In light of the proposed principles that local authority publicity should be cost-

effective and should have regard to equality and diversity, and the guidance in 
paragraphs 10 and 32 of the revised code (as set out in paragraph 5.5 above), 
in Clause 5 the principles are reviewed and the comments under each 
demonstrate that these are proper reasons for departing from the 
recommended limit on frequency of publication in paragraph 28 of the revised 
code.   

 
8.6  In addition the Council has the public sector equality duties from 5th April 

2011 by virtue of the Equality Act 2010. These general duties require the 
Council to have due regard to  

• the need to eliminate discrimination,  

• advance equality of opportunity and  

• foster good relations between groups.  
The recommended option assists the Council in fulfilling those duties and the 
Review report sets out in detail how that is achieved.  

 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 East End Life plays a key role in representing the rich diversity of 

communities within Tower Hamlets.  Not only is the harmony section an 
important element in reaching out to the Bengali and Somali reading 
population but it has an active editorial policy that seeks to promote 
tolerance and understanding of different lifestyles and beliefs. 

                                                 
1
 S 6 of the 1986 Act defines publicity as “any communication in whatever form, addressed to the 

public at large or a section of the public”.  

 

Page 26



APPENDIX A 

  

9.2 The publication has a policy of using news items and case studies illustrating 
and supporting community cohesion.  This often involves working with a 
range of community groups who regularly use East End Life to promote the 
needs of their service users. 

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 During the tender process for both the East End Life print and distribution 

contracts matters relating to sustainability were incorporated into the scoring 
of each bid. 

10.2  Both winning suppliers scored highly in this section with our print supplier 
one of the first twelve companies to be awarded the Carbon Trust’s 
environmental certificate.  The supplier had provided evidence of reducing 
carbon emissions in the previous three years by 18%. 

10.3 The review explores the possibility of moving to a digital edition to further 
reduce the environmental footprint and cost.  However given the consultation 
responses it is clear residents are not yet ready to replace print copies with a 
digital edition.  Over the next few years we will run both a digital and print 
edition to encourage a gradual switchover. 

 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 The risks to the external and internal income required to support East End 

Life has been clearly documented in the report.  Mitigating actions have 
been addressed in sections 8 and 10 in the review document. 

 
12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 East End Life plays a key role in promoting the work of both the Police and 

the council in tackling crime and disorder.  There are regular features on the 
work of Police and the various teams around the council who impact on this 
agenda including the Drug and Alcohol Act Team, the Licensing team, 
Environmental Health and the Youth Service. 

12.2 The publication also carries court reports and has a policy of naming and 
shaming those convicted of serious crimes committed locally. 

 
13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
13.1 The review identifies £200k worth of savings and a reduced print run.  In 

addition measures to explore further efficiencies are constantly considered. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

• Appendix 1 – East End Life Review and appendices  
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

Page 27



APPENDIX A 

  

  
Code of Recommended Practice on 
Local Authority Publicity (DCLG, March 
2011) 
East End Life Development Options 
(LBTH Cabinet report January 2007) 

Takki Sulaiman 
Clove Crescent 
London E14 2BG 
 

  
 
Report authors should refer to the section of the report writing guide which relates to 
Background Papers when completing this section.  Please note that any documents 
listed in this section may be disclosed for public inspection.  Report authors must 
check with Legal Services before listing any document as ‘background papers’. 
 
 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 16 

 

Committee/Meeting: 

Overview and Scrutiny 

Date: 

5th July 2011 

Classification: 

 

Unrestricted  
 

Report No: 

 

Report of:  

Corporate Director Resources 

 

Originating officer(s)  

Michael Keating, Service Head One 

Tower Hamlets  

Alan Finch, Service Head Financial 

Services, Risk & Accountability 

 

Title:  

Strategic Performance and Corporate 

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 

– Year End Report 2010/11. 

 

Wards Affected:  

All 

 

Community Plan Theme 

  

All 

Strategic Priority 

 

All 

 

1 SUMMARY 

 

1.1 Effective performance monitoring and reporting is crucial to the way the 

Council drives improvement in services. This report draws together the 

performance monitoring reports on progress with the 2010-11 Strategic Plan, 

the Council’s Strategic performance indicators, remaining National Indicators 

and the financial position for year end 2010/11. Combining our performance 

and financial reporting in this way strengthens the Council’s robust 

performance management arrangements.  

  

1.2 This report will be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 6th July.   

 

1.3  This performance report covers the authority’s progress for 2010/11 (Quarter 

4).  This includes year end monitoring updates for: 

• Revenue and Capital Budget Outturn; 

• The Council’s Strategic Plan;  

• All Strategic performance indicators and the remaining ex-national 

indicators that are available to be reported in this period.  

 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 77



Page 2 of 16 

Finance Overview 

 

1.3.1 Measures taken by officers during the financial year to contain spending within 

budget have been largely successful. In addition the Council successfully 

responded to £4m in grant cuts introduced by the Government part way into 

the financial year. At the end of the financial year there is an overall 

underspend of £67,000 in Directorate budgets after proposed transfers to and 

from Reserves, this compares with the overspend of £463,000 as at Quarter 3.  

The reasons are detailed in the Month 12 Revenue Outturn Report.  However 

the payment of severance and redundancies necessary to deliver savings 

from the start of the 2011/12 financial year uses reserves of £5.7 million, as 

agreed by Members in December.   

 

1.4.2 HRA 

The reported forecast overspend of £73,000 at Quarter 3 has changed to an 

overspend of £38,000 as at year end.  

 

1.4.3 Capital position 

Capital budgets generally underspend because of the difficulty of 

programming expenditure accurately between years. Directorates have spent 

75.6% of their capital budgets for the year (£143.233m against budgets of 

£189.345m), which represents an underspend of £46.112m or 24.4% of the 

budget.  This is mainly driven by underspends in Children, Schools and 

Families, Building Schools for the Future and HRA spending programmes, 

which have been forecast throughout the year.   

 

1.4 Strategic Plan 

At year end 66% of the activities within the Council’s Strategic Plan have been 

completed, and 34% (24) are overdue. Of the overdue activities, 14 are 75% 

or more complete and have missed only one milestone – these have been 

assessed as Amber (near complete). 

 

1.6 Strategic Measures    

40% of the Strategic indicators which are reportable are on target, and 58% 

have improved performance since 2009/10.  This is the last year that we will 

report on National Indicators as the Coalition Government has now abolished 

the Set.   

 

1.7 More detailed performance and financial information is contained in the report 

appendices, as follows: 

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments  

• Appendix 2 - provides the estimate budget outturn and explanations of 

major variances for Directorates for the General Fund 

Page 78



Page 3 of 16 

• Appendix 3 - provides the estimate budget outturn and explanations of 

major variances for the HRA 

• Appendix 4 - shows Directorates use of Reserves and requests for carry 

forward funding from 2010/11 to 2011/12 

• Appendix 5 - shows details of transformation savings delivered in 2010/11 

• Appendix 6 – provides details of the capital programme spending 

undertaken in the year 

• Appendix 7 – shows details of capital receipts allocations requested to be 

carried forward as part of the Local Priorities Programme 

• Appendix 8 - provides an overview of performance for the Council’s 

Strategic Plan activities and milestones 

• Appendix 9 - gives an overview of performance for all of the Council’s 

Strategic Indicators which represent the key priorities for the Council. 

 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:- 

 

2.1. Review and note the Quarter 4 Year End 2010/11 performance 

 

2.2. Note the Council’s financial position as outlined in paragraphs 3 and 4 and 

appendices 1-7 of this report; and 

 

2.3. Note the transfers to and from contingencies and earmarked reserves, as set 

out in the report and at appendix 4.  These are being tabled to Cabinet for 

approval. 

 

 

 

Page 79



Page 4 of 16 

3. REVENUE 

 

3.1 The following table summarises the expected outturn position for the General 

Fund.  This position may change in finalising the Statement of Accounts if new 

information requires the material amendment of estimates used. 

SUMMARY 
Adjusted 

Budget 

Actual 

Spend 
Variance 

Transfers 
to/from 

reserves** 

Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adults Health and 

Wellbeing 

102,727 105,025 2,298 (2,275) 23 

Chief Executive 18,097 18,130 33 (33) 0 

Children, Schools and 

Families 

100,332 100,371 39 (39) 0 

Communities, Localities 

and Culture+ 

79,547 78,883 (664) 

 

645 (19) 

 

Development and 

Renewal 

17,555 19,775 2,220 (2,213) 7 

Resources 15,437 15,999 562 (689) (127) 

Corporate Costs/Capital 

Financing 

11,845 14,145 2,300 (2,251) 49 

 

Sub-total 345,540 352,328 6,788 (6,855) (67) 

Redundancy payments 

funded from general 

reserves and 

contingencies 

previously agreed by 

Cabinet 

0 5,706 5,706 (5,706) 0 

Area Based Grant  42,053 42,053 0 0 0 

TOTAL 387,593 400,087 12,494 (12,561) (67) 

+ includes budgeted parking income of £4.596m contribution to general fund.  Additional 

parking control surplus of £610,000 taken to parking control account 

The table reflects the use of reserves agreed by Members during the financial 

year including funding set aside to meet the cost of implementation of 

measures to deliver savings in 2011/12 and later years. 

** Appendix 4 sets out the recommended payments into and out of earmarked 

reserves into departmental resources.  Cabinet are asked to approve these 

transfers.  

Contingencies were set aside in the 2010/11 budget to enable the authority to 

deal with the consequences of downsizing the organisation. Some of this has 

already been allocated by Members to help fund the cost of redundancies and 

Page 80



Page 5 of 16 

to enable Children, Schools and Families to maintain certain Early Intervention 

Grant funded programmes until the end of the school year. Funding will also 

be required on an invest to save basis to facilitate the decant of Anchorage 

House and generate substantial savings to the Council from 2013/14 onwards 

and £4 million now needs to be set aside from contingencies to help fund 

these costs.  

  

 Broad explanations of variances from budget are as follows: 

 

3.2  Adults, Health and Wellbeing                                                 £23,000 

 
The Directorate's forecast overspend has reduced from the Quarter 3 position 

of a £218,000 overspend. 

  

When the Directorate identified that it would potentially overspend at the 

beginning of the financial year, this was reported to the Directorate 

Management Team who subsequently identified and agreed a number of key 

action points to be delivered. These were aimed to mitigate any increase in the 

overspend and reduce the current overspend forecast. The Directorate 

ensured at this time that it maximised its use of historic balances and 

reserves, the former were used in full during 2010/2011. The Directorate 

Management Team then monitored this action plan to ensure the necessary 

action was having the desired effect and this saw a gradual decrease in the 

forecast overspend position. The risk of an overspend was also included at 

this time in the corporate risk register. 

  

The Directorate implemented a new care management system in June 2010 

and then subsequently in October 2010 the financial module of the system. 

The majority of commissioning expenditure is processed through the system 

which accounts for approximately 70% of the Directorate's expenditure. The 

risks associated with the financial module were highlighted in the budget 

monitoring reports previously in addition to the corporate risk register. From 

the go live of the system in October 2010, the Directorate invested heavily in 

ensuring the integrity and data quality of the system as the information is a 

critical information source for the Directorate for both activity and financial 

data. The data integrity work of the system work has now been completed. 

While the work was being provided, this did see a movement in the 

commissioning forecasts. Due to officers being aware of the risk associated 

with these commitments, officers were both realistic and prudent in their 

reporting for commissioning. This did however see a movement in the final 

position for the Directorate at the 31st March 2011 compared with quarter 3. 

 

Page 81



Page 6 of 16 

3.3 Chief Executives                                            NIL 

 

 This is in line with the Quarter 3 forecast.  £650,000 of reserves have been 

applied to fund election costs during the year as previously reported to 

Council. 

 

 

3.4 Children, Schools and Families                                          NIL 

 

The outturn position is in line with the forecast as at Quarter 3. 

 

 

3.5 Communities, Localities and Culture     (£19,000) 

 

At Quarter 3, the Directorate was expected to breakeven.  An under spend on 

the outturn position was achieved through implementation of a sickness 

management process. This was effective in reducing the level of sickness in 

the Directorate which was further supported by the reduction in agency cost.  

 

   

3.6 Development and Renewal                                                       £7,000 

 

The overspend has reduced from that projected in Quarter 3 (£245,000).  

Funding of £220,000 from the Homelessness Prevention Reserve has been 

used to alleviate budgetary pressures in respect of the Homelessness service. 

These pressures have been regularly reported to Members during the 

financial year. 

 

The net variance of £7,000 assumes that £2.213 million of reserves will be 

applied.  These reserves will be utilised to finance specific one-off 

projects, including the finalisation of the core property data work stream in time 

for the 2011 Census; the digitalisation of planning and land charge records; 

and the Local Development Framework. Also included in the application of 

reserves is £1.1 million of financing in relation to negotiations with Tower 

Hamlets Schools Ltd (THSL), the Authority's PFI delivery partner, in respect of 

the PFI and BSF projects. This is part of the funding of £2.5 million that was 

set aside for this purpose from General Fund balances, as previously agreed 

by Cabinet. 

 

Page 82



Page 7 of 16 

3.7 Resources                                                               (£127,000) 

 

The outturn position is in line with the forecast as at Quarter 3 with an 

underspend.  This is net of the approved transfer of £689,000 of reserves to 

fund the HR improvement programme. 

 

3.8 Corporate Costs                £49,000 

 

Corporate costs include the payment of £3 million of redundancy and 

severance payments made or agreed in 2010/11.  This partly funded from 

reserves and partly funded from Contingencies. 

 

3.9 HRA          £38,000 

 

In March 2011, Cabinet considered the Quarter 3 budget monitoring report 

which projected an overspend of £73,000.  Financial pressures identified 

earlier in 2010-11 led to the development and implementation of a budget 

action plan by Tower Hamlets Homes.  The resultant robust monitoring and 

control of the delegated budget (in particular demand-led activities such 

as repairs), together with strong income collection performance, have 

contributed to a small year-end overspend of £38,000.  The level of HRA 

reserves at 31st March 2011 is £12.786 million. 

 

3.10 Risk areas 

 

Risks have been highlighted under appropriate vote heads in Appendices 2 

and 3. 

 

3.11 Savings / Efficiency targets 

 

The Outturn Report indicates that directorates have successfully delivered 
their 2010/11 savings targets. These savings are expected to be permanent 
and during 2011/12, along with new savings expected for 2011/12, they will 
be rigorously monitored through the monthly budget monitoring process. 

 

Details of progress against transformation savings targets is shown in 

appendix 5. 

 

3.12 Income Collection Performance Targets 

 

 Details of income collection during 2010/11 is shown below.  Other than 

Housing rents, all other targets were exceeded. 

          

Page 83



Page 8 of 16 

   

Income Stream Collected 

in 2009-10 

% 

2010-11 

Target to 

31.03.11      

% 

2010-11 

Collected 

to 31.03.11 

% 

Direction 

of Travel 

 

Business Rates 99.29 98.0 99.6 ↑ 

Central Income 86.33 88.00 90.00 ↑ 

Council Tax 94.40 95.0 95.1 ↑ 

Housing Rents 100.10* 100.01 99.87 ↓ 

PCNs 62.37 62.00 63.09 ↑ 

Service Charges 109.80* 100.00 110.4* ↑ 

*Collection rates for 2009/10 includes collection of previous years’ arrears.    

 

 

4. CAPITAL 

 

4.1 The capital budget at Quarter 3 as approved by Cabinet on 9th March 2011 

totalled £204.008m. This has now decreased to £189.345m. This is due in the 

main part to a re-profiling of the BSF ICT budget. 

 

4.2 The projected outturn as reported at Quarter 3 was £154.270m. This has now 

decreased to £143.233m, representing an underspend of £46.112m (24.4% of 

the budget).  The difference is due to project slippage of £10 million spread 

across a number of schemes since Quarter 3:  

Page 84



Page 9 of 16 

Annual Budget Spend to Spend Actual 

 as at 31-3-11 31-Mar-11 (% of budget) Variance

£m £m % £m

TOTALS BY DIRECTORATE:

Communities, Localities and Culture 14.060 13.178 93.7% -0.882

Children, Schools and Families 34.939 23.565 67.4% -11.374

Resources 3.594 1.863 51.8% -1.731

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 1.167 0.767 65.7% -0.400

Development and Renewal 20.340 8.986 44.2% -11.354

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 47.307 37.224 78.7% -10.083

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 67.938 57.650 84.9% -10.288

GRAND TOTAL 189.345 143.233 75.6% -46.112

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Communities, Localities and Culture 12.516 11.997 95.9% -0.519

Children, Schools and Families 32.208 20.630 64.1% -11.578

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.735 0.638 86.8% -0.097

Development and Renewal 15.332 7.888 51.4% -7.444

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 47.307 37.224 78.7% -10.083

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 66.838 57.650 86.3% -9.188

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 174.936 136.027 77.8% -38.909

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME (LPP)

Communities, Localities and Culture 1.544 1.181 76.5% -0.363

Children, Schools and Families 2.731 2.935 107.5% 0.204

Resources 3.594 1.863 51.8% -1.731

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.432 0.129 29.9% -0.303

Development and Renewal 5.008 1.098 21.9% -3.910

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 1.100 0.000 0.0% -1.100

LPP TOTAL 14.409 7.206 50.0% -7.203

GRAND TOTAL 189.345 143.233 75.6% -46.112

 

 

4.3 The capital programme for 2010/11 has been set on the basis of available 
capital resources and amended as further resource announcements have 
been made by Government and other funders, and for Cabinet decisions.  

 

4.4 A summary of the resources used to fund the 2010/11 capital programme is 
set out as follows: 

 
 

Page 85



Page 10 of 16 

 CLC  CSF  Chief Exec  AHWB  D&R  HRA BSF  TOTAL 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Funding Source:

Capital Grants and Contributions 9.144 10.688 - 0.755 4.602 9.832 57.100 92.121

Developers' Contributions 1.247 0.890 - - 2.435 0.413 - 4.985

Supported Borrowing - 8.502 - - - 15.500 - 24.002

Prudential Borrowing - - 0.796 - - 0.894 - 1.690

Direct Revenue Financing 2.307 3.414 0.845 - 0.101 0.335 - 7.002

Major Repairs Allowance - - - - - 7.641 - 7.641

Capital Receipts (Local Priorities 

Programme)
0.480 0.071 0.222 0.012 1.848 2.609 0.550 5.792

Total Resources Applied 13.178 23.565 1.863 0.767 8.986 37.224 57.650 143.233

Directorate

 

4.5 Further details of the capital programme are provided in Appendix 6. 

4.6 A breakdown of the Local Priorities programme allocations and amounts to be 

agreed for carry-forward to 2011/12 are shown in Appendix 7. 

 

 

5. STRATEGIC PLAN 2010/11 

 

5.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan sets out our strategic priorities and targets for the 

period 2010/11. The Council’s performance management and accountability 

framework requires CMT and Members to consider our progress against 

Strategic Plan activities every 6 months. This report is a monitoring update on 

the full financial year 2010/11. This report consists of a summary of the 

number and proportion of activities achieving red/amber/green traffic lights and 

analysis of the activities, in particular the reasons for unsuccessful 

implementation.  

 

5.2 All activities within the Strategic Plan have been monitored and are included in 

Appendix 8.  There are 71 activities, and 269 milestones relating to these 

activities in the Strategic Plan. Where an activity has been completed it is 

marked as Completed (Green).  

 

5.3 An activity which has not been completed this financial year has been marked 

as Overdue (Red).  In addition, those activities which have not been 

completed this year but which are 75% or more complete and have missed 

only one milestone have been classified as Delayed (Orange).  Managers 

Page 86



Page 11 of 16 

have provided comments for all Overdue & Delayed activities to explain why 

the deadline was missed; what is being done about it; and by when the activity 

will be completed.  

 

5.4 Of the 71 activities included within the plan; 66% (47) have been completed 

and 34% (24) are overdue.  Of the overdue activities, 58% (14) have been 

assessed as Delayed (near complete).  

 

 

6. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

6.1 This is the third and last full year of monitoring against the National Indicator 

set which has been abolished by the Coalition Government. This report 

monitors the Council’s Strategic Indicators, covering the period to April 2010 to 

March 2011. The Strategic Indicators are the top tier of our performance 

framework.  They consist of a balanced scorecard of indicators reflecting those 

measured within our LAA (also now abolished), together with some key 

measures of customer satisfaction and some measures of corporate efficiency 

(such as sickness absence). Where information is available, these are 

monitored corporately every quarter in the joint strategic and budget 

monitoring report. There are 84 indicators in the Strategic Set. 

 

6.2 Performance analysis included within the report is currently based on 

incomplete data as performance data for some indicators is not yet available. 

Validation of social care indicators for example is not expected until mid 

summer. We will get more complete information within the next few weeks, 

although, where data sources used to calculate these indicators are external 

to the council this may take more time.  

 

6.3 Strategic Indicator Performance 2010/11 

 

6.3.1 Performance against Strategic Indicators for the period April 2010 until March 

2011 is set out in Appendix 9. The performance update includes 2010/11 

targets, 2010/11 actual, outturn commentary and direction of travel charts for 

each indicator. Direction of travel charts summarise performance against 

target and top quartile performance information where available.  

 

6.3.2 Of the 84 measures in the strategic set, 3 relate to national surveys which 

have now been abolished by the Coalition Government (the Place and Active 

People Surveys).  Within the Strategic set of indicators, there are 61 where 

both a target was set and outturn information is available. Of these 61 

indicators: 

• 26 (42.6%) met or exceeded their target; 

• 21 (34.42%) were within range of meeting their target (-10% below); 

Page 87



Page 12 of 16 

• 14 (22.9%) were more than 10% off target; and  

• 38 (45.2%) Improved based on 2008/09 outturn.  

 

6.3.3 The table below sets out performance against target for Strategic Indicators for 

all reporting periods in 2009/10, and for 2010/11 to date.   

 

Reporting Period GREEN RED 

2009/10 

Apr-May  11 (52.38%) 10 (47.61%) 

Q1  11 (50%) 11 (50%) 

Q2 14 (34.14%) 27 (65.85%) 

Q3 14 (42.42%) 19 (57.57%) 

Year End 39 (58.2%) 2 (41.8%) 

2010/11 

Q1 17 (58.6%) 12 (41.4%) 

Q2  20 (69%) 9 (31%) 

Q3  21 (63.6%) 12 (36.3%) 

Year End 26 (42.6%) 35 (57.4%) 

 

6.3.4 26 of the strategic performance measures (42.6%) have achieved their end of 

year target (GREEN). Areas where performance is well above the estimated 

target are as follows:  

• (S224) - Percentage residents satisfied with outcome to ASB 

• (S225) - Average time to re-let property (days) 

• (S206) - People killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents 

• (NI195a) - Improved street and environmental cleanliness – litter 

• (NI195b) - Improved street and environmental cleanliness – detritus 

• (NI152) - Working age people on out of work benefits. By May 2011 (Q2 

data) narrow the gap to the England average rate to a maximum of -5.7 

percentage points. 

• (NI153) - Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst 

performing neighbourhoods. By May 2011 (Q2 data) extend the lead over 

the England average rate to at least 3.1 percentage points 

• (NI15) - Number of most serious violent crimes per 1,000 population 

• (NI33 a+b) - Arson incidents - Number of deliberate fires per 10,000 

population – primary & secondary 

• (S324) – ESOL Entry Level One Completions 

• (NI87) – Secondary school persistent absence rate 

• (NI150) – Adults receiving secondary mental health services in 

employment 

 

A total of 38 (45.2%) indicators have improved performance since 2009/10. 

 

Page 88



Page 13 of 16 

 

 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 

7.1 This report sets out the performance of the authority against priority 

performance indicators for the year.  Financial results reflect the Council’s 

audited final accounts which are to be considered for approval by Audit 

Committee on 27th September 2011 following receipt of the audit opinion.  

Draft final accounts will be provided to the external auditors and Audit 

Committee members in late June. 

 

7.2 The presentation of financial results alongside performance outputs represents 

good practice as it enables performance in both areas to be considered 

alongside one another and facilitates actions being taken on the basis of a 

balanced overall view. 

 

7.3 The Directorate General Fund overspend has decreased by £530,000 since 

Quarter 3, partly due to the application of reserves.  The planned settlement of 

redundancy costs was agreed at Cabinet in December and has contributed to 

reduce overall general fund balances by £5.7 million. 

 
7.4 The use of reserves as funding for “invest to save” projects and meeting the 

costs of downsizing is a vital part of delivering the Council’s savings target.  

This is the appropriate way for reserves to be used as the Council responds to 

Government cuts.  However, as revenues are used up, the scope for using 

them to deal with potential overspends will diminish.  Where overspends are 

predicted Corporate Directors, in accordance with Financial Regulations, must 

keep the position under close, continuous review and, where necessary, 

identify compensatory savings. The Council Management Team has a monthly 

monitoring process through which it will oversee expenditure against budget. 

The Corporate Director – Resources will also monitor closely those 

directorates that have so far projected adverse material end of year variances. 

 
7.5 Contingencies set aside at the start of the financial year to fund budget risks 

are likely to be used in the current financial year and into 2011/12 to assist in 

delivering the savings required to balance the budget in the wake of ongoing 

Government grant cuts. Sums have been set aside in respect of redundancy, 

and there will also be costs arising from project delivery and to manage 

reductions in specific grants relating to education children’s services.  

 
7.6 The report also details expenditure against the capital programme. Spend to 

date of £143.233 represents only 75.6% of the programme.  Any unspent 

capital resources at year end will be carried forward to meet committed spend 

on agreed projects in future years.  

Page 89



Page 14 of 16 

8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL 

SERVICES) 

 

8.1 The report provides performance information, including by reference to key 

performance indicators and the budget. 

 

8.2 It is consistent with good administration for the Council to consider monitoring 

information in relation to plans and budgets that it has adopted. 

 

8.3 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council as a best 

value authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 

the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  Monitoring of performance 

information is an important way in which that obligation can be fulfilled. 

 

8.4 The Council is required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs.  The 

Council’s chief finance officer has established financial procedures to ensure 

the Council’s proper financial administration.  These include procedures for 

budgetary control.  It is consistent with these arrangements for Members to 

receive information about the revenue and capital budgets as set out in the 

report. 

 

 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

 

 The Council’s Strategic Plan and Strategic Indicators are focused upon 

meeting the needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and 

supporting delivery of One Tower Hamlets. In particular, Strategic priorities 

include the reduction of inequalities and the fostering of strong community 

cohesion and are measured by a variety of strategic indicators. 

 

 

10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

 

 An element of the monitoring report deals with environmental milestones 

within the Safe and Supportive agenda. 

 

 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 

 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the information contained 

within the Strategic Indicator Monitoring will assist the Cabinet, Corporate 

Directors and relevant service managers in delivering the ambitious targets set 

Page 90



Page 15 of 16 

out in the Strategic Plan. Regular monitoring reports will enable Members and 

Corporate Directors to keep progress under regular review. 

 

 There is a risk to the integrity of the authority’s finances if an imbalance occurs 

between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular monitoring and, 

where appropriate, corrective action. This report provides a corporate 

overview to supplement more frequent monitoring that takes place at detailed 

level. 

 

 The explanations provided by the Directorates for the budget variances also 

contain analyses of risk factors. 

 

 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

 

The Strategic Indicator set contain a number of crime and disorder items 

under the Safe & Supportive theme, however there are no specific crime and 

disorder reduction implications. 

 

 

13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  

 

 Transformation savings are covered in Appendix 5 of this report. 

 

 

14. APPENDICES 

 

• Appendix 1 - lists budget/target adjustments  

• Appendix 2 - provides the estimate budget outturn and explanations of 

major variances for Directorates for the General Fund 

• Appendix 3 - provides the estimate budget outturn and explanations of 

major variances for the HRA 

• Appendix 4 - shows Directorates use of Reserves and requests for carry 

forwards 

• Appendix 5 - shows details of transformation savings 

• Appendix 6 – provides details of the capital programme 

• Appendix 7 – shows details of capital receipts allocations requested to be 

carried forward as part of the Local Priorities Programme. 

• Appendix 8 - provides an overview of performance for the Council’s 

Strategic Plan activities and milestones 

• Appendix 9 - gives an overview of performance for all of the Council’s 

Strategic Indicators which represent the key priorities for the Council. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Page 91



Page 16 of 16 

 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  

No “background papers” were used in 

writing this report 

 

 

 

Page 92



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S
 2

0
1

0
/1

1

W
N

F
 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

(T
o

w
e

r 

P
ro

je
c

t 

A
H

W
B

)

In
 y

e
a

r 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 -
 

D
e

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

a
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
C

E
 

p
o

s
t

In
 y

e
a

r 
S

a
v
in

g
s

 

- 
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 

d
u

e
 t

o
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

 

fa
il
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 

g
ra

n
t

A
B

G
 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

H
R

A
 

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
s

A
B

G
 &

 

W
N

F
 

A
ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
S

in
g

le
 

S
ta

tu
s

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 

R
e

v
e

rs
a

l

C
le

a
ri

n
g

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

D
e

ll
 

R
e

fr
e

s
h

P
ru

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

B
o

rr
o

w
in

g

F
M

 

C
h

a
rg

e
s

E
R

/V
R

 

A
d

ju
s

tm
e

n
ts

R
C

C
O

s

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

S
e

rv
ic

e
 B

u
d

g
e

ts

A
d

u
lt 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
0

,2
1

7
,7

0
0

1
0

2
,1

9
1

,9
1

4
1

1
6

,0
0

0
2

3
6

,2
0

0
(4

0
,6

1
4

)
9

4
,0

2
9

(1
1

,3
0

0
)

1
5

2
,9

4
7

(1
2

,7
4

6
)

1
0

2
,7

2
6

,4
3

0

C
h

ild
re

n
, 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a

m
ili

e
s

9
3

,8
9

5
,6

0
0

9
4

,7
7

0
,9

8
7

3
2

0
,0

0
0

5
,6

7
3

,1
0

0
(4

1
0

,0
0

0
)

(2
0

8
,9

3
3

)
2

6
3

,4
0

0
(7

1
,0

0
0

)
1

6
1

,4
4

0
(1

6
7

,0
8

6
)

1
0

0
,3

3
1

,9
0

8

C
o

m
m

u
n

iti
e

s
, 
L

o
c
a

lit
ie

s
 &

 C
u

ltu
re

7
4

,9
1

0
,7

3
4

7
9

,3
9

3
,4

6
2

2
2

0
,3

0
0

(9
9

2
)

1
5

3
,6

5
8

(4
7

0
,4

0
0

)
1

4
6

,3
5

6
6

6
4

,8
8

3
(5

6
0

,3
0

0
)

7
9

,5
4

6
,9

6
7

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l 
1

2
,4

2
4

,7
8

0
2

1
,1

9
7

,0
6

2
6

5
,0

0
0

(2
,8

7
3

,4
0

0
)

(1
5

,1
7

9
)

9
5

,0
7

6
(9

1
3

,8
8

2
)

1
7

,5
5

4
,6

7
7

C
h

ie
f 
E

x
e

c
u

tiv
e

1
3

,3
6

8
,8

2
0

1
7

,2
0

6
,9

1
2

(1
4

5
,0

0
0

)
(4

5
,0

0
0

)
4

7
7

,6
0

0
3

9
1

,8
5

8
(4

,1
4

3
)

3
7

,4
0

0
1

0
0

,2
2

7
7

7
,5

0
0

1
8

,0
9

7
,3

5
4

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
8

,3
6

1
,5

0
0

1
4

,1
5

7
,3

2
9

2
2

,4
0

0
2

8
5

,6
0

0
2

6
9

,8
6

1
3

0
2

,4
3

7
(2

6
0

,7
0

0
)

3
5

2
,9

1
2

1
,1

5
3

,4
5

4
(8

4
5

,8
0

0
)

1
5

,4
3

7
,4

9
3

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

/C
a

p
ita

l
1

7
,7

4
8

,2
0

0
1

5
,1

1
8

,2
0

0
(5

0
0

,0
0

0
)

(3
,5

4
1

,8
0

0
)

(9
4

6
,0

0
0

)
8

1
3

,4
0

0
(5

0
5

,0
0

5
)

1
,4

0
6

,1
0

0
1

1
,8

4
4

,8
9

5

S
u

b
to

ta
l

3
2

0
,9

2
7

,3
3

4
3

4
4

,0
3

5
,8

6
6

1
1

6
,0

0
0

(1
4

5
,0

0
0

)
(4

5
,0

0
0

)
3

2
0

,0
0

0
0

4
5

6
,8

5
8

0
(4

1
0

,0
0

0
)

0
0

0
0

1
,2

1
1

,0
0

0
0

3
4

5
,5

3
9

,7
2

4

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s

 a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
1

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 f
ro

m
 

R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
ts

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

5
5

,2
0

8
1

1
6

,2
8

3
1

2
1

,3
4

0
(2

,3
8

1
)

1
0

6
1

1
9

,0
6

5
2

,7
8

2
2

In
c
o

m
e

(6
4

,9
9

1
)

(1
3

,5
5

6
)

(1
6

,3
1

5
)

0
0

(1
6

,3
1

5
)

(2
,7

5
9

)
2

0
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
9

0
,2

1
7

1
0

2
,7

2
7

1
0

5
,0

2
5

(2
,3

8
1

)
1

0
6

1
0

2
,7

5
0

2
3

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,3

7
9

2
7

,6
5

3
2

8
,6

2
7

(6
5

0
)

6
1

7
2

8
,5

9
4

8
0

6
3

In
c
o

m
e

(8
,0

1
0

)
(9

,5
5

6
)

(1
0

,4
9

7
)

0
0

(1
0

,4
9

7
)

(8
0

6
)

8
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

3
,3

6
9

1
8

,0
9

7
1

8
,1

3
0

(6
5

0
)

6
1

7
1

8
,0

9
7

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

0
4

,9
9

9
3

1
5

,4
6

0
3

5
0

,1
8

5
0

0
3

5
0

,1
8

5
3

4
,7

2
5

1
1

In
c
o

m
e

(3
0

4
,9

9
8

)
(3

1
5

,4
6

0
)

(3
5

0
,1

8
5

)
0

0
(3

5
0

,1
8

5
)

(3
4

,7
2

5
)

1
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

7
3

,4
4

2
1

6
8

,9
0

9
1

9
5

,4
2

8
(1

0
9

)
7

0
1

9
5

,3
8

9
2

6
,4

8
0

1
6

In
c
o

m
e

(7
9

,5
4

9
)

(6
8

,5
7

7
)

(9
5

,0
5

7
)

0
0

(9
5

,0
5

7
)

(2
6

,4
8

0
)

3
9

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
3

,8
9

3
1

0
0

,3
3

2
1

0
0

,3
7

1
(1

0
9

)
7

0
1

0
0

,3
3

2
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
6

,0
9

7
1

2
8

,1
6

7
1

3
6

,6
5

0
(1

1
9

)
7

6
4

1
3

7
,2

9
5

9
,1

2
8

7
In

c
o

m
e

(4
1

,1
8

7
)

(4
8

,6
2

1
)

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

0
0

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

(9
,1

4
6

)
1

9
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
7

4
,9

1
0

7
9

,5
4

7
7

8
,8

8
3

(1
1

9
)

7
6

4
7

9
,5

2
8

(1
9

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

7
,0

2
4

8
6

,1
2

5
8

4
,1

7
7

0
0

8
4

,1
7

7
(1

,9
4

8
)

(2
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

,5
9

9
)

(6
8

,5
7

0
)

(6
4

,4
0

3
)

(2
,5

7
2

)
3

5
9

(6
6

,6
1

5
)

1
,9

5
5

(3
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2

,4
2

5
1

7
,5

5
5

1
9

,7
7

5
(2

,5
7

2
)

3
5

9
1

7
,5

6
2

7
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

8
9

,6
7

2
2

6
7

,7
4

6
3

2
3

,8
9

3
(6

8
9

)
0

3
2

3
,2

0
4

5
5

,4
5

8
2

1

In
c
o

m
e

(2
7

1
,3

0
9

)
(2

5
2

,3
0

9
)

(3
0

7
,8

9
4

)
0

0
(3

0
7

,8
9

4
)

(5
5

,5
8

5
)

2
2

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8

,3
6

3
1

5
,4

3
7

1
5

,9
9

9
(6

8
9

)
0

1
5

,3
1

0
(1

2
7

)
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

9
,2

4
8

1
8

,3
6

7
2

1
,4

2
9

(2
,2

5
1

)
0

1
9

,1
7

8
8

1
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,5

0
0

)
(6

,5
2

2
)

(7
,2

8
4

)
0

0
(7

,2
8

4
)

(7
6

2
)

1
2

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

,7
4

8
1

1
,8

4
5

1
4

,1
4

5
(2

,2
5

1
)

0
1

1
,8

9
4

4
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,1
0

7
,0

6
9

1
,1

2
8

,7
0

9
1

,2
6

1
,7

3
0

(6
,1

9
9

)
1

,5
5

7
1

,2
5

7
,0

8
8

1
2

8
,2

4
2

1
1

In
c
o

m
e

(7
8

6
,1

4
3

)
(7

8
3

,1
6

9
)

(9
0

9
,4

0
2

)
(2

,5
7

2
)

3
5

9
(9

1
1

,6
1

5
)

(1
2

8
,3

0
9

)
1

6
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

2
0

,9
2

6
3

4
5

,5
4

0
3

5
2

,3
2

8
(8

,7
7

1
)

1
,9

1
6

3
4

5
,4

7
3

(6
7

)
(0

)

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 (
D

S
G

)

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

T
O

T
A

L

1
 o

f 
3

3

Page 95



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
2

1
6
5

1
7
9

1
7
9

1
4

8

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
2

1
6
5

1
7
9

1
7
9

1
4

8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
2

8
2

1
3

1
3

(6
9
)

(8
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(8

2
)

(8
2
)

(1
3
)

(1
3
)

6
9

(8
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

1
9

1
,5

3
8

1
,4

9
3

1
,4

9
3

(4
5
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

2
3
)

(3
9
6
)

(3
9
6
)

2
7

(6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

1
9

1
,1

1
5

1
,0

9
7

1
,0

9
7

(1
8
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
5
9

5
2
3

1
,8

0
7

(1
,4

7
7
)

3
3
0

(1
9
3
)

(3
7
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

1
3
)

(1
7
7
)

1
7
7

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4
6

3
4
6

1
,8

0
7

(1
,4

7
7
)

3
3
0

(1
6
)

(5
)

T
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

g
ra

n
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 (

£
1
,4

7
7
k
) 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 

to
 a

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 g

ra
n
t 

in
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
s
e
 g

ra
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
f 

£
1
,8

0
7
k
 i
s
 £

1
9
3
k
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 n

o
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
lis

in
g
 o

r 
b
e
in

g
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

b
e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 

d
o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 b
a
la

n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 £

1
7
7
k
. 

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 a

 n
e
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
£
2
0
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t.

 T
h
e
 h

o
ld

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 u
ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
1
/2

0
1
2
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 g

ra
n
t 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
.

A
0
4
 P

re
v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

A
4
1
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
li

s
a
ti

o
n

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
5
3
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 M

&
A

A
0
5
 C

a
re

rs
 G

ra
n

t

2
 o

f 
3
3

Page 96



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
,9

3
9

2
4
,6

5
7

2
6
,0

3
2

(5
1
8
)

1
0
6

2
5
,6

2
0

9
6
3

4

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
9
4
)

(3
,4

2
2
)

(4
,2

0
6
)

(4
,2

0
6
)

(7
8
4
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
,2

4
5

2
1
,2

3
5

2
1
,8

2
6

(5
1
8
)

1
0
6

2
1
,4

1
4

1
7
9

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
,3

7
7

2
3
,8

1
5

2
4
,4

1
1

2
4
,4

1
1

5
9
6

3

In
c
o
m

e
(4

,2
9
0
)

(3
,7

6
6
)

(4
,6

1
8
)

(4
,6

1
8
)

(8
5
2
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
,0

8
7

2
0
,0

4
9

1
9
,7

9
3

1
9
,7

9
3

(2
5
6
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,0

0
6

9
,9

6
1

1
0
,2

7
4

1
0
,2

7
4

3
1
3

3

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,6
1
7
)

(1
,5

1
3
)

(1
,8

6
3
)

(1
,8

6
3
)

(3
5
0
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,3

8
9

8
,4

4
8

8
,4

1
1

8
,4

1
1

(3
7
)

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,6

9
2

7
,5

9
4

8
,7

2
7

(1
7
6
)

8
,5

5
1

9
5
7

1
3

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,2
8
3
)

(1
,2

8
3
)

(2
,4

0
5
)

(2
,4

0
5
)

(1
,1

2
2
)

8
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
,4

0
9

6
,3

1
1

6
,3

2
2

(1
7
6
)

6
,1

4
6

(1
6
5
)

(3
)

T
h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 A
s
 t

h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 u

n
d
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
 n

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 

m
a
n
y
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 

h
o
m

e
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
g
a
n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 

n
e
w

 c
lie

n
ts

.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 p
re

s
s
u
re

s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
 c

a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

. 
 A

s
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 u

n
d
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
 n

e
t 

c
o
s
t 

o
f 

m
a
n
y
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 

h
o
m

e
 i
s
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
a
n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g
 

te
rm

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 c
lie

n
ts

.

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

to
 f

u
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
e
lo

w
.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 c

lie
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

w
o
 v

e
ry

 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

 f
ro

m
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 m

ix
 o

f 
ty

p
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
.

A
4
2
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

A
4
3
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

A
4
5
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

A
4
4
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

3
 o

f 
3
3

Page 97



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
0

2
5
9

2
4
5

2
4
5

(1
4
)

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
1
)

(1
5
1
)

(1
5
1
)

(1
5
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
9

1
0
8

9
4

9
4

(1
4
)

(1
3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
,7

5
2

1
5
,4

5
1

1
5
,7

3
9

1
5
,7

3
9

2
8
8

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
,6

5
0
)

(1
6
5
)

1
6
5

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
2

1
5
,2

8
6

1
5
,7

3
9

1
5
,7

3
9

4
5
3

3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
2
1

5
8
2

5
9
4

5
9
4

1
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

7
5
)

(1
7
9
)

(1
7
9
)

(4
)

2
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
2
1

4
0
7

4
1
5

4
1
5

8
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
8
8

3
8
8

3
8
8

3
8
8

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8
8

3
8
8

3
8
8

3
8
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
4
4

6
5
0

6
7
4

6
7
4

2
4

4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

)
(1

)
(4

0
)

(4
0
)

(3
9
)

3
,9

0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4
3

6
4
9

6
3
4

6
3
4

(1
5
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9
5

8
3
7

6
6
6

6
6
6

(1
7
1
)

(2
0
)

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
9
5

8
3
7

6
6
6

6
6
6

(1
7
1
)

(2
0
)

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
a
s
 £

3
3
k
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

o
 u

ti
lis

e
 £

4
2
0
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
. 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 

m
a
te

ri
a
lis

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
in

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 

it
 w

a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 f
o
r 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

M
e
m

b
e
r'
s
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

a
fe

 g
u
a
rd

 p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

.

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
p
 s

lic
e
d
 a

ll 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 

a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
b
a
la

n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
a
s
 

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 v

o
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

th
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
1
7
1
k
.

A
5
6
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 I

.T
.

A
5
0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

A
4
6
 H

IV
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

A
5
5
 Q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

A
5
8
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

A
5
9
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
 o

f 
3
3

Page 98



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
9
9

8
6
5

1
,1

9
3

(2
1
0
)

9
8
3

1
1
8

1
4

In
c
o
m

e
(3

8
6
)

(4
2
7
)

(4
2
7
)

(4
1
)

1
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9
9

4
7
9

7
6
6

(2
1
0
)

5
5
6

7
7

1
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
7
9

4
5
9

4
6
3

4
6
3

4
1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

1
0
)

(1
1
1
)

(8
2
)

(8
2
)

2
9

(2
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
6
9

3
4
8

3
8
1

3
8
1

3
3

9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
8
,0

8
4

8
7
,8

2
6

9
2
,8

9
8

(2
,3

8
1
)

1
0
6

9
0
,6

2
3

2
,7

9
7

3

In
c
o
m

e
(2

7
,3

9
1
)

(1
1
,6

5
5
)

(1
4
,3

8
0
)

(1
4
,3

8
0
)

(2
,7

2
5
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
0
,6

9
3

7
6
,1

7
1

7
8
,5

1
8

(2
,3

8
1
)

1
0
6

7
6
,2

4
3

7
2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
8

1
6
8

1
7
1

1
7
1

3
2

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
8

1
6
8

1
7
1

1
7
1

3
2

A
0
8
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
2
0

4
0
2

3
9
9

3
9
9

(3
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
2
0

4
0
2

3
9
9

3
9
9

(3
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,0

9
7

2
,1

1
9

2
,1

0
8

2
,1

0
8

(1
1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

1
2
)

(7
6
)

(7
6
)

3
6

(3
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,0

9
7

2
,0

0
7

2
,0

3
2

2
,0

3
2

2
5

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
9

1
5
5

1
3
3

1
3
3

(2
2
)

(1
4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
9
)

(5
9
)

(9
)

1
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
9

1
0
5

7
4

7
4

(3
1
)

(3
0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

7
5

1
,1

4
9

1
,1

3
3

1
,1

3
3

(1
6
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

2
)

(1
6
7
)

(1
7
1
)

(1
7
1
)

(4
)

2
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

2
3

9
8
2

9
6
2

9
6
2

(2
0
)

(2
)

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-I
 P

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

w
a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
y
 r

is
k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
, 

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-I
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

 A
6
2
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
o

li
c
y

A
6
1
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 P
ro

g
. 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

A
1
2
 P

.D
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 &

 C
a
re

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

A
1
1
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

 M
&

A
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 &

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
3
8
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d

A
0
9
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 &

 C
a
re

 M
n

g
m

t.

5
 o

f 
3
3

Page 99



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
3
5

4
1
7

4
4
5

4
4
5

2
8

7

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
7
)

(3
6
)

(3
9
)

(3
9
)

(3
)

8
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0
8

3
8
1

4
0
6

4
0
6

2
5

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

4
7

1
,3

4
2

1
,3

8
4

1
,3

8
4

4
2

3

In
c
o
m

e
(5

3
)

(1
0
0
)

(1
0
0
)

(4
7
)

8
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,3

4
7

1
,2

8
9

1
,2

8
4

1
,2

8
4

(5
)

(0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
2

9
8

9
2

9
2

(6
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0
2

9
8

9
2

9
2

(6
)

(6
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
7
2

5
7
8

5
5
3

5
5
3

(2
5
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

)
(1

)
(3

)
(3

)
(2

)
2
0
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
7
1

5
7
7

5
5
0

5
5
0

(2
7
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

6
8

1
,7

1
2

1
,7

3
4

1
,7

3
4

2
2

1

In
c
o
m

e
(3

7
)

(3
7
)

(5
2
)

(5
2
)

(1
5
)

4
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

3
1

1
,6

7
5

1
,6

8
2

1
,6

8
2

7
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,0

9
7

6
,6

9
7

6
,7

0
7

6
,7

0
7

1
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

7
)

(9
7
)

(5
2
)

(5
2
)

4
5

(4
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,0

0
0

6
,6

0
0

6
,6

5
5

6
,6

5
5

5
5

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
,2

9
0

1
4
,8

3
7

1
4
,8

5
9

1
4
,8

5
9

2
2

0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

1
4
)

(5
5
3
)

(5
5
2
)

(5
5
2
)

1
(0

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
,9

7
6

1
4
,2

8
4

1
4
,3

0
7

0
0

1
4
,3

0
7

2
3

0

A
0
2
 D

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s
 &

 H
e
a
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

M
&

A
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
5

1
7
5

1
6
4

1
6
4

(1
1
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
5

1
7
5

1
6
4

1
6
4

(1
1
)

(6
)

A
1
3
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

 S
u

b
 D

iv
is

io
n

 M
&

A
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0

8
3

8
3

8
3

In
c
o
m

e
(3

5
)

(3
5
)

(3
5
)

(3
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

4
8

4
8

4
8

A
1
7
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 D
ru

g
s

A
1
8
 H

o
s
p

it
a
l 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
e
a
m

s

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

A
3
3
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 D
a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

A
3
4
 H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

A
3
1
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 E

s
ta

b
li

s
h

m
e
n

ts

A
3
0
 A

d
u

lt
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

 M
&

A

6
 o

f 
3
3

Page 100



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
1
4
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

 A
s
s
e
s
s
 &

 C
a
re

 M
n

g
m

t

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
8
9

1
,1

0
4

8
4
8

8
4
8

(2
5
6
)

(2
3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(7

9
)

(2
5
6
)

(1
2
8
)

(1
2
8
)

1
2
8

(5
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
1
0

8
4
8

7
2
0

7
2
0

(1
2
8
)

(1
5
)

 A
1
5
 O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

4
8

1
,8

8
2

1
,8

6
0

1
,8

6
0

(2
2
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
)

(1
4
4
)

(1
4
4
)

(1
1
0
)

3
2
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

4
8

1
,8

4
8

1
,7

1
6

1
,7

1
6

(1
3
2
)

(7
)

A
1
6
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
1
9

1
,0

7
9

1
,1

4
5

1
,1

4
5

6
6

6

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
0
)

(1
6
0
)

(1
6
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1
9

9
1
9

9
8
5

9
8
5

6
6

7

A
1
9
 A

d
u

lt
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9
1

3
0
6

2
8
9

2
8
9

(1
7
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

2
)

(4
2
)

(4
8
)

(4
8
)

(6
)

1
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4
9

2
6
4

2
4
1

2
4
1

(2
3
)

(9
)

A
2
3
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3

8
3

9
1

9
1

8
1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(8

1
)

(8
1
)

(9
0
)

(9
0
)

(9
)

1
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
2

1
1

(1
)

(5
0
)

A
2
4
 A

re
a
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 T

e
a
m

s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,8

6
5

2
,7

9
8

2
,9

2
0

2
,9

2
0

1
2
2

4

In
c
o
m

e
(4

3
3
)

(4
9
2
)

(5
1
9
)

(5
1
9
)

(2
7
)

5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

3
2

2
,3

0
6

2
,4

0
1

2
,4

0
1

9
5

4

T
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 p
o
o
le

d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
it
h
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
e
 n

e
t 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 £

6
0
k
. 

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
h
e
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
a
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
l 
re

c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 7

5
 p

o
o
le

d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

y
e
a
r.

It
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
th

e
ra

p
y
 

p
o
o
le

d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

llo
w

e
d
 f

o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 b
o
th

 o
f 

th
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

s
 w

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
 a

s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t.

 A
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

s
 w

e
re

 

fu
lly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f

ro
m

 b
o
th

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

E
a
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t.

  
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
to

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

7
 o

f 
3
3

Page 101



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
2
5
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
9
6

5
0
7

5
1
8

5
1
8

1
1

2

In
c
o
m

e
(3

4
)

(3
4
)

(2
3
)

(2
3
)

1
1

(3
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6
2

4
7
3

4
9
5

4
9
5

2
2

5

A
3
2
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
5
7

4
5
7

4
3
2

4
3
2

(2
5
)

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

)
(5

)
(5

)
(5

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
5
2

4
5
2

4
2
7

4
2
7

(2
5
)

(6
)

A
3
7
 E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 S
e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
4

3
3
3

4
3
0

4
3
0

9
7

2
9

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
)

(2
1
)

(2
1
)

(1
)

5
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5
4

3
1
3

4
0
9

4
0
9

9
6

3
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,3

6
7

8
,8

0
7

8
,7

8
0

8
,7

8
0

(2
7
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(7

0
9
)

(1
,1

5
9
)

(1
,1

7
3
)

(1
,1

7
3
)

(1
4
)

1
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,6

5
8

7
,6

4
8

7
,6

0
7

0
0

7
,6

0
7

(4
1
)

(1
)

A
6
6
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
7

5
8
7

5
8
7

5
8
7

In
c
o
m

e
(1

5
0
)

(1
5
0
)

(1
5
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
8
7

4
3
7

4
3
7

4
3
7

 A
6
8
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6

1
8

1
7

1
7

(1
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6

1
8

1
7

1
7

(1
)

(6
)

A
7
1
 F

in
a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

9
5

7
9
5

7
7
6

7
7
6

(1
9
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

9
)

(3
9
)

(6
0
)

(6
0
)

(2
1
)

5
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

5
6

7
5
6

7
1
6

7
1
6

(4
0
)

(5
)

A
7
2
 P

a
y
ro

ll
 O

n
 c

o
s
t

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
9

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
9

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 &

 H
e
a
lt

h

8
 o

f 
3
3

Page 102



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

A
9
0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
/C

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

7
2

3
,4

1
3

3
,4

2
3

3
,4

2
3

1
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

7
2

3
,4

1
3

3
,4

2
3

3
,4

2
3

1
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
7
,8

5
0

1
1
6
,2

8
3

1
2
1
,3

4
0

(2
,3

8
1
)

1
0
6

1
1
9
,0

6
5

2
,7

8
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(2

8
,4

5
3
)

(1
3
,5

5
6
)

(1
6
,3

1
5
)

(1
6
,3

1
5
)

(2
,7

5
9
)

2
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9
,3

9
7

1
0
2
,7

2
7

1
0
5
,0

2
5

(2
,3

8
1
)

1
0
6

1
0
2
,7

5
0

2
3

0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
7
,3

5
8

In
c
o
m

e
(3

6
,5

3
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
2
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
5
,2

0
8

In
c
o
m

e
(6

4
,9

9
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0
,2

1
7

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 

W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
to

 D
 a

n
d

 R

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
D

U
L

T
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 W

E
L

L
B

E
IN

G

9
 o

f 
3
3

Page 103



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1
1

1
0

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
ie

s
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

2
8

3
,0

9
0

3
,3

9
5

3
,3

9
5

3
0
5

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
4
5
)

(3
,6

1
6
)

(3
,4

0
7
)

(3
,4

0
7
)

2
0
9

(6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
1
7
)

(5
2
6
)

(1
2
)

(1
2
)

5
1
4

(9
8
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

2
8

3
,0

9
0

3
,3

9
5

3
,3

9
5

3
0
5

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
4
5
)

(3
,6

1
6
)

(3
,4

0
7
)

(3
,4

0
7
)

2
0
9

(6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
1
7
)

(5
2
6
)

(1
2
)

0
0

0
(1

2
)

5
1
4

(9
8
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
1
9

8
4
7

8
4
9

3
5

8
8
4

3
7

4

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
)

(4
4
)

(4
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
1
9

8
4
7

8
0
5

3
5

8
4
0

(7
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,9

0
6

5
,3

0
1

5
,6

9
9

8
8

5
,7

8
7

4
8
6

9

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

(6
6
9
)

(6
6
9
)

(6
1
9
)

1
,2

3
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,8

5
6

5
,2

5
1

5
,0

3
0

8
8

5
,1

1
8

(1
3
3
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

5
1

1
,0

6
9

1
4
4

1
,2

1
3

6
2

5

In
c
o
m

e
(2

2
8
)

(2
2
8
)

(2
2
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

5
1

8
4
1

1
4
4

9
8
5

(1
6
6
)

(1
4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

3
1

1
,8

1
3

1
5
3

1
,9

6
6

1
3
5

7

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
3
1
)

(1
,9

6
6
)

(1
,9

6
6
)

(1
3
5
)

7
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

5
3
)

1
5
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
3

1
0

1
0

(2
3
)

(7
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

1
0

1
0

(2
3
)

(7
0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,5

2
5

9
,1

6
3

9
,4

4
0

4
2
0

9
,8

6
0

6
9
7

8

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(1
,8

8
1
)

(2
,9

0
7
)

(2
,9

0
7
)

(1
,0

2
6
)

5
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

7
5

7
,2

8
2

6
,5

3
3

0
4
2
0

0
6
,9

5
3

(3
2
9
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,8

6
2

4
,0

8
6

3
,8

4
9

1
4
2

3
,9

9
1

(9
5
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
5
4
)

(3
,6

0
3
)

(3
,5

2
8
)

(3
,5

2
8
)

7
5

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
8

4
8
3

3
2
1

1
4
2

4
6
3

(2
0
)

(4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
0
0

6
3
1

1
,4

6
9

(6
5
0
)

8
1
9

1
8
8

3
0

In
c
o
m

e
1
1
7

1
1
7

1
1
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
0
0

6
3
1

1
,5

8
6

(6
5
0
)

9
3
6

3
0
5

4
8

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

C
1
8
  
T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
T

e
a
m

 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

C
1
6
  
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

C
1
4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 &
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP

C
2
2
  
L

A
P

 M
e
n

u
s

C
2
1
  
H

e
a
lt

h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s

C
2
0
  
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

C
5
8
  
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

C
5
2
  
L

e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
d
 u

n
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 m
a
rk

e
t 

a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

s
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
  

e
x
e
rt

e
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

  
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
 I
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

n
d
e
rw

e
n
t 
a
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
's

 

le
a
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

  
o
f 
E

a
s
t 
E

n
d
 L

if
e
 n

e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r 

(E
E

L
) 

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
in

 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 T
h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
F

u
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
-

1
1
.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 "

w
in

d
in

g
 u

p
" 

o
f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
E

le
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
o
r'
s
 

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 O

c
t 
1
0
.

1
0
 o

f 
3
3

Page 104



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

R
e
d

u
n

d
a
n

c
ie

s
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0

5
5

4
9

4
9

(6
)

(1
1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

)
(6

)
(6

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0

5
5

4
3

4
3

(1
2
)

(2
2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,4

9
2

4
,7

7
2

5
,3

6
7

(6
5
0
)

1
4
2

4
,8

5
9

8
7

2

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,6
5
4
)

(3
,6

0
3
)

(3
,4

1
7
)

(3
,4

1
7
)

1
8
6

(5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
8

1
,1

6
9

1
,9

5
0

(6
5
0
)

1
4
2

0
1
,4

4
2

2
7
3

2
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

5
0

1
,9

2
9

1
,9

6
3

1
,9

6
3

3
4

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
2
)

(9
)

(1
3
4
)

(1
3
4
)

(1
2
5
)

1
,3

8
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
8

1
,9

2
0

1
,8

2
9

1
,8

2
9

(9
1
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

5
0

1
,9

2
9

1
,9

6
3

1
,9

6
3

3
4

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
2
)

(9
)

(1
3
4
)

(1
3
4
)

(1
2
5
)

1
,3

8
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
8

1
,9

2
0

1
,8

2
9

0
0

0
1
,8

2
9

(9
1
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

4
5

1
,0

6
4

9
6
4

5
5

1
,0

1
9

(4
5
)

(4
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

9
3
)

(3
8
9
)

(5
9
4
)

(5
9
4
)

(2
0
5
)

5
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
5
2

6
7
5

3
7
0

5
5

4
2
5

(2
5
0
)

(3
7
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

8
9

2
,6

6
1

2
,8

7
1

2
,8

7
1

2
1
0

8

In
c
o
m

e
(2

6
3
)

(7
)

(2
0
)

(2
0
)

(1
3
)

1
8
6

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

2
6

2
,6

5
4

2
,8

5
1

2
,8

5
1

1
9
7

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3
0

8
8
6

8
8
6

8
8
6

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
0

8
8
6

8
8
6

8
8
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,5

6
4

4
,6

1
1

4
,7

2
1

5
5

4
,7

7
6

1
6
5

4

In
c
o
m

e
(6

5
6
)

(3
9
6
)

(6
1
4
)

(6
1
4
)

(2
1
8
)

5
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,9

0
8

4
,2

1
5

4
,1

0
7

0
5
5

0
4
,1

6
2

(5
3
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,6

2
0

4
,0

8
8

3
,7

4
1

3
,7

4
1

(3
4
7
)

(8
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
3
)

(5
1
)

(1
8
)

(1
8
)

3
3

(6
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

5
7

4
,0

3
7

3
,7

2
3

3
,7

2
3

(3
1
4
)

(8
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,3

7
9

2
7
,6

5
3

2
8
,6

2
7

(6
5
0
)

6
1
7

2
8
,5

9
4

8
0
6

3

In
c
o
m

e
(8

,0
1
0
)

(9
,5

5
6
)

(1
0
,4

9
7
)

(1
0
,4

9
7
)

(8
0
6
)

8
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,3

6
9

1
8
,0

9
7

1
8
,1

3
0

(6
5
0
)

6
1
7

0
1
8
,0

9
7

0
1
1

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

G
A

L
 &

 E
L

E
C

T
O

R
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
6
0
  
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 E

le
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 &

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
R

S
 

C
8
0
  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

C
7
8
  
D

e
m

o
 R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 &
 M

g
t 

C
6
2
  
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
5
6
  
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
ir

th
s
, 
D

e
a
th

s
 

C
5
4
  
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 &

 E
Q

U
A

L
IT

IE
S

L
o
w

e
r 

ta
k
e
-u

p
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

H
is

to
ri

c
 u

n
d
e
r-

b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

p
ri

n
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t
o
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 
a
p
p
li
e
d
 b

u
t 

in
s
te

a
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
fi
c
it
 i
n
 y

e
a
r.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 "

p
re

v
e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
" 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
.

1
1
 o

f 
3
3

Page 105



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 f
ro

m
 

R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 
A

m
o

u
n

t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,7
9

5
6

,8
0

7
6

,1
8

8
6

,1
8

8
(6

1
9

)
(9

)

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

2
)

(3
,0

0
4

)
(3

,7
4

3
)

(3
,7

4
3

)
(7

3
9

)
2

5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

9
3

3
,8

0
3

2
,4

4
5

2
,4

4
5

(1
,3

5
8

)
(3

6
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

4
2

,1
3

9
1

4
5

,3
0

8
1

6
0

,2
1

2
1

6
0

,2
1

2
1

4
,9

0
4

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
8

,0
2

5
)

(2
1

,0
5

8
)

(3
6

,4
9

0
)

(3
6

,4
9

0
)

(1
5

,4
3

2
)

7
3

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2

4
,1

1
4

1
2

4
,2

5
0

1
2

3
,7

2
2

1
2

3
,7

2
2

(5
2

8
)

(0
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

2
1

,5
6

5
1

2
5

,7
7

1
1

4
0

,8
0

9
1

4
0

,8
0

9
1

5
,0

3
8

1
2

In
c
o

m
e

(3
0

,1
9

4
)

(3
4

,5
0

7
)

(4
8

,5
9

4
)

(4
8

,5
9

4
)

(1
4

,0
8

7
)

4
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
1

,3
7

1
9

1
,2

6
4

9
2

,2
1

5
9

2
,2

1
5

9
5

1
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

2
3

4
2

1
2

,1
1

5
1

7
,8

0
1

1
7

,8
0

1
5

,6
8

6
4

7

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,9

8
4

)
(1

,7
0

2
)

(6
,3

9
9

)
(6

,3
9

9
)

(4
,6

9
7

)
2

7
6

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

,3
5

8
1

0
,4

1
3

1
1

,4
0

2
1

1
,4

0
2

9
8

9
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,2
0

4
4

,3
5

0
4

,3
6

8
4

,3
6

8
1

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,1

8
4

)
(1

,0
9

2
)

(1
,1

2
7

)
(1

,1
2

7
)

(3
5

)
3

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

2
0

3
,2

5
8

3
,2

4
1

3
,2

4
1

(1
7

)
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

6
3

2
6

3
3

1
1

3
1

1
4

8
1

8

In
c
o

m
e

(4
8

)
(4

8
)

(4
8

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6

3
2

6
3

2
6

3
2

6
3

G
2

9
  

P
u

p
il

 R
e

fe
rr

a
l 

U
n

it

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,7
9

7
4

,9
0

5
5

,2
6

6
5

,2
6

6
3

6
1

7

In
c
o

m
e

(9
1

3
)

(1
,0

2
1

)
(1

,0
8

0
)

(1
,0

8
0

)
(5

9
)

6

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,8

8
4

3
,8

8
4

4
,1

8
6

4
,1

8
6

3
0

2
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

9
5

6
9

9
7

0
3

7
0

3
4

1

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9

5
6

9
9

7
0

3
7

0
3

4
1

H
1

1
  

E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

S
G

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,3
9

6
2

,8
8

5
3

,0
6

5
3

,0
6

5
1

8
0

6

In
c
o

m
e

(2
0

6
)

(2
0

6
)

(2
0

6
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

9
6

2
,8

8
5

2
,8

5
9

2
,8

5
9

(2
6

)
(1

)

H
1

6
  

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 N
e

e
d

s
 D

S
G

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

,1
9

1
8

,1
9

1
7

,1
3

6
7

,1
3

6
(1

,0
5

5
)

(1
3

)

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,4

2
7

)
(2

,4
2

7
)

(2
,2

1
9

)
(2

,2
1

9
)

2
0

8
(9

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,7

6
4

5
,7

6
4

4
,9

1
7

4
,9

1
7

(8
4

7
)

(1
5

)

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 

th
e

 0
9

/1
0

 r
e

c
o

u
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

S
c
h

o
o

l 

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 g
iv

in
g

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
. 

 C
o

n
v
e

rs
e

ly
, 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

c
o

u
p

m
e

n
t 

in
c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 

0
9

/1
0

. 
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 n

e
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 v
o

te
 

o
f 

a
p

p
ro

x
 £

2
2

1
K

.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 D
S

G

G
1

7
  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 F
o

r 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

e
rv

 D
S

G

G
2

8
  

E
d

u
c

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 D
S

G

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 n

il 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
n

 

D
S

G
 o

v
e

ra
ll

E
n

d
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

O
v
e

r-
s
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
£

1
3

2
,0

0
0

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 

th
re

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
:

• 
£

2
0

k
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 h
e

a
d

 

te
a

c
h

e
r

• 
U

n
fu

n
d

e
d

 p
u

p
il 

p
la

c
e

s
: 

m
e

d
ic

a
l 
h

o
m

e
 t

u
it
io

n
; 

F
A

P
 (

F
a

ir
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 P

ro
to

c
o

l)
 p

u
p

ils
 e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 s

ta
y
 

• 
R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 C
a

b
le

 S
tr

e
e

t 
m

o
v
e

 a
n

d
 

H
e

n
ri

q
u

e
s
 S

t.
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

u
p

ils
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 D
S

G

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 D

S
G

H
1

0
  

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
m

't
 M

 &
 A

 D
S

G

1
2

 o
f 

3
3

Page 106



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 f
ro

m
 

R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 
A

m
o

u
n

t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s

id
e

re
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 A

N
D

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

(D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t)

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

H
1

8
  

E
d

u
c

 P
s

y
c

h
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

 D
S

G
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

2
8

1
2

8
1

2
8

1
2

8

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2

8
1

2
8

1
2

8
1

2
8

H
2

7
  

1
4

-1
9

 Y
e

a
rs

 D
S

G
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

9
0

5
9

0
6

4
4

6
4

4
5

4
9

In
c
o

m
e

(3
7

8
)

(7
7

)
(1

0
8

)
(1

0
8

)
(3

1
)

4
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1

2
5

1
3

5
3

6
5

3
6

2
3

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

0
1

5
5

6
6

2
4

6
2

4
6

8
1

2

In
c
o

m
e

(6
6

)
(6

6
)

(1
3

8
)

(1
3

8
)

(7
2

)
1

0
9

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
3

5
4

9
0

4
8

6
4

8
6

(4
)

(1
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,2

6
5

2
2

,5
6

7
2

2
,2

4
5

2
2

,2
4

5
(3

2
2

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,9

6
8

)
(4

,6
8

3
)

(4
,9

2
6

)
(4

,9
2

6
)

(2
4

3
)

5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6

,2
9

7
1

7
,8

8
4

1
7

,3
1

9
0

0
1

7
,3

1
9

(5
6

5
)

(3
)

H
5

5
  

C
h

il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k

e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

D
S

G
E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

7
9

2
7

9
2

7
6

2
7

6
(3

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7

9
2

7
9

2
7

6
2

7
6

(3
)

(1
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

3
4

3
3

4
3

3
1

3
3

1
(3

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

4
3

3
4

3
3

1
0

0
3

3
1

(3
)

(1
)

H
6

8
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 D

S
G

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

In
c
o

m
e

(2
4

9
,3

2
5

)
(2

5
0

,5
0

6
)

(2
5

0
,0

3
3

)
(2

5
0

,0
3

3
)

4
7

3
(0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
4

9
,3

2
5

)
(2

5
0

,5
0

6
)

(2
5

0
,0

3
3

)
(2

5
0

,0
3

3
)

4
7

3
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,1
4

2
1

,1
4

1
1

,1
8

2
1

,1
8

2
4

1
4

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

4
2

1
,1

4
1

1
,1

8
2

1
,1

8
2

4
1

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

6
7

8
6

7
8

6
7

8
6

7

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
6

7
8

6
7

8
6

7
8

6
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,0
0

9
2

,0
0

8
2

,0
4

9
2

,0
4

9
4

1
2

In
c
o

m
e

(2
4

9
,3

2
5

)
(2

5
0

,5
0

6
)

(2
5

0
,0

3
3

)
(2

5
0

,0
3

3
)

4
7

3
(0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(2
4

7
,3

1
6

)
(2

4
8

,4
9

8
)

(2
4

7
,9

8
4

)
0

0
(2

4
7

,9
8

4
)

5
1

4
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

5
0

5
5

0
5

5
0

5
5

0

In
c
o

m
e

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5

0
5

5
0

5
5

0
5

5
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 B
U

D
G

E
T

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

0
4

,9
9

9
3

1
5

,4
6

0
3

5
0

,1
8

5
3

5
0

,1
8

5
3

4
,7

2
5

1
1

(D
S

G
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
0

4
,9

9
8

)
(3

1
5

,4
6

0
)

(3
5

0
,1

8
5

)
(3

5
0

,1
8

5
)

(3
4

,7
2

5
)

1
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

H
8

3
  

C
S

F
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 D
S

G

T
O

T
A

L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 F
U

T
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

H
7

8
  

P
u

p
il

 A
d

m
is

s
io

n
s

 &
 E

x
c

l 
D

S
G

H
6

2
  

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 &

 W
e

lf
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

H
7

9
  

C
S

F
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
D

S
G

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 &

 A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

1
3

 o
f 

3
3

Page 107



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1
1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
4

4
0

4
0

4
0

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
4

4
0

4
0

4
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,0

0
3

4
,5

6
4

4
,5

6
4

4
,5

6
4

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,0

0
3

4
,5

6
4

4
,5

6
4

4
,5

6
4

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
E

C
O

N
D

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 G

F
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,3

3
8

4
,7

6
8

4
,7

7
5

4
,7

7
5

7
0

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,3

3
8

4
,7

6
8

4
,7

7
5

4
,7

7
5

7
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
8
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
8
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

7
3
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
3
6

5
0
6

3
3
0

3
3
0

(1
7
6
)

(3
5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

4
1
)

(2
4
1
)

(2
4
1
)

(2
4
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9
5

2
6
5

8
9

8
9

(1
7
6
)

(6
6
)

G
1
1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 G

F
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,8

6
6

5
,3

1
2

4
,9

6
2

4
,9

6
2

(3
5
0
)

(7
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(6

,1
7
4
)

(5
,0

6
2
)

(4
,6

5
7
)

(4
,6

5
7
)

4
0
5

(8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
9
2

2
5
0

3
0
5

3
0
5

5
5

2
2

G
1
2
  
L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 D

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

1
5

2
,8

6
2

2
,9

0
2

2
,9

0
2

4
0

1

  
In

c
o
m

e
(9

9
)

(4
5
0
)

(4
9
3
)

(4
9
3
)

(4
3
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,9

1
6

2
,4

1
2

2
,4

0
9

2
,4

0
9

(3
)

(0
)

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

E
-P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 G

F

G
1
0
  
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
M

 &
 A

 

G
F

1
4
 o

f 
3
3

Page 108



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
1
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4
,0

1
4

1
2
,7

4
8

1
2
,7

9
8

1
2
,7

9
8

5
0

0

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

3
,4

5
9
)

(1
2
,1

8
2
)

(1
2
,2

3
2
)

(1
2
,2

3
2
)

(5
0
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
5
5

5
6
6

5
6
6

5
6
6

G
1
4
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,6

1
6

3
,4

3
4

1
,9

2
9

1
,9

2
9

(1
,5

0
5
)

(4
4
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(3

,1
8
2
)

(2
,9

9
9
)

(1
,5

2
4
)

(1
,5

2
4
)

1
,4

7
5

(4
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
3
4

4
3
5

4
0
5

4
0
5

(3
0
)

(7
)

G
1
6
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

e
e
d

s
 G

F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,5

7
9

4
,7

3
9

5
,0

9
8

5
,0

9
8

3
5
9

8

  

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
5
)

(1
4
5
)

(2
7
2
)

(2
7
2
)

(1
2
7
)

8
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

3
4

4
,5

9
4

4
,8

2
6

4
,8

2
6

2
3
2

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

6
2

1
,7

5
0

1
,7

9
0

1
,7

9
0

4
0

2

In
c
o
m

e
(8

6
4
)

(8
6
4
)

(8
5
9
)

(8
5
9
)

5
(1

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9
8

8
8
6

9
3
1

9
3
1

4
5

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
5

2
4
5

3
4
7

3
4
7

1
0
2

4
2

In
c
o
m

e
(6

3
)

(6
3
)

(6
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
4
5

2
4
5

2
8
4

2
8
4

3
9

1
6

G
2
1
  
O

n
e
 O

'C
lo

c
k
 C

lu
b

s
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
7

2
9
9

3
2
4

3
2
4

2
5

8

In
c
o
m

e
(2

4
9
)

(2
7
4
)

(2
7
4
)

(2
5
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
7
7

5
0

5
0

5
0

G
2
2
  
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

w
a
rd

s
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
7
8

3
7
8

3
4
8

3
4
8

(3
0
)

(8
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(4

0
)

(3
9
)

(4
1
)

(4
1
)

(2
)

5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3
8

3
3
9

3
0
7

3
0
7

(3
2
)

(9
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

9
8

3
,9

1
1

2
,7

7
7

2
,7

7
7

(1
,1

3
4
)

(2
9
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,0
7
5
)

(2
,6

9
2
)

(1
,7

3
0
)

(1
,7

3
0
)

9
6
2

(3
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

2
3

1
,2

1
9

1
,0

4
7

1
,0

4
7

(1
7
2
)

(1
4
)

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

te
m

s
 f

ro
m

 a
 r

e
-s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
S

IP
 c

o
s
ts

.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

.

T
h
is

 v
o
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
b
y 

a
p
p
ro

x
 £

1
8
2
K

 a
s
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
n
o
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 

S
E

N
, 
b
u
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
P

u
p
il 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
f 

N
u
rs

e
ry

 a
g
e
d
 p

u
p
il 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 
D

u
e
 t
o
 

a
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
n
u
rs

e
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la

c
e
s
, 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

d
ra

m
a
ti
c
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 b
e
in

g
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
w

a
s
 a

n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 

£
3
3
0
,0

0
0
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 t
o
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
t 
£
6
0
5
,0

0
0
.

G
1
8
  
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y
 S

e
rv

 

G
F

G
2
0
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 &

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

G
2
6
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

S
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

1
5
 o

f 
3
3

Page 109



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
2
7
  
1
4
 t

o
 1

9
 Y

e
a
r 

G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

3
4

3
,0

2
0

3
,3

3
8

3
,3

3
8

3
1
8

1
1

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,8
5
3
)

(5
5
7
)

(8
7
5
)

(8
7
5
)

(3
1
8
)

5
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

8
1

2
,4

6
3

2
,4

6
3

2
,4

6
3

G
3
0
  
A

rt
s
 &

 M
u

s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,4

0
5

1
,3

4
9

1
,0

9
7

1
,0

9
7

(2
5
2
)

(1
9
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,4
0
5
)

(1
,3

4
9
)

(1
,0

9
6
)

(1
,0

9
6
)

2
5
3

(1
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1

1

G
3
3
  
E

-L
e
a
rn

in
g

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
7
0

1
,1

8
1

7
2
5

7
2
5

(4
5
6
)

(3
9
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

5
1
)

(7
8
5
)

(3
7
4
)

(3
7
4
)

4
1
1

(5
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
1
9

3
9
6

3
5
1

3
5
1

(4
5
)

(1
1
)

G
3
4
  
E

x
c
e
ll
e
n

c
e
 I
n

 C
it

ie
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
3
4

3
7
7

2
1
6

2
1
6

(1
6
1
)

(4
3
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

3
4
)

(2
5
7
)

(1
7
5
)

(1
7
5
)

8
2

(3
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
0
0

1
2
0

4
1

4
1

(7
9
)

(6
6
)

G
3
5
  
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 &
 T

ra
in

in
g

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,4

0
1

6
,9

7
5

6
,9

7
5

6
,9

7
5

In
c
o
m

e
(1

0
,4

0
1
)

(6
,9

7
5
)

(6
,9

7
5
)

(6
,9

7
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

H
1
7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
1
3

6
9
4

6
4
8

(5
1
)

5
9
7

(9
7
)

(1
4
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(7

7
)

(5
5
8
)

(5
5
8
)

(5
5
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
3
6

1
3
6

9
0

(5
1
)

3
9

(9
7
)

(7
1
)

G
7
8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 E
x
c
ls

 G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
2
8

5
8
3

6
0
4

6
0
4

2
1

4

  
In

c
o
m

e
(4

1
0
)

(5
1
8
)

(5
1
0
)

(5
1
0
)

8
(2

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
1
8

6
5

9
4

9
4

2
9

4
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
5
,7

7
1

5
0
,3

6
3

4
7
,2

0
8

(5
1
)

4
7
,1

5
7

(3
,2

0
6
)

(6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

0
,9

1
0
)

(3
5
,9

2
2
)

(3
2
,9

4
9
)

(3
2
,9

4
9
)

2
,9

7
3

(8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
,8

6
1

1
4
,4

4
1

1
4
,2

5
9

(5
1
)

0
1
4
,2

0
8

(2
3
3
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
6
4

2
8
5

2
6
5

2
6
5

(2
0
)

(7
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6
4

2
8
5

2
6
4

2
6
4

(2
1
)

(7
)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 

A
C

H
IE

V
E

M
E

N
T

G
3
7
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 

M
&

A

1
6
 o

f 
3
3

Page 110



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

6
3

2
,0

6
6

2
,0

6
2

2
,0

6
2

(4
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,0
5
9
)

(6
2
3
)

(6
3
8
)

(6
3
8
)

(1
5
)

2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
0
4

1
,4

4
3

1
,4

2
4

1
,4

2
4

(1
9
)

(1
)

G
3
9
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,3

6
8

1
0
,7

6
5

1
0
,7

7
1

1
0
,7

7
1

6
0

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

,3
0
9
)

(1
,4

4
8
)

(1
,4

5
4
)

(1
,4

5
4
)

(6
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
,0

5
9

9
,3

1
7

9
,3

1
7

9
,3

1
7

G
4
0
  
J
u

n
io

r 
Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

3
7

1
,3

3
7

1
,3

2
6

1
,3

2
6

(1
1
)

(1
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

1
5
)

(2
1
5
)

(2
3
5
)

(2
3
5
)

(2
0
)

9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

2
2

1
,1

2
2

1
,0

9
1

1
,0

9
1

(3
1
)

(3
)

G
4
1
  
H

e
a
lt

h
y
 L

iv
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
4

4
5
8

4
5
3

4
5
3

(5
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
)

(3
0
9
)

(3
0
4
)

(3
0
4
)

5
(2

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
5
6

1
,0

6
6

1
,1

8
1

1
,1

8
1

1
1
5

1
1

In
c
o
m

e
(8

0
)

(8
0
)

(1
8
5
)

(1
8
5
)

(1
0
5
)

1
3
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7
6

9
8
6

9
9
6

9
9
6

1
0

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
6

1
9
0

1
9
4

1
9
4

4
2

In
c
o
m

e
(5

6
)

(5
)

(5
)

(5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
9
0

1
9
0

1
8
9

1
8
9

(1
)

(1
)

G
4
4
  
E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

7
8

2
,2

9
6

1
,7

4
3

7
0

1
,8

1
3

(4
8
3
)

(2
1
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

,5
4
3
)

(1
,5

3
9
)

(1
,0

6
0
)

(1
,0

6
0
)

4
7
9

(3
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
3
5

7
5
7

6
8
3

7
0

7
5
3

(4
)

(1
)

G
4
5
  
P

la
y

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
7
6

7
5
1

6
6
6

6
6
6

(8
5
)

(1
1
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(3

7
6
)

(4
5
1
)

(3
7
2
)

(3
7
2
)

7
9

(1
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0
0

3
0
0

2
9
4

2
9
4

(6
)

(2
)

G
6
0
  
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,0

6
3

2
,6

0
1

2
,7

5
4

2
,7

5
4

1
5
3

6

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,1
1
4
)

(1
,4

0
7
)

(1
,4

8
8
)

(1
,4

8
8
)

(8
1
)

6

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4
9

1
,1

9
4

1
,2

6
6

1
,2

6
6

7
2

6

G
1
9
  
P

a
re

n
ta

l 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

G
4
2
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

G
4
3
  
O

u
t-

o
f-

H
o

u
rs

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 

S
tu

d
y

1
7
 o

f 
3
3

Page 111



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
6
9
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
0
8

6
9
9

7
3
5

7
3
5

3
6

5

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

6
0
)

(5
4
8
)

(5
7
2
)

(5
7
2
)

(2
4
)

4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
4
8

1
5
1

1
6
3

1
6
3

1
2

8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
0
,5

5
3

2
2
,5

1
4

2
2
,1

5
0

7
0

2
2
,2

2
0

(2
9
4
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(8

,0
5
7
)

(6
,6

2
0
)

(6
,3

1
4
)

(6
,3

1
4
)

3
0
6

(5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,4

9
6

1
5
,8

9
4

1
5
,8

3
6

0
7
0

1
5
,9

0
6

1
2

0

G
4
9
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
&

A
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
5

5
4
1

5
4
8

5
4
8

7
1

In
c
o
m

e
(3

1
9
)

(3
1
9
)

(3
1
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
6
5

2
2
2

2
2
9

2
2
9

7
3

G
5
0
  
C

h
il
d

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 &
 R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

5
8

2
,4

1
3

2
,4

9
1

2
,4

9
1

7
8

3

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
8
)

(1
0
7
)

(1
4
4
)

(1
4
4
)

(3
7
)

3
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

1
0

2
,3

0
6

2
,3

4
7

2
,3

4
7

4
1

2

G
5
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 M

&
A

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
7
9

7
7
9

8
1
8

8
1
8

3
9

5

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
7
9

7
7
9

8
1
8

8
1
8

3
9

5

G
5
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

7
9

1
,6

9
3

1
,8

1
8

1
,8

1
8

1
2
5

7

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

7
9

1
,6

9
3

1
,8

1
8

1
,8

1
8

1
2
5

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

7
8

3
,0

3
2

2
,9

2
9

2
,9

2
9

(1
0
3
)

(3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(6

6
)

(6
6
)

(7
5
)

(7
5
)

(9
)

1
4

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,0

1
2

2
,9

6
6

2
,8

5
4

2
,8

5
4

(1
1
2
)

(4
)

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 £
1
2
5
K

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
  
a
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
H

o
m

e
s
, 
d
u
ri

n
g
 

p
e
ri

o
d
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
, 
re

q
u
ir

in
g
 c

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

p
e
ri

o
d
s
 o

f 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
, 
m

a
te

rn
it
y 

a
n
d
 h

o
lid

a
ys

; 
a
n
d
 h

ig
h
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir

 c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 
M

o
s
t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

a
t 
1
2
 

N
o
rm

a
n
 G

ro
v
e
.

A
 p

o
lic

y 
o
f 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y 

c
o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
in

g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
, 
d
u
ri

n
g
 a

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 p

e
ri

o
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
to

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 s

ta
ff

 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
re

a
s
 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 £

1
1
2
K

. 
A

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
ri

v
e
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 d

o
w

n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
s
te

ri
n
g
 p

a
n
e
l 

c
o
s
ts

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 Y
O

U
T

H
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 

L
E

A
R

N
IN

G

G
5
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 F

a
m

il
y
 

P
la

c
e
m

e
n

t

1
8
 o

f 
3
3

Page 112



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
,1

3
7

1
7
,1

9
2

1
7
,3

9
1

1
7
,3

9
1

1
9
9

1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

9
6
)

(2
1
1
)

(2
1
2
)

(2
1
2
)

(1
)

0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
6
,9

4
1

1
6
,9

8
1

1
7
,1

7
9

1
7
,1

7
9

1
9
8

1

G
5
5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

3
2

2
,3

3
2

(8
)

(0
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

4
)

(1
4
)

(1
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

4
0

2
,3

1
8

2
,3

1
8

(2
2
)

(1
)

G
5
6
  
L

e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

4
1

2
,6

4
1

2
,5

4
6

2
,5

4
6

(9
5
)

(4
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

7
9
)

(2
2
3
)

(1
6
9
)

(1
6
9
)

5
4

(2
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

6
2

2
,4

1
8

2
,3

7
8

2
,3

7
8

(4
0
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,7

5
3

5
,9

3
9

5
,9

0
7

5
,9

0
7

(3
2
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,2
1
0
)

(1
,4

3
8
)

(1
,4

3
3
)

(1
,4

3
3
)

5
(0

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,5

4
3

4
,5

0
1

4
,4

7
4

4
,4

7
4

(2
7
)

(1
)

G
5
8
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 D

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

0
9

3
,8

6
2

3
,8

4
7

3
,8

4
7

(1
5
)

(0
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,2
5
3
)

(1
,2

5
3
)

(1
,2

5
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,6

0
9

2
,6

0
9

2
,5

9
4

2
,5

9
4

(1
5
)

(1
)

G
5
9
  
E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 T
e
a
m

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
5
2

3
5
2

5
1
8

(5
8
)

4
6
0

1
0
8

3
1

  
In

c
o
m

e
(4

4
)

(4
4
)

(4
3
)

(4
3
)

1
(2

)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
0
8

3
0
8

4
7
5

(5
8
)

4
1
7

1
0
9

3
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

0
3

1
,8

0
3

1
,7

6
9

1
,7

6
9

(3
4
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
3

1
,8

0
3

1
,7

6
9

1
,7

6
9

(3
4
)

(2
)

T
h
is

 v
o
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

, 
is

 v
o
la

ti
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 b
y 

th
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

3
2
6
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 £

8
0
0
,0

0
0
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

2
3
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
d
u
ri

n
g
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 o

n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 t
h
a
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

t 
3
2
6
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 i
n
 f

a
c
t 
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
s
 3

3
7
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 l
a
te

 u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 R
e
-c

h
a
rg

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

2
3
 p

ro
to

c
o
l.

R
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
u
n
d
 o

v
e
rt

im
e
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

s
ta

ff
 s

h
if
ts

b
a
c
k
 d

a
te

d
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 s

in
g
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

G
5
4
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

G
5
7
  
F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
 A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

G
6
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
9
 o

f 
3
3

Page 113



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
6
2
  
A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 &

 W
e
lf

a
re

 S
e
rv

 G
F

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

3
9

1
,7

3
9

1
,7

4
3

1
,7

4
3

4
0

  
In

c
o
m

e
(5

0
9
)

(5
0
8
)

(5
9
3
)

(5
9
3
)

(8
5
)

1
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

3
0

1
,2

3
1

1
,1

5
0

1
,1

5
0

(8
1
)

(7
)

H
5
7
  
F

a
m

il
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,0

8
8

5
,8

6
2

5
,2

0
8

5
,2

0
8

(6
5
4
)

(1
1
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

,0
8
5
)

(1
,8

6
0
)

(1
,6

2
1
)

(1
,6

2
1
)

2
3
9

(1
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,0

0
3

4
,0

0
2

3
,5

8
7

3
,5

8
7

(4
1
5
)

(1
0
)

G
7
5
  
IT

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
9
6

6
8
8

6
8
8

6
8
8

  
In

c
o
m

e
(3

7
9
)

(3
7
8
)

(3
8
8
)

(3
8
8
)

(1
0
)

3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
1
7

3
1
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

(1
0
)

(3
)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
O

C
IA

L
 C

A
R

E
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
8
,3

1
7

5
0
,8

7
6

5
0
,5

5
3

(5
8
)

5
0
,4

9
5

(3
8
1
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,8
1
6
)

(6
,4

0
7
)

(6
,2

6
4
)

(6
,2

6
4
)

1
4
3

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4
,5

0
1

4
4
,4

6
9

4
4
,2

9
0

(5
8
)

0
4
4
,2

3
2

(2
3
7
)

(1
)

G
6
5
  
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
3
6

2
5
1

2
9
0

2
9
0

3
9

1
6

  
In

c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(5
0
)

(8
4
)

(8
4
)

(3
4
)

6
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
8
6

2
0
1

2
0
6

2
0
6

5
2

G
7
1
  
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
o

li
c
y

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
8
3

4
8
0

4
5
6

4
5
6

(2
4
)

(5
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

0
)

(3
7
)

(3
7
)

(1
7
)

8
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
8
3

4
6
0

4
1
9

4
1
9

(4
1
)

(9
)

G
7
4
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
7
0

9
3
8

8
9
0

8
9
0

(4
8
)

(5
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

4
)

(2
1
)

(2
1
)

(7
)

5
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7
0

9
2
4

8
6
9

8
6
9

(5
5
)

(6
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

8
9

1
,6

6
9

1
,6

3
6

1
,6

3
6

(3
3
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
)

(8
4
)

(1
4
2
)

(1
4
2
)

(5
8
)

6
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

3
9

1
,5

8
5

1
,4

9
4

0
0

1
,4

9
4

(9
1
)

(6
)

G
7
9
  
C

S
F

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
G

F
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
4
8

5
7
2

5
6
1

5
6
1

(1
1
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
2
1

5
7
2

5
6
1

5
6
1

(1
1
)

(2
)

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 o

v
e
rc

o
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

7
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

lie
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 a

 

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

tr
ic

t 
c
ri

te
ri

a

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
'S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

2
0
 o

f 
3
3

Page 114



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
6
7
  
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,5

0
6

3
,4

6
0

3
,1

7
0

3
,1

7
0

(2
9
0
)

(8
)

  
In

c
o
m

e
(2

6
)

(8
7
5
)

(7
9
0
)

(7
9
0
)

8
5

(1
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,4

8
0

2
,5

8
5

2
,3

8
0

2
,3

8
0

(2
0
5
)

(8
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
3
5

2
8
1

2
4
9

2
4
9

(3
2
)

(1
1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
8
)

(2
8
1
)

(2
4
9
)

(2
4
9
)

3
2

(1
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
1
0

7
9
3

8
0
5

8
0
5

1
2

2

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
6
)

(1
3
7
)

(2
2
0
)

(2
2
0
)

(8
3
)

6
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
8
4

6
5
6

5
8
5

5
8
5

(7
1
)

(1
1
)

G
7
2
  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
4
6

3
7
9

4
3
2

4
3
2

5
3

1
4

In
c
o
m

e
(5

6
)

(5
6
)

(5
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
4
6

3
7
9

3
7
6

3
7
6

(3
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
2
9

5
1
8

4
7
4

4
7
4

(4
4
)

(8
)

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
2
9

5
1
8

4
7
4

4
7
4

(4
4
)

(8
)

G
8
1
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 D
e
v
 &

 T
e
c
h

 S
e
rv

ic
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

6
9

6
,7

0
2

6
,7

9
5

6
,7

9
5

9
3

1

In
c
o
m

e
(4

6
9
)

(2
9
5
)

(3
3
3
)

(3
3
3
)

(3
8
)

1
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
0
0

6
,4

0
7

6
,4

6
2

6
,4

6
2

5
5

1

G
8
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
F

in
a
n

c
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

6
4

4
1
8

1
,8

6
7

1
,8

6
7

1
,4

4
9

3
4
7

  
In

c
o
m

e
(1

9
4
)

3
7
5

(3
8
4
)

(3
8
4
)

(7
5
9
)

(2
0
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,3

7
0

7
9
3

1
,4

8
3

1
,4

8
3

6
9
0

8
7

G
8
3
  
C

S
F

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 G

F
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

6
7

1
,5

8
3

2
,0

2
3

2
,0

2
3

4
4
0

2
8

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,5

6
7

1
,5

8
3

2
,0

2
3

2
,0

2
3

4
4
0

2
8

G
8
4
  
T

e
a
c
h

e
r 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

In
c
o
m

e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

T
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 

m
a
d
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 p

o
s
t 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 
fi
lle

d
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
.

T
h
is

 v
o
te

 h
a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
e
 o

f 
u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
-

1
1

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 

£
8
6
7
k
 o

n
 H

8
3
 t
o
 G

8
3

G
6
8
  
M

a
jo

r 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
G

ra
n

t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

G
7
0
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
s

G
8
0
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
1
 o

f 
3
3

Page 115



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

(G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e
t)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

G
8
6
  
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
6
0

7
7
1

7
2
5

7
2
5

(4
6
)

(6
)

  

In
c
o
m

e
(4

2
4
)

(4
2
4
)

(6
8
6
)

(6
8
6
)

(2
6
2
)

6
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3
6

3
4
7

3
9

3
9

(3
0
8
)

(8
9
)

G
8
7
  
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
4
,4

1
4

1
4
,3

7
3

1
7
,0

5
2

1
7
,0

5
2

2
,6

7
9

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,4

1
4
)

(1
4
,3

7
3
)

(1
7
,0

5
2
)

(1
7
,0

5
2
)

(2
,6

7
9
)

1
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
,6

4
8

2
9
,8

4
9

3
4
,1

5
3

3
4
,1

5
3

4
,3

0
4

1
4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
,1

2
8
)

(1
6
,0

1
0
)

(1
9
,7

7
0
)

(1
9
,7

7
0
)

(3
,7

6
0
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,5

2
0

1
3
,8

3
9

1
4
,3

8
3

0
0

1
4
,3

8
3

5
4
3

4

G
9
5
  
C

C
N

 P
o

o
le

d
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,2

5
9

4
,8

2
9

5
,0

6
1

5
,0

6
1

2
3
2

5

  
In

c
o
m

e
(7

,2
5
9
)

(4
,8

2
9
)

(5
,0

6
1
)

(5
,0

6
1
)

(2
3
2
)

5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,2

5
9

2
0
5

5
,0

6
1

5
,0

6
1

4
,8

5
6

2
,3

6
9

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,2
5
9
)

(2
0
5
)

(5
,0

6
1
)

(5
,0

6
1
)

(4
,8

5
6
)

2
,3

6
9

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 H

O
L

D
IN

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,3

2
9

3
,3

2
9

2
4
,5

5
7

2
4
,5

5
7

2
1
,2

2
8

6
3
8

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
2
9
)

(3
,3

2
9
)

(2
4
,5

5
7
)

(2
4
,5

5
7
)

(2
1
,2

2
8
)

6
3
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
1
,8

2
2

1
6
8
,9

0
9

1
9
5
,4

2
8

(1
0
9
)

7
0

1
9
5
,3

8
9

2
6
,4

8
0

1
6

In
c
o
m

e
(7

9
,5

4
9
)

(6
8
,5

7
7
)

(9
5
,0

5
7
)

(9
5
,0

5
7
)

(2
6
,4

8
0
)

3
9

9
2
,2

7
3

1
0
0
,3

3
2

1
0
0
,3

7
1

(1
0
9
)

7
0

1
0
0
,3

3
2

0
0

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
8
7

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
8
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3
3

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
3
,4

4
2

1
6
8
,9

0
9

1
9
5
,4

2
8

(1
0
9
)

7
0

1
9
5
,3

8
9

In
c
o
m

e
(7

9
,5

4
9
)

(6
8
,5

7
7
)

(9
5
,0

5
7
)

0
0

(9
5
,0

5
7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
3
,8

9
3

1
0
0
,3

3
2

1
0
0
,3

7
1

(1
0
9
)

7
0

1
0
0
,3

3
2

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 H
O

L
D

IN
G

 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

T
h
e
 P

D
C

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
re

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

re
 g

u
a
ra

n
te

e
d
 a

n
d
 

th
e
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

re
a
k
-

e
v
e
n
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
In

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 b

re
a
k
-e

v
e
n
 w

a
ys

 o
f 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
.

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

L
IF

E
L

O
N

G
 L

E
A

R
N

IN
G

 T
O

 C
L

C

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
C

H
O

O
L

S
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 

F
U

T
U

R
E

 T
O

 D
&

R

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
S

F
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 

F
U

N
D

2
2
 o

f 
3
3

Page 116



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1
1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 

fr
o

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

to
 F

u
n

d
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,5
0

0
2

,5
9

4
2

,4
1

8
2

,4
1

8
(1

7
6

)
(7

)

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,5

0
0

)
(2

,5
9

4
)

(2
,4

1
6

)
(2

,4
1

6
)

1
7

8
(7

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
0

0
2

0
0

2
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

1
2

1
,0

4
3

1
,0

5
6

1
,0

5
6

1
3

1

In
c
o

m
e

(7
1

2
)

(1
,0

2
7

)
(1

,0
1

2
)

(1
,0

1
2

)
1

5
(1

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
0

1
6

4
4

0
0

4
4

2
8

1
7

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

0
,6

9
0

3
0

,9
5

0
3

1
,2

7
6

3
1

,2
7

6
3

2
6

1

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,3

7
7

)
(4

,5
0

7
)

(4
,7

6
7

)
(4

,7
6

7
)

(2
6

0
)

6
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

6
,3

1
3

2
6

,4
4

3
2

6
,5

0
9

0
0

2
6

,5
0

9
6

6
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

2
,0

6
4

1
3

,1
1

5
1

3
,5

9
1

4
8

1
3

,6
3

9
5

2
4

4
O

v
e

r 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
fe

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

.

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,0

7
4

)
(3

,2
1

6
)

(3
,7

4
8

)
(3

,7
4

8
)

(5
3

2
)

1
7

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
,9

9
0

9
,8

9
9

9
,8

4
3

0
4

8
9

,8
9

1
(8

)
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,8
5

3
1

,7
8

7
1

,7
7

0
1

,7
7

0
(1

7
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,8

5
3

)
(1

,7
8

0
)

(1
,7

6
4

)
(1

,7
6

4
)

1
6

(1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
7

6
0

0
6

(1
)

(1
4

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,8
6

2
7

,1
0

3
7

,2
4

8
7

,2
4

8
1

4
5

2

In
c
o

m
e

(9
3

1
)

(1
,1

1
3

)
(1

,2
6

4
)

(1
,2

6
4

)
(1

5
1

)
1

4
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
5

,9
3

1
5

,9
9

0
5

,9
8

4
0

0
5

,9
8

4
(6

)
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,0
3

2
1

,0
3

2
1

,9
4

2
1

,9
4

2
9

1
0

8
8

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,0

3
2

)
(1

,0
3

2
)

(1
,9

0
3

)
(1

,9
0

3
)

(8
7

1
)

8
4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

3
9

0
0

3
9

3
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,7
4

8
4

,7
4

8
5

,4
8

2
(5

0
)

5
,4

3
2

6
8

4
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,7

4
8

)
(4

,7
4

8
)

(5
,4

8
5

)
(5

,4
8

5
)

(7
3

7
)

1
6

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

(3
)

(5
0

)
0

(5
3

)
(5

3
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

E
0

1
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

in
d

e
x
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 i
n

fl
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 

R
is

k
: 

£
2

0
0

k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 L

A
P

 

m
e

n
u

s
 f

o
r 

P
a

rk
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 L
A

P
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 

re
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 s

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

5
0

%
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 y
e

a
r.

 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 w
ill

 b
e

 

m
a

d
e

.

E
1

0
 P

u
b

li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 M
&

A
 

E
1

1
 W

a
s

te
 &

 C
le

a
n

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
1

2
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

 

E
1

4
 L

o
c

a
l 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
s

E
4

3
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c

e
s

E
3

0
 F

le
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

E
3

1
 P

a
s

s
e

n
g

e
r 

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

2
3

 o
f 

3
3

Page 117



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 

fr
o

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

to
 F

u
n

d
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

3
4

4
3

4
4

7
0

4
7

0
3

6
8

In
c
o

m
e

(4
3

4
)

(4
3

4
)

(4
5

7
)

(4
5

7
)

(2
3

)
5

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

1
3

0
0

1
3

1
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

8
,3

9
5

6
0

,2
1

2
6

2
,8

3
5

(5
0

)
4

8
6

2
,8

3
3

2
,6

2
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

,1
6

1
)

(1
7

,8
5

6
)

(2
0

,4
0

0
)

0
0

(2
0

,4
0

0
)

(2
,5

4
4

)
1

4
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

2
,2

3
4

4
2

,3
5

6
4

2
,4

3
5

(5
0

)
4

8
4

2
,4

3
3

7
7

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

2
3

1
2

3
1

2
5

1
2

5
2

2

In
c
o

m
e

(1
2

3
)

(1
2

3
)

(1
2

5
)

(1
2

5
)

(2
)

2
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,4
9

8
2

,6
3

9
2

,7
0

1
2

,7
0

1
6

2
2

In
c
o

m
e

(8
7

4
)

(1
,0

5
6

)
(1

,0
7

8
)

(1
,0

7
8

)
(2

2
)

2
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,6
2

4
1

,5
8

3
1

,6
2

3
0

0
1

,6
2

3
4

0
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,7
3

8
7

,6
4

2
7

,4
1

9
7

,4
1

9
(2

2
3

)
(3

)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,1

9
9

)
(2

,0
0

8
)

(1
,7

7
9

)
(1

,7
7

9
)

2
2

9
(1

1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,5

3
9

5
,6

3
4

5
,6

4
0

0
0

5
,6

4
0

6
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,4
8

1
5

,7
7

1
5

,7
1

8
5

,7
1

8
(5

3
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

(3
)

(3
)

(1
)

(1
)

2
(7

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

7
8

5
,7

6
8

5
,7

1
7

0
0

5
,7

1
7

(5
1

)
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

,8
7

3
9

,8
7

3
1

5
,4

1
4

6
1

0
1

6
,0

2
4

6
,1

5
1

6
2

In
c
o

m
e

(9
,8

7
3

)
(9

,8
7

3
)

(1
6

,0
2

4
)

(1
6

,0
2

4
)

(6
,1

5
1

)
6

2
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
0

0
(6

1
0

)
0

6
1

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

0
9

8
5

0
8

1
2

(1
9

)
7

9
3

(5
7

)
(7

)

In
c
o

m
e

(4
4

0
)

(4
2

6
)

(3
9

5
)

(3
9

5
)

3
1

(7
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
6

9
4

2
4

4
1

7
(1

9
)

0
3

9
8

(2
6

)
(6

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,1
3

1
2

,1
3

1
2

,2
5

0
1

0
6

2
,3

5
6

2
2

5
1

1
T

ra
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 
s
u

rp
lu

s
 t

o
 S

tr
e

e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,1

3
1

)
(2

,1
3

1
)

(2
,3

5
6

)
(2

,3
5

6
)

(2
2

5
)

1
1

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

(1
0

6
)

0
1

0
6

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

6
,7

5
3

2
9

,0
2

9
3

4
,4

3
9

(1
9

)
7

1
6

3
5

,1
3

6
6

,1
0

7
2

1

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

,6
4

3
)

(1
5

,6
2

0
)

(2
1

,7
5

8
)

0
0

(2
1

,7
5

8
)

(6
,1

3
8

)
3

9
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

2
,1

1
0

1
3

,4
0

8
1

2
,6

8
1

(1
9

)
7

1
6

1
3

,3
7

8
(3

0
)

(0
)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

T
o

ta
l

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 P

C
N

 i
n

c
o

m
e

.

E
2

2
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

E
2

3
 C

o
n

c
e

s
s

io
n

a
ry

 F
a

re
s

E
2

4
 P

a
rk

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
3

6
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty

E
2

5
 S

tr
e

e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g

E
3

2
 D

S
O

 V
e

h
ic

le
 W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
a

lm
 T

o
ta

l

E
2

0
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

E
2

1
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

2
4

 o
f 

3
3

Page 118



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 

fr
o

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

to
 F

u
n

d
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

6
9

1
6

9
1

8
2

1
8

2
1

3
8

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6

9
)

(1
6

9
)

(1
8

4
)

(1
8

4
)

(1
5

)
9

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
0

(2
)

0
0

(2
)

(2
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

,7
4

8
9

,4
4

4
9

,2
5

7
9

,2
5

7
(1

8
7

)
(2

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 r
e

la
te

s
 t

o
 N

N
D

R
 o

n
e

 o
ff

 r
e

fu
n

d

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,4

9
9

)
(1

,2
2

2
)

(1
,3

2
0

)
(1

,3
2

0
)

(9
8

)
8

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
,2

4
9

8
,2

2
2

7
,9

3
7

0
0

7
,9

3
7

(2
8

5
)

(3
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,8
5

2
4

,9
2

5
5

,1
5

3
5

,1
5

3
2

2
8

5

In
c
o

m
e

(3
7

9
)

(7
3

1
)

(9
7

1
)

(9
7

1
)

(2
4

0
)

3
3

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

7
3

4
,1

9
4

4
,1

8
2

0
0

4
,1

8
2

(1
2

)
(0

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,9
5

0
2

,5
3

4
2

,9
5

8
2

,9
5

8
4

2
4

1
7

In
c
o

m
e

(4
7

1
)

(9
5

1
)

(1
,3

6
7

)
(1

,3
6

7
)

(4
1

6
)

4
4

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

7
9

1
,5

8
3

1
,5

9
1

0
0

1
,5

9
1

8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

4
7

8
4

7
8

7
4

8
7

4
2

7
3

In
c
o

m
e

(8
4

7
)

(8
4

7
)

(8
4

0
)

(8
4

0
)

7
(1

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
0

0
3

4
0

0
3

4
3

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

5
,6

4
4

5
,8

0
2

5
,8

0
2

1
5

8
3

In
c
o

m
e

0
(3

,7
2

9
)

(3
,6

6
2

)
(3

,6
6

2
)

6
7

(2
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
1

,9
1

5
2

,1
4

0
0

0
2

,1
4

0
2

2
5

1
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

7
,5

6
6

2
3

,5
6

3
2

4
,2

2
6

0
0

2
4

,2
2

6
6

6
4

3

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,3

6
5

)
(7

,6
4

9
)

(8
,3

4
4

)
0

0
(8

,3
4

4
)

(6
9

5
)

9
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

4
,2

0
1

1
5

,9
1

4
1

5
,8

8
2

0
0

1
5

,8
8

2
(3

2
)

(0
)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

3
2

2
4

1
2

7
2

2
7

2
3

1
1

3

In
c
o

m
e

0
(5

6
)

(8
3

)
(8

3
)

(2
7

)
4

8
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

3
2

1
8

5
1

8
9

0
0

1
8

9
4

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,8
2

8
2

,5
4

9
2

,5
2

4
(5

0
)

2
,4

7
4

(7
5

)
(3

)

In
c
o

m
e

(8
7

)
(2

4
1

)
(1

3
4

)
(1

3
4

)
1

0
7

(4
4

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,7
4

1
2

,3
0

8
2

,3
9

0
(5

0
)

0
2

,3
4

0
3

2
1

E
5

1
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

E
5

3
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

E
4

0
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

E
4

1
 I

d
e

a
 S

to
re

s

L
if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 C
h

ild
re

n
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
: 

In
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 C

S
F

 t
o

 C
L

C
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
fu

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

o
s
t.

E
4

2
 S

p
o

rt
s

 &
 P

h
y
s

ic
a

l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
 

E
4

4
 A

rt
s

 &
 E

v
e

n
ts

E
4

7
 L

if
e

lo
n

g
 L

e
a

rn
in

g

E
4

5
 M

il
e

 E
n

d
 P

a
rk

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 T
o

ta
l

2
5

 o
f 

3
3

Page 119



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

L
a

te
s

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

A
c

tu
a

l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

T
ra

n
s

fe
rs

 

fr
o

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

to
 F

u
n

d
 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re

N
e

w
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 

C
a

rr
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 £

1
0

0
k

 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 t
o

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,4
8

5
3

,0
2

9
3

,2
8

7
3

,2
8

7
2

5
8

9

In
c
o

m
e

(5
0

2
)

(6
9

3
)

(8
9

7
)

(8
9

7
)

(2
0

4
)

2
9

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

8
3

2
,3

3
6

2
,3

9
0

0
0

2
,3

9
0

5
4

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

7
1

9
4

2
9

6
0

9
6

0
1

8
2

In
c
o

m
e

(7
7

)
(1

5
3

)
(1

6
2

)
(1

6
2

)
(9

)
6

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
9

4
7

8
9

7
9

8
0

0
7

9
8

9
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,3
1

9
5

,1
5

4
4

,8
4

5
4

,8
4

5
(3

0
9

)
(6

)

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,9

5
7

)
(3

,7
1

7
)

(3
,5

4
2

)
(3

,5
4

2
)

1
7

5
(5

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,3
6

2
1

,4
3

7
1

,3
0

3
0

0
1

,3
0

3
(1

3
4

)
(9

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

,5
3

5
1

1
,9

1
5

1
1

,8
8

8
(5

0
)

0
1

1
,8

3
8

(7
7

)
(1

)

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,6

2
3

)
(4

,8
6

0
)

(4
,8

1
8

)
0

0
(4

,8
1

8
)

4
2

(1
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,9

1
2

7
,0

5
5

7
,0

7
0

(5
0

)
0

7
,0

2
0

(3
5

)
(1

)

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
0

8
5

4
8

4
4

8
4

4
(1

0
)

(1
)

In
c
o

m
e

0
(4

1
)

(3
1

)
(3

1
)

1
0

(2
5

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
8

1
3

8
1

3
0

0
8

1
3

0
0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
ta

l

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
3

,7
4

9
1

2
8

,1
6

7
1

3
6

,6
5

0
(1

1
9

)
7

6
4

1
3

7
,2

9
5

9
,1

2
8

7

In
c
o

m
e

(3
9

,2
9

2
)

(4
8

,6
2

1
)

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

0
0

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

(9
,1

4
6

)
1

9
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
7

4
,4

5
7

7
9

,5
4

7
7

8
,8

8
3

(1
1

9
)

7
6

4
7

9
,5

2
8

(1
9

)
(0

)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,3
4

8

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,8

9
5

)
N

e
t 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

5
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

1
6

,0
9

7
1

2
8

,1
6

7
1

3
6

,6
5

0
(1

1
9

)
7

6
4

1
3

7
,2

9
5

In
c
o

m
e

(4
1

,1
8

7
)

(4
8

,6
2

1
)

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

0
0

(5
7

,7
6

7
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
4

,9
1

0
7

9
,5

4
6

7
8

,8
8

3
(1

1
9

)
7

6
4

7
9

,5
2

8

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 &

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 C

E

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 &
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

E
5

4
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 

L
O

C
A

L
IT

IE
S

 

&
 C

U
L

T
U

R
E

E
5

6
 D

ru
g

s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 T
e

a
m

E
5

5
 P

o
li

c
y
 &

 V
ic

ti
m

s
 

U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

ru
g

s
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

R
is

k
: 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

: 
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
3

0
k
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
h

u
b

s
. 

P
o

s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 

m
a

d
e

.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

o
ta

l

E
7

1
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

2
6

 o
f 

3
3

Page 120



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

1

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

2
0
 

3
,5

4
6
 

3
,5

6
7
 

3
,5

6
7
 

2
1
 

1
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
1
6
)

(9
5
8
)

(1
,1

8
6
)

(3
0
)

(1
,2

1
6
)

(2
5
8
)

2
7
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

0
4
 

2
,5

8
8
 

2
,3

8
1
 

(3
0
)

0
 

2
,3

5
1
 

(2
3
7
)

(9
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

1
9
 

3
,2

6
4
 

3
,5

5
7
 

3
,5

5
7
 

2
9
4
 

9
 

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,6
3
1
)

(2
,1

3
2
)

(2
,0

9
9
)

(1
5
0
)

(2
,2

4
9
)

(1
1
7
)

5
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
8
8
 

1
,1

3
2
 

1
,4

5
9
 

(1
5
0
)

0
 

1
,3

0
9
 

1
7
7
 

1
6
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

2
7
 

1
,4

5
8
 

1
,2

6
8
 

1
,2

6
8
 

(1
8
9
)

(1
3
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,2
2
7
)

(1
,4

5
8
)

(1
,2

7
5
)

6
 

(1
,2

6
8
)

1
8
9
 

(1
3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

0
 

(6
)

0
 

6
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
 

4
8
1
 

3
1
2
 

3
1
2
 

(1
6
9
)

(3
5
)

In
c
o
m

e
0
 

(4
2
7
)

(4
3
7
)

1
2
5
 

(3
1
2
)

1
1
5
 

(2
7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

(5
4
)

(1
2
5
)

0
 

1
2
5
 

(0
)

(5
4
)

1
0
1
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
,3

6
6
 

8
,7

4
8
 

8
,7

0
5
 

0
 

0
 

8
,7

0
5
 

(4
3
)

(0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

,9
7
4
)

(4
,9

7
4
)

(4
,9

9
7
)

(1
8
0
)

1
3
1
 

(5
,0

4
5
)

(7
1
)

1
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

9
2
 

3
,7

7
4
 

3
,7

0
8
 

(1
8
0
)

1
3
1
 

3
,6

5
9
 

(1
1
4
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

3
0
 

1
,5

8
0
 

3
0
3
 

3
0
3
 

(1
,2

7
7
)

(8
1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,5
8
0
)

(1
,5

8
0
)

(1
9
3
)

(1
0
5
)

(2
9
8
)

1
,2

8
2
 

(8
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
0
 

0
 

1
1
0
 

(1
0
5
)

0
 

5
 

5
 

0
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

2
2
 

3
,7

0
3
 

4
,3

9
0
 

0
 

4
,3

9
0
 

6
8
7
 

1
9
 

In
c
o
m

e
(3

8
8
)

(9
6
1
)

(1
,0

8
4
)

(7
1
3
)

(1
,7

9
7
)

(8
3
6
)

8
7
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

3
4
 

2
,7

4
1
 

3
,3

0
6
 

(7
1
3
)

0
 

2
,5

9
3
 

(1
4
8
)

(5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,4

5
2
 

5
,2

8
2
 

4
,6

9
3
 

0
 

0
 

4
,6

9
3
 

(5
9
0
)

(1
1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,9
6
8
)

(2
,5

4
1
)

(1
,2

7
7
)

(8
1
7
)

0
 

(2
,0

9
5
)

4
4
6
 

(1
8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 1
,4

8
4

 2
,7

4
1

 3
,4

1
5

(8
1
7
)

 0
 2

,5
9
8

(1
4
4
)

(5
)

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

  
J
0
4
 M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

G
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
5
K

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 C
L
G

 &
 i
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
.

R
is

k
 -

 L
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

ig
h
 

ri
s
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 -

 A
s
 a

 t
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 t
h
is

 v
o
te

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
re

a
k
 e

v
e
n
 i
n
 1

0
-

1
1
, 

a
s
 a

n
y
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 a

c
c
ru

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
y
 

d
e
fi
c
it
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

 w
o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 

to
 f

u
n
d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
.

  
K

9
8
 L

o
c
a
l 

L
a
n

d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

  
K

9
9
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t

  
J
0
6
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
is

io
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L

  
J
0
8
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 F
u

n
d

in
g

J
1
2
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

2
7
 o

f 
3
3

Page 121



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,1

6
9
 

9
3
0
 

8
3
3
 

8
3
3
 

(9
7
)

(1
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

9
0
)

(4
5
1
)

(2
0
8
)

(2
0
0
)

(4
0
8
)

4
3
 

(1
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,8

7
9
 

4
7
9
 

6
2
5
 

(2
0
0
)

0
 

4
2
5
 

(5
4
)

(1
1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

7
5
 

1
,9

5
6
 

2
,0

4
8
 

2
,0

4
8
 

9
2
 

5
 

In
c
o
m

e
(8

0
4
)

(8
0
4
)

(1
,0

0
0
)

(1
,0

0
0
)

(1
9
6
)

2
4
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,1

7
1
 

1
,1

5
1
 

1
,0

4
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
,0

4
8
 

(1
0
4
)

(9
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
6
4
 

1
,1

5
4
 

1
,2

5
7
 

1
,2

5
7
 

1
0
3
 

9
 

In
c
o
m

e
(7

9
)

(1
0
4
)

(2
9
1
)

(2
9
1
)

(1
8
7
)

1
8
0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
8
5
 

1
,0

5
0
 

9
6
6
 

0
 

0
 

9
6
6
 

(8
3
)

(8
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,9

8
2
 

3
,1

0
4
 

3
,1

6
2
 

3
,1

6
2
 

5
8
 

2
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,8
6
5
)

(1
,2

1
3
)

(1
,4

3
6
)

0
 

1
1
6
 

(1
,3

2
0
)

(1
0
7
)

9
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,1

1
7
 

1
,8

9
1
 

1
,7

2
6
 

0
 

1
1
6
 

1
,8

4
2
 

(4
9
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
6
7
 

7
5
0
 

5
6
2
 

5
6
2
 

(1
8
9
)

(2
5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(4

4
9
)

(5
8
8
)

(4
0
3
)

(4
0
3
)

1
8
4
 

(3
1
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(8
2
)

1
6
3
 

1
5
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
8
 

(4
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,0

1
8
 

4
,4

5
6
 

4
,0

4
6
 

4
,0

4
6
 

(4
1
0
)

(9
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,3
1
5
)

(1
,9

6
7
)

(1
,5

7
1
)

(1
,5

7
1
)

3
9
7
 

(2
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

7
0
3
 

2
,4

8
9
 

2
,4

7
6
 

0
 

0
 

2
,4

7
6
 

(1
3
)

(1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

3
1
 

8
7
6
 

2
,5

2
0
 

2
,5

2
0
 

1
,6

4
4
 

1
8
8
 

In
c
o
m

e
(8

5
5
)

0
 

(1
,7

0
6
)

(1
,7

0
6
)

(1
,7

0
6
)

0
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7
6
 

8
7
6
 

8
1
4
 

0
 

0
 

8
1
4
 

(6
3
)

(7
)

R
is

k
 -

 A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 -

 t
h
is

 t
o
ta

ls
 £

2
9
5
K

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 s
a
v
in

g
, 

th
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
ri

s
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

R
is

k
 -

 I
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

  
J
2
6
 L

e
tt

in
g

s

  
J
1
8
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s

  
J
1
6
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

  
J
2
2
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

  
J
2
4
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

  
J
2
0
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y

  
J
1
4
  

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
8
 o

f 
3
3

Page 122



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

8
7
 

2
,9

4
6
 

2
,9

4
6
 

1
,8

5
9
 

1
7
1
 

In
c
o
m

e
(5

5
0
)

(1
,1

8
0
)

(1
,1

5
5
)

(2
,3

3
5
)

(1
,7

8
5
)

3
2
5
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

5
3
7
 

1
,7

6
6
 

(1
,1

5
5
)

0
 

6
1
1
 

7
4
 

1
4
 

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8
,8

4
9
 

1
8
,8

8
4
 

1
8
,8

8
4
 

3
5
 

0
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
,2

3
4
)

(1
8
,7

0
8
)

1
1
2
 

(1
8
,5

9
6
)

(3
6
2
)

2
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

6
1
5
 

1
7
6
 

0
 

1
1
2
 

2
8
8
 

(3
2
7
)

(5
3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
6
3
 

6
8
7
 

6
8
7
 

3
2
4
 

8
9
 

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
9
)

(6
8
1
)

(6
8
1
)

(2
2
2
)

4
8
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
 

(9
6
)

6
 

0
 

0
 

6
 

1
0
2
 

(1
0
7
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,0

2
4
 

4
7
,5

5
6
 

5
0
,3

4
3
 

0
 

0
 

5
0
,3

4
3
 

2
,7

8
7
 

6
 

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,5

9
9
)

(3
1
,8

8
6
)

(3
3
,4

6
0
)

(2
,3

5
2
)

3
5
9
 

(3
5
,4

5
2
)

(3
,5

6
6
)

1
1
 

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,4

2
5
 

1
5
,6

7
0
 

1
6
,8

8
4
 

(2
,3

5
2
)

3
5
9
 

1
4
,8

9
1
 

(7
7
8
)

(5
)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 F

R
O

M
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

J
4
0
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
8
,5

6
9

3
3
,8

3
4

3
3
,8

3
4

(4
,7

3
5
)

(1
2
)

T
h
e
 £

4
,7

3
5
K

 G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

w
o
 m

a
in

 

fa
c
to

rs
 :

1
) 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
e
s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
n
 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f

o
r.

  
In

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
c
tu

a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 h

a
s
 d

im
in

is
h
e
d
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
0
 C

L
G

 t
a
rg

e
t 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

2
) 

A
s
s
u
m

e
d
 £

2
0
0
k
 d

ra
w

d
o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 G

ra
n
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
e
n
d
 

3
) 

A
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

h
e
a
d
 d

u
e
 

to
 a

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 d

e
b
ts

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
.

In
c
o
m

e
(3

6
,6

8
4
)

(3
0
,9

4
3
)

(2
2
0
)

(3
1
,1

6
3
)

5
,5

2
1

(1
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

8
5

2
,8

9
1

(2
2
0
)

2
,6

7
1

7
8
6

4
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
7
,0

2
4
 

8
6
,1

2
5
 

8
4
,1

7
7
 

0
 

0
 

8
4
,1

7
7
 

(1
,9

4
8
)

(2
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

4
,5

9
9
)

(6
8
,5

7
0
)

(6
4
,4

0
3
)

(2
,5

7
2
)

3
5
9
 

(6
6
,6

1
5
)

1
,9

5
5
 

(3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
2
,4

2
5

1
7
,5

5
5

1
9
,7

7
5

(2
,5

7
2
)

3
5
9

1
7
,5

6
2

7
0

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

  
J
3
0
 B

S
F

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

  
J
3
2
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s

T
h
e
 G

ro
s
s
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e
 l
ik

e
w

is
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 f

e
w

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f

o
r.

  
J
3
4
 D

e
p

o
ts

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

2
9
 o

f 
3
3

Page 123



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1

1
1
0

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 

v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
1
1

9
6
1

9
7
4

9
7
4

1
3

1

In
c
o
m

e
(9

2
3
)

(7
9
1
)

(8
7
9
)

(8
7
9
)

(8
8
)

1
1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
2
)

1
7
0

9
5

9
5

(7
5
)

(4
4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
5

5
8
8

4
9
2

4
9
2

(9
6
)

(1
6
)

In
c
o
m

e
(5

9
2
)

(5
9
1
)

(4
9
5
)

(4
9
5
)

9
6

(1
6
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(7
)

(3
)

(3
)

(3
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,4

9
6

1
,5

4
9

1
,4

6
6

1
,4

6
6

(8
3
)

(5
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,5
1
5
)

(1
,3

8
2
)

(1
,3

7
4
)

(1
,3

7
4
)

8
(1

)
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
9
)

1
6
7

9
2

0
0

9
2

(7
5
)

(4
5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
4
,5

9
3

3
4
,0

2
1

3
7
,1

1
6

3
7
,1

1
6

3
,0

9
5

9

In
c
o
m

e
(3

1
,1

0
9
)

(3
1
,1

5
9
)

(3
4
,2

5
4
)

(3
4
,2

5
4
)

(3
,0

9
5
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,4

8
4

2
,8

6
2

2
,8

6
2

2
,8

6
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,2

1
8

1
,2

3
9

1
,2

5
4

1
,2

5
4

1
5

1

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,1
8
5
)

(1
,2

3
7
)

(1
,2

4
2
)

(1
,2

4
2
)

(5
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

2
1
2

1
2

1
0

5
0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
5

5
1
1

6
0
1

6
0
1

9
0

1
8

In
c
o
m

e
(5

0
8
)

(5
5
7
)

(7
0
8
)

(7
0
8
)

(1
5
1
)

2
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
)

(4
6
)

(1
0
7
)

(1
0
7
)

(6
1
)

1
3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,5

9
8

8
,7

9
4

1
2
,3

3
9

1
2
,3

3
9

3
,5

4
5

4
0

In
c
o
m

e
(9

,7
3
7
)

(8
,4

9
6
)

(1
2
,3

5
1
)

(1
2
,3

5
1
)

(3
,8

5
5
)

4
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
3
9
)

2
9
8

(1
2
)

(1
2
)

(3
1
0
)

(1
0
4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,3

5
4

7
,6

0
8

7
,7

1
6

7
,7

1
6

1
0
8

1

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,3
9
4
)

(3
,5

3
5
)

(3
,2

7
9
)

(3
,2

7
9
)

2
5
6

(7
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
,9

6
0

4
,0

7
3

4
,4

3
7

4
,4

3
7

3
6
4

9

R
5
0
  

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s

R
4
8
  

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
4
4
  

C
a
s
h

ie
rs

R
4
2
  

D
e
b

to
rs

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 A
U

D
IT

 &
 R

IS
K

R
3
6
  

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a
x
 &

 N
N

D
R

R
4
0
  

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

R
3
4
  

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

L
o
w

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

  
fr

o
m

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

re
a
lis

e
d
.

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

in
 2

0
1
0
/1

1

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 

fr
o
m

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

3
0
 o

f 
3
3

Page 124



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 

v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8
7
,9

6
9

1
8
7
,9

6
9

2
3
4
,0

5
9

2
3
4
,0

5
9

4
6
,0

9
0

2
5

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
7
,4

7
4
)

(1
8
7
,4

7
4
)

(2
3
3
,9

3
4
)

(2
3
3
,9

3
4
)

(4
6
,4

6
0
)

2
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
9
5

4
9
5

1
2
5

1
2
5

(3
7
0
)

(7
5
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,9

1
3

8
,0

7
4

8
,6

0
0

8
,6

0
0

5
2
6

7

In
c
o
m

e
(5

,9
3
3
)

(5
,9

3
2
)

(6
,5

0
5
)

(6
,5

0
5
)

(5
7
3
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,9

8
0

2
,1

4
2

2
,0

9
5

2
,0

9
5

(4
7
)

(2
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
2
1

4
2
2

6
4
3

6
4
3

2
2
1

5
2

In
c
o
m

e
(4

2
5
)

(4
3
3
)

(6
4
3
)

(6
4
3
)

(2
1
0
)

4
8

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(4
)

(1
1
)

1
1

(1
0
0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
9
,5

7
1

2
4
8
,6

3
8

3
0
2
,3

2
8

3
0
2
,3

2
8

5
3
,6

9
0

2
2

In
c
o
m

e
(2

3
9
,7

6
5
)

(2
3
8
,8

2
3
)

(2
9
2
,9

1
6
)

(2
9
2
,9

1
6
)

(5
4
,0

9
3
)

2
3

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
,8

0
6

9
,8

1
5

9
,4

1
2

0
0

9
,4

1
2

(4
0
3
)

(4
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
6
5

1
,0

8
1

1
,1

8
4

1
,1

8
4

1
0
3

1
0

In
c
o
m

e
(7

5
2
)

(7
5
4
)

(8
3
1
)

(8
3
1
)

(7
7
)

1
0

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
3

3
2
7

3
5
3

3
5
3

2
6

8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
6
1

7
8
2

8
2
2

8
2
2

4
0

5

In
c
o
m

e
(8

0
3
)

(6
8
5
)

(7
2
5
)

(7
2
5
)

(4
0
)

6
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(4
2
)

9
7

9
7

9
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

2
6

1
,8

6
3

2
,0

0
6

2
,0

0
6

1
4
3

8

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,5
5
5
)

(1
,4

3
9
)

(1
,5

5
6
)

(1
,5

5
6
)

(1
1
7
)

8
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
1

4
2
4

4
5
0

0
0

4
5
0

2
6

6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

3
2

2
,3

6
8

2
,4

0
3

2
,4

0
3

3
5

1

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,2
6
1
)

(2
,3

9
6
)

(2
,4

0
3
)

(2
,4

0
3
)

(7
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7
1

(2
8
)

2
8

(1
0
0
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

7
5

2
,5

6
5

2
,6

6
1

2
,6

6
1

9
6

4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

2
5
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,4

5
0

2
,5

6
5

2
,6

6
1

2
,6

6
1

9
6

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,0

0
7

4
,9

3
3

5
,0

6
4

5
,0

6
4

1
3
1

3

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,3
8
6
)

(2
,3

9
6
)

(2
,4

0
3
)

(2
,4

0
3
)

(7
)

0
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

2
1

2
,5

3
7

2
,6

6
1

0
0

2
,6

6
1

1
2
4

5

R
8
2
  

N
o

n
-D

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 C
o

s
ts

R
3
8
  

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

R
6
0
  

R
e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s

R
5
8
  

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

d
m

in

R
5
4
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 &
 I

C
T

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 P
R

O
C

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 &

 

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
 &

 

N
D

C

R
4
6
  

P
a
y
m

e
n

ts

R
3
2
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
e

H
ig

h
e
r 

H
B

 s
u
b
s
id

y
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 d
u
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

in
 H

B
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
R

2
P

 p
o
s
t 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 

n
e
tt

e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

S
e
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

3
1
 o

f 
3
3

Page 125



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

fr
o

m
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 

C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 

U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 

v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

7
4

1
,4

6
3

2
,7

9
2

(6
8
9
)

2
,1

0
3

6
4
0

4
4

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,3
3
7
)

(2
,1

5
0
)

(2
,2

4
8
)

(2
,2

4
8
)

(9
8
)

5
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(1
6
3
)

(6
8
7
)

5
4
4

(6
8
9
)

(1
4
5
)

5
4
2

(7
9
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,4

4
6

3
,4

9
3

4
,1

6
5

4
,1

6
5

6
7
2

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
(3

,1
1
4
)

(2
,5

7
4
)

(3
,2

1
2
)

(3
,2

1
2
)

(6
3
8
)

2
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3
2

9
1
9

9
5
3

9
5
3

3
4

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,7

8
0

3
,8

7
3

3
,8

1
5

3
,8

1
5

(5
8
)

(1
)

In
c
o
m

e
(2

,5
1
1
)

(3
,1

1
2
)

(3
,2

8
8
)

(3
,2

8
8
)

(1
7
6
)

6
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

6
9

7
6
1

5
2
7

5
2
7

(2
3
4
)

(3
1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

3
0

1
,3

3
5

1
,7

0
2

1
,7

0
2

3
6
7

2
7

In
c
o
m

e
(4

3
3
)

(4
3
3
)

(8
9
7
)

(8
9
7
)

(4
6
4
)

1
0
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9
7

9
0
2

8
0
5

8
0
5

(9
7
)

(1
1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
,7

3
0

1
0
,1

6
4

1
2
,4

7
4

(6
8
9
)

1
1
,7

8
5

1
,6

2
1

1
6

In
c
o
m

e
(7

,3
9
5
)

(8
,2

6
9
)

(9
,6

4
5
)

(9
,6

4
5
)

(1
,3

7
6
)

1
7

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,3

3
5

1
,8

9
5

2
,8

2
9

(6
8
9
)

0
2
,1

4
0

2
4
5

1
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9
9

5
5
5

5
5
5

(4
4
)

(7
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
9
9

5
5
5

5
5
5

(4
4
)

(7
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
9
9

5
5
5

5
5
5

(4
4
)

(7
)

In
c
o
m

e
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
5
9
9

5
5
5

0
0

5
5
5

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
6
,5

3
0

2
6
7
,7

4
6

3
2
3
,8

9
3

(6
8
9
)

3
2
3
,2

0
4

5
5
,4

5
8

2
1

In
c
o
m

e
(2

5
2
,6

1
6
)

(2
5
2
,3

0
9
)

(3
0
7
,8

9
4
)

(3
0
7
,8

9
4
)

(5
5
,5

8
5
)

2
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,9

1
4

1
5
,4

3
7

1
5
,9

9
9

(6
8
9
)

0
1
5
,3

1
0

(1
2
7
)

(1
)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 T

O
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

A
T

E
S

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
2
,6

6
6

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
,2

3
4
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,4

3
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
7
6

In
c
o
m

e
(4

5
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
8
9
,6

7
2

In
c
o
m

e
(2

7
1
,3

0
9
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8
,3

6
3

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

R
9
4
  

H
R

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

R
9
0
  

H
R

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
S

 O
F

F
IC

E

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

R
8
0
  

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 O

ff
ic

e

A
D

M
IN

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 T

O
 D

&
R

D
E

P
O

T
S

 T
O

 D
&

R

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

R
9
2
  

H
R

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

c
y

R
9
6
  

P
A

S
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

H
R

IP
 c

o
s
ts

.

3
2
 o

f 
3
3

Page 126



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

F
in

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 

F
u

n
d

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

N
e
w

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

R
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 C
a
rr

y
 

F
o

rw
a
rd

 U
n

s
p

e
n

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

F
in

a
l 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8
6

2
,2

5
1

(2
,2

5
1
)

(1
8
6
)

(1
0
0
)

In
c
o
m

e
(1

8
6
)

1
8
6

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
,2

5
1

(2
,2

5
1
)

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
,2

4
8

1
8
,1

8
1

1
9
,1

7
8

1
9
,1

7
8

9
9
7

5

In
c
o
m

e
(1

,5
0
0
)

(6
,3

3
6
)

(7
,2

8
4
)

(7
,2

8
4
)

(9
4
8
)

1
5

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8
,5

4
8

1
7
,7

4
8

1
1
,8

4
5

1
1
,8

9
4

1
1
,8

9
4

4
9

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
1
9
,2

4
8

1
8
,3

6
7

2
1
,4

2
9

(2
,2

5
1
)

0
1
9
,1

7
8

8
1
1

4

In
c
o
m

e
0

(1
,5

0
0
)

(6
,5

2
2
)

(7
,2

8
4
)

0
0

(7
,2

8
4
)

(7
6
2
)

1
2

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
8
,5

4
8

1
7
,7

4
8

1
1
,8

4
5

1
4
,1

4
5

(2
,2

5
1
)

0
1
1
,8

9
4

4
9

0

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
S

T
S

 &
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

R
6
2
  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

R
8
8
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
s
ts

 &
 F

in
a
n

c
in

g

3
3
 o

f 
3
3

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 -

 M
A

R
C

H
 2

0
1
1

  
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 &

 N
o

n
 D

w
e
ll
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
In

c
o
m

e
(5

9
,4

2
7
)

(5
9
,0

8
2
)

(5
9
,2

5
6
)

(1
7
4
)

0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(5
9
,4

2
7
)

(5
9
,0

8
2
)

(5
9
,2

5
6
)

(1
7
4
)

0

  
T

e
n

a
n

t 
&

 L
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

In
c
o
m

e
(1

6
,7

0
5
)

(1
7
,0

5
0
)

(1
6
,2

0
0
)

8
5
0

(5
)

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
6
,7

0
5
)

(1
7
,0

5
0
)

(1
6
,2

0
0
)

8
5
0

(5
)

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 I
N

C
O

M
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
In

c
o
m

e
(1

3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
4
,1

2
9
)

(5
0
4
)

4

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
3
,6

2
5
)

(1
4
,1

2
9
)

(5
0
4
)

4

  
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e
 R

e
c
e
iv

e
d

In
c
o
m

e
(2

0
0
)

(2
0
0
)

(9
6
)

1
0
4

(5
2
)

T
h
e
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
, 
a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y 
re

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 o
f 

m
o
rt

g
a
g
e
s
, 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 H

R
A

 b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
w

 L
IB

O
R

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
ra

te
s
.

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(2
0
0
)

(2
0
0
)

(9
6
)

1
0
4

(5
2
)

  
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
In

c
o
m

e
(5

2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
1
)

(1
)

0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
0
)

(5
2
1
)

(1
)

0

  
T

O
T

A
L

 I
N

C
O

M
E

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,2

0
2
)

2
7
5

(0
)

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,4

7
7
)

(9
0
,2

0
2
)

2
7
5

(0
)

D
IR

E
C

T
L

Y
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

L
E

D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

  
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,8

2
1

1
1
6

1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,7

0
5

2
1
,8

2
1

1
1
6

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

In
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
e
n
a
n
t 
re

n
ts

 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

f 
L
a
th

a
m

 H
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
-l

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
v
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
T

h
e
 

re
n
ta

l 
in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 s

h
o
p
 l
e
a
s
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

F
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

E
s
ta

te
 P

a
rk

in
g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 m
u
c
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

s
tr

ic
t 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 f

e
w

e
r 

b
re

a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 l
e
s
s
 c

la
m

p
in

g
 

in
c
o
m

e
. 
 A

ll 
o
th

e
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
e
n
a
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 i
s
 a

 l
it
tl
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
. 
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
c
ie

rg
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

M
a
n
y 

o
f 

th
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 H
R

A
 s

u
b
s
id

y 
e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 p
re

-s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r,

 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 g

ra
n
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 R

a
te

 o
f 

In
te

re
s
t 

is
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 e

x
tr

a
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

p
ri

o
r 

ye
a
r 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

.

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 R

e
p
a
ir

s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 b

y 
T

H
H

 .
 

T
h
e
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

ld
e
rl

y 
p
e
rs

o
n
s
' 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
, 
a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

1
 o

f 
2

Page 129



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

  
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
n

y
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

ll
 v

a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 £
1
0
0
k
 

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 (
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t

o
 L

a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

  
S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 &

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,1

7
2

(4
8
0
)

(2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,6

5
2

2
5
,1

7
2

(4
8
0
)

(2
)

  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
R

e
n

t 
R

a
te

s
 &

 T
a
x
e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

8
9

7
8

1

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

1
1

1
3
,9

8
9

7
8

1

IN
D

IR
E

C
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

S

  
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

a
d

 &
 D

o
u

b
tf

u
l 
D

e
b

ts
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
0

9
0
0

6
9
9

(2
0
1
)

(2
2
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
0
0

9
0
0

6
9
9

(2
0
1
)

(2
2
)

  
C

a
p

it
a
l 
F

in
a
n

c
in

g
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

2
9
,8

5
5

(2
,7

5
0
)

(8
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
2
,6

0
5

3
2
,6

0
5

2
9
,8

5
5

(2
,7

5
0
)

(8
)

  
T

O
T

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,7

7
3

9
1
,5

3
6

(3
,2

3
7
)

(3
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

9
4
,7

7
3

9
4
,7

7
3

9
1
,5

3
6

(3
,2

3
7
)

(3
)

T
o

ta
l 
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,2

9
6

4
,2

9
6

1
,3

3
4

(2
,9

6
2
)

(6
9
)

  
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

 
3
,0

0
0

(1
0
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
,0

0
0
)

(3
,0

0
0
)

3
,0

0
0

(1
0
0
)

T
O

T
A

L
 F

O
R

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
T

o
ta

l 
N

e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,2

9
6

1
,2

9
6

1
,3

3
4

3
8

3

P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 R

a
te

 I
n
te

re
s
t 
p
a
id

 o
n
 b

o
th

 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
d
e
b
t 
. 
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
is

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

In
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
, 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

a
d
 d

e
b
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

D
u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
th

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 p

a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y 

th
e
 s

e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

o
ld

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 d

is
re

p
a
ir

 c
la

im
s
, 
in

c
u
rr

e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

H
H

. 
 T

h
e
 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

is
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

a
c
k
d
a
te

d
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

.

T
h
e
 s

lig
h
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

tt
ri

b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 (
te

n
a
n
te

d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
).

  
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 E

s
ta

te
 P

a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 a

n
d
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
e
p
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

le
a
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 o

n
to

 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 l
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 (

s
e
e
 

T
e
n
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 L

e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 -

 a
b
o
v
e
).

  
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fu

n
d
s
 o

f 
u
ti
lit

y 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 W

a
te

r,
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 R
S

L
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 F

in
a
lly

, 

th
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
c
ie

rg
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

2
 o

f 
2

Page 130



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
E

D
 C

A
R

R
Y

- 
F

O
R

W
A

R
D

S
 A

N
D

 U
S

E
 O

F
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
 

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
(£

’0
0

0
) 

D
e
ta

il
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

IN
G

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

  

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
 –

 P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

1
0
6
 

F
u
n

d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h

ro
u
g
h
 t
h

e
 

Y
o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 v

o
te

d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

  

A
H

W
B

 T
o

ta
l 

  
1
0
6
 

  

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

1
4
5
 

F
u
n

d
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 
N

H
S

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 u
n
d
e

r 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

C
E

 T
o

ta
l 
 

  
1
4
5
 

  

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
 m

o
n
ie

s
 –

 P
C

T
 

7
0
 

T
h
is

 c
a
rr

ie
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 m
o
n
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 
in

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
’s

 Y
o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 A

lc
o
h
o
l’s

 H
a
rm

. 

C
S

F
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
7
0
 

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

  
 

L
A

P
 M

e
n

u
s
 –

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

B
u
s
 

4
8
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
ta

rt
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 a

n
d

 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

d
a
y
 t

ri
p
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

d
u
c
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
w

in
te

r 
m

o
n
th

s
. 
B

a
la

n
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

d
a
y
 t
ri

p
s
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

 
S

tr
e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
 

1
0
6
 

R
e
p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
to

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 f

o
r 

d
e
fi
c
it
s
 i
n
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

6
1
0
 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
re

s
e
rv

e
. 

C
L

C
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
7
6
4
 

  

Page 131



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

L
a

n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

1
2
5
 

T
o
 h

o
ld

 t
h
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 

L
a

n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 T

ra
d
in

g
 A

/C
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 f

u
tu

re
 

d
e
fi
c
it
 o

r 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
s
e
 

th
is

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

6
 

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
tr

a
d
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t.
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
s
e

rv
e
s
 

1
1
2
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
to

 s
a
v
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 I

C
T

/F
M

 l
e
a
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
A

F
C

O
M

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
C

a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 
1
1
6
 

F
u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 a

 5
-1

0
%

 (
£
1

5
0
-3

0
0
k
) 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

v
e
r 

2
0

1
1
/1

2
. 

D
&

R
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
3
5
9
 

  

T
O

T
A

L
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
  

1
,4

4
4
 

  

Page 132



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
(£

’0
0

0
) 

D
e
ta

il
 

 
 

 
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

E
D

 O
R

 P
R

E
-A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
S

 T
O

 a
n

d
 F

R
O

M
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
1
,4

7
7
 

U
n
u
ti
lis

e
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 G
ra

n
t,

 f
o
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 r

e
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
, 
c
a
p

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 

th
e
 e

n
ti
re

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 I
 

2
1
0
 

T
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
in

 2
0

1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 

2
0

1
1
/1

2
, 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
lie

n
t 

d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
 u

s
in

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 I
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

. 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
tr

o
k
e
 

1
7
6
 

R
in

g
 f

e
n
c
e

d
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

tr
o
k
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 
c
a
re

rs
. 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

5
1
8
 

U
s
e
 o

f 
M

H
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

n
t 
to

 f
u
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

u
d

g
e

t 

A
H

W
B

 T
o

ta
l 

  
2
,3

8
1
 

  

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
E

le
c
ti
o
n
 F

u
n

d
 

6
5
0
 

L
o
c
a
l 
E

le
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g
 

a
s
id

e
 £

7
5
K

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
. 
A

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
3
0
0
K

 i
s
 a

c
c
ru

e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
s
 e

v
e
ry

 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
rs

. 

C
E

 T
o

ta
l 
 

  
6
5
0
 

  

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

A
B

G
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

5
1
 

T
h
is

 c
a
rr

ie
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 m
o
n
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

’ 
A

B
G

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

Page 133



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s
 

5
8
 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

J
C

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
la

im
s
. 

C
S

F
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
1
0
9
 

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

 
C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

1
9
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

 
B

la
c
k
w

a
ll 

D
e
p
o
t 

5
0
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

D
e
p
o
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
lie

n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 G

ra
n
t 

5
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

m
e
lio

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

re
la

te
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

C
L

C
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
1
1
9
 

  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

6
2
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 g

ra
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 f

ro
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 
w

h
e

re
 n

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n
 

2
2
0
 

U
ti
lis

e
d
 p

o
s
t 
2

0
1

0
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 a

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t

a
p

e
ri

n
g
 p

e
ri

o
d
, 

a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

ff
o
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 a

ls
o
 

e
x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e

r 
a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

7
5
6
 

T
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 m

a
jo

r 
o
n
-g

o
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

9
7
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 (

e
.g

. 
s
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
) 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 p

e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

Page 134



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y
 L

o
a
n
s
 

2
0
0
 

T
o
 m

e
e
t 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

a
n
y
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

a
 t
h
ir
d
 

p
a

rt
y
 l
o

a
n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

C
ro

s
s
ra

il 
3
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il,

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 C

ro
s
s
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 R

a
il 

L
in

k
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

in
g
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

O
c
e

a
n
 N

e
w

 D
e

a
l 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

5
2
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
W

a
rd

e
n
s
 P

ro
je

c
t 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 

th
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t.
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

F
u
tu

re
 

1
,1

5
5
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 
b
e
tw

e
e

n
 B

S
F

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
n

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
P

F
I 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 

D
&

R
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
2
,5

7
2
 

  

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

6
8
9
 

T
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e
t.
 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
6
8
9
 

  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 

1
,7

1
8
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t
h

e
 P

M
O

, 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

In
v
e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v
e
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

5
3
3
 

T
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t
a

rg
e
t.
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 
 

  
2
,2

5
1
 

  

T
O

T
A

L
 P

R
E

-A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 

8
,7

7
1
 

  

 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

TRANSFORMATION SAVINGS SUMMARY 2010/11

Savings 

Target 

Outturn 

Savings 
Variance Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000

ADULTS HEALTH & WELLBEING

AHWB/186 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice)              407 407             -              

AHWB/159
Corporate Transformation Programme. Savings from 

using Comensura for Homecare agency staff 400             400             -              

AHWB/146
Use of Care Funding Calculator to reduce external 

placement costs 400             400             -              

AHWB/147
Homecare Reablement Service-Reducing demand for 

long term services 

300             300             -              

The use of the reablement service is 

on the increase. An evaluation is 

being undertaken on the level of 

savings

AHWB/148

Reduce the cost of MH Residential placement costs by 

moving Clients from residential accommodation into 

Supported Living 100             100             -              

AHWB/153 Address Riverside House voids 200             200             -              

AHWB/161
Electronic Homecare Monitoring to align hours of 

domiciliary care paid for with actual hours delivered.

160             160             -              

Increase in number of clients due to 

demographic pressure is resulting in 

overspending in some areas

TOTAL - ADULTS HEALTH & WELLBEING 1,967          1,967          -              

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

CE/125
Review and create a flexible 

strategic/policy/performance core 
145             145             

-              
Budget adjusted to factor in savings

CE/187 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 83               83               
-              

Budget adjusted to factor in savings

TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 228             228             -              

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE

CLC/100 Health & Safety Review - Service Integration 25               25               -              

CLC/188 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 536             536             -              

TOTAL - COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES & CULTURE 561             561             -              

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

CSF/189 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 1,728          1,728          

-              

Mainly through Children's Centres' 

reorganisation and one-off measures

CSF/48
Cross-Reduce services’ comms budget by better 

planning and control
25               25               

-              

CSF/55 Requisition to Payment (R2P) 145             145             -              

CSF/41
Building Development and Technical Services  Reduce 

budgets for central maintenance.
30               30               

-              

TOTAL - CHILDREN'S SERVICES 1,928          1,928          -              

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL

D&R/190 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 295             295             -              

TOTAL - DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL 295             295             -              

RESOURCES

RES/119 Review of Directorate Admin Support 75               75               
-              

Budget adjusted to factor in savings

RES/191 HR Productivity Savings (Top Slice) 401             401             
-              

Budget adjusted to factor in savings

TOTAL - RESOURCES 476             476             -              

TOTAL SAVINGS 5,455          5,455          -              

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

SUMMARY Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Communities, Localities and Culture 12.516 11.997 95.9% -0.519

Children, Schools and Families 32.208 20.630 64.1% -11.578

Chief Executive 0.000 0.000 0.0% 0.000

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.735 0.638 86.8% -0.097

D&R 15.332 7.888 51.4% -7.444

HRA 47.307 37.224 78.7% -10.083

BSF 66.838 57.650 86.3% -9.188

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 174.936 136.027 77.8% -38.909

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Communities, Localities and Culture 1.544 1.181 76.5% -0.363

Children, Schools and Families 2.731 2.935 107.5% 0.204

Chief Executive 3.594 1.863 51.8% -1.731

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 0.432 0.129 29.9% -0.303

D&R 5.008 1.098 21.9% -3.910

BSF 1.100 0.000 0.0% -1.100

LPP TOTAL 14.409 7.206 50.0% -7.203

GRAND TOTAL 189.345 143.233 75.6% -46.112

TOTALS BY DIRECTORATE:

Communities, Localities and Culture 14.060 13.178 93.7% -0.882

Children, Schools and Families 34.939 23.565 67.4% -11.374

Chief Executive 3.594 1.863 51.8% -1.731

Adults, Health and Wellbeing 1.167 0.767 65.7% -0.400

D&R 20.340 8.986 44.2% -11.354

HRA 47.307 37.224 78.7% -10.083

BSF 67.938 57.650 84.9% -10.288

189.345 143.233 75.6% -46.112

Page 139



APPENDIX 6
CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

COMMUNITIES, LOCALITIES AND CULTURE

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Transport

TfL schemes including safety, cycling and walking 4.627 4.395 95% -0.232
There has been minor slippage on some schemes and these are aniticapted to be completed 

Q1 2011/12

Public Realm Improvements 2.581 3.055 118% 0.474

0.364 is funded by TFL for the works around grove road area, and the 0.110 is for the works 

for Crown close bridge links , which is approved in Jan'11 , funding will be received new 

financial year as the project is span over next couple of years.

Olympic Delivery Authority 0.630 0.769 122% 0.139
ODA is £0.630 plus £.055k STIG funding (late allocation from funder). Scheme jointly 

managed with OPTEMs and  s106.  Funding from s106 is available.

Developers Contribution 1.146 0.735 64% -0.411

Schemes progressing as planned, 1 scheme was delayed due to legal issues which has now 

been resolved and another scheme will progress once the development of the hotel is 

complete

OPTEMS section 106 0.055 0.060 109% 0.005 Scheme progress slightly accelerated

Leamouth Depot Sal 0.060 0.003 5% -0.057 Delay in achieving scheme approval.

Parks

Millwall Park/Island Gardens 0.088 0.082 93% -0.006

Poplar Park 0.144 0.097 67% -0.047 Consultation issues delayed scheme progress

St Johns Park 0.085 0.073 86% -0.012 Awaiting final invoices

Allen Gardens 0.027 0.027 100% 0.000

Schoolhouse Lane Multi Use Ball Games Area 0.013 0.005 38% -0.008 Scheme delayed due to change in priorities

Chicksand Ghat 0.116 0.163 141% 0.047 R2P Error - accrual raised. Will be corrected in the new year.

Meath Gardens Improvements 0.059 0.059 100% 0.000

Bethnal Green Improvements 0.222 0.111 50% -0.111 Scheme delayed due to design changes.

Wapping Gardens 0.000 0.005 N/A 0.005

Cantrell Open Space 0.001 0.001 100% 0.000

Pennyfields Open Space 0.002 0.002 100% 0.000

Belgrave St Open Space 0.010 0.010 100% 0.000

Stepney Green Gardens 0.006 0.004 67% -0.002 Awaiting final invoices

Victoria Park Masterplan (1) 0.863 0.863 100% 0.000

Cotton Street Open Space Landscape Improvements 0.046 0.003 7% -0.043 Scheme delayed due to change in priorities

St Georges in the East Gardens 0.008 0.008 100% 0.000 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Altab Ali Park 0.002 0.002 100% 0.000 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Grove Hall Park 0.003 0.003 100% 0.000 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Middleton Green Lane 0.004 0.004 100% 0.000 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Bethnal Green gardens 0.001 0.004 400% 0.003 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Gosling Gardens 0.000 0.016 N/A 0.016 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Sir John McDougal Gardens 0.000 0.004 N/A 0.004 Retention Payment funded from grant.

St James Gardens 0.000 0.041 N/A 0.041 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Middleton Green (Phase 2) 0.000 0.024 N/A 0.024 Retention Payment funded from grant.

Culture and major projects

Banglatown Art Trail & Arches 0.101 0.153 151% 0.052 Additional management of works programme.

Brady Centre 0.105 0.097 92% -0.008 Awaiting invoices

Mile End Leisure Centre - Security Enhancements 0.034 0.005 15% -0.029 Retention not yet paid as the contractor has gone into liquidation.

York Hall Boiler Demolition 0.040 0.018 45% -0.022

Poplar Baths 0.047 0.019 40% -0.028 Scheme programme slippage

Creation of Mobile Public Art 0.040 0.000 0% -0.040 Scheme programme slippage

Cable Street Mural 0.060 0.004 7% -0.056 Scheme programme slippage

Mile End Park Capi 0.068 0.019 28% -0.049

Other

CCTV 2009/10 0.127 0.136 107% 0.009

Generators @ Mulberry Place & Anchorage Hse 0.014 0.000 0% -0.014 Still awaiting Landlord formal agreement.

Contaminated land survey and works 0.100 0.035 35% -0.065 Programme slippage

585-593 Commercial Road (Parking Pound) 0.049 0.001 2% -0.048 Costs charged to revenue account

Watney Market Ideas Store (1) 0.570 0.570 100% 0.000

LAP Participatory Budgeting Schemes 0.336 0.312 93% -0.024 Majority of works completed and final invoices received

Milwall Park Master Plan 0.026 0.000 0% -0.026

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 12.516 11.997 95.9% -0.519

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Victoria Park Masterplan (2) 0.945 0.945 100% 0.000

Essential Health & Safety 0.050 0.000 0% -0.050 Programme slippage

Major Projects - LPP 0.166 0.000 0% -0.166 Retention outstanding - contractor in liquidation

Culture - LPP 0.203 0.190 94% -0.013 Awaiting final invoices

Watney Market Ideas Store (2) 0.180 0.046 26% -0.134 Scheme programme slippage

LPP TOTAL 1.544 1.181 76.5% -0.363

GRAND TOTAL 14.060 13.178 93.7% -0.882

Page 140



APPENDIX 6
CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

CHILDREN, SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Modernisation 1.947 1.651 85% -0.296 Slippage on project development

Extended Schools 0.311 0.224 72% -0.087 Projects not taken forward, resources reallocated

Schools Access Initiative 0.155 0.160 103% 0.005

Basic Need/Expansion 8.573 6.084 71% -2.489 Balance committed - slippage

Sure Start 2.617 2.137 82% -0.480 Slippage & retentions on completed projects

Primary Capital Programme 11.469 7.148 62% -4.321 Projects on site but slippage

Early Years 2.643 0.895 34% -1.748 Funding & programme cut but no adjustment to budget

City Learning Centre 0.255 0.199 78% -0.056 Harnessing Tech budget passported to schools

Bishop's Square 0.458 0.091 20% -0.367 Complex planning issues - scheme start summer 2011

Osmani - Redevelopment (1) 1.096 1.096 100% 0.000

RCCO 0.368 0.258 70% -0.110 Slippage on 1 project start 

Fair Play Pathfinder 0.021 0.021 100% 0.000

Youth Capital Fund 0.134 0.104 78% -0.030 Grant reduced - adjustment to spend

Space for Sports and Arts 0.010 0.010 100% 0.000

TCF Kitchen & Dining 0.229 0.105 46% -0.124 Projects on site - slippage in spend

Short Breaks 0.443 0.447 101% 0.004

ICT 1.479 0.000 0% -1.479 Projects identified for 2011-12 spend

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 32.208 20.630 64% -11.578

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Osmani - Redevelopment (2) 1.911 2.755 144% 0.844 Acceleration of project 

Bishop Challoner - Community 

Facilities 
0.600 0.000 0% -0.600

Scheme delayed by land issues. Planning now received and 

on site summer 2011.

Harry Gosling 0.012 0.012 97% 0.000

Toby Lane 0.014 0.000 0% -0.014 Identified for 11-12 project spend

Youth Service ( BMX Mile End ) (1) 0.100 0.100 100% 0.000

Youth Service ( BMX Mile End ) (2) 0.094 0.068 72% -0.026 Retention held & minor works to complete

LPP TOTAL 2.731 2.935 107% 0.204

GRAND TOTAL 34.939 23.565 67% -11.374

Page 141



APPENDIX 6

CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

CHIEF EXECUTIVE & RESOURCES

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Resources

ICT - Software Licences 1.032 0.846 82% -0.186
Budget is estimate relating to expenditure in previous years. Funded from 

revenue resources.

Telephony invest to save 1.187 0.796 67% -0.391 Projected to fully spend by end of financial year 2011/12.

ICT 0.221 0.221 100% 0.000

Corporate

FM: Accommodation Strategy 1.069 0.000 100% -1.069 Kept for next phase of Accommodation Strategy 

FM: Anchorage Dilapidations 0.085 0.000 9% -0.085 Will be spent when Anchorage House is vacated

TOTAL LPP 3.594 1.863 52% -1.731

Page 142



APPENDIX 6

CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

ADULTS, HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Adults social care IT infrastructure 0.283 0.283 100% 0.000

Mental health services 0.190 0.112 59% -0.078

The year end position reflects the forecasts made during the year. There is 

a series of commitments that will be realised in 2011/2012 following the 

stock condition surveys being delayed in 2010/2011. The balance of funding 

shall therefore be incurred in 2011/2012.

Safety works 0.123 0.124 101% 0.001

LIP 0.119 0.119 100% 0.000

Improving the Care Home Environment for Older Peopl0.020 0.000 0% -0.020
AHWB met its programme objectives without using these resources and 

therefore the capital commitment is no longer required.

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 0.735 0.638 87% -0.097

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Mental Health Services (LPP-funded) 0.012 0.012 100% 0.000

Efficiency Project - System/technology 0.270 0.117 43% -0.153

The electronic homecare monitoring system was due to go live on the 31st 

March 2011, however unfortunately the project has slipped and will not go 

live until June 2011. Expenditure related to the interface being developed 

with the client management system has therefore been delayed to 

2011/2012.

In addition, the original capital estimate included revenue expenditure items 

that could not be charged to capital. These were charged to the revenue 

accounts at the end of the year and are for the running expenses of the 

system.

Efficiency Project - Single Assessment 0.150 0.000 0% -0.150
AHWB met its programme objectives without using these resources and 

therefore the capital commitment is no longer required.

LPP TOTAL 0.432 0.129 30% -0.303

GRAND TOTAL 1.167 0.767 66% -0.400

Page 143



APPENDIX 6CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Millennium Quarter 0.200 0.009 5% -0.191

The Millenium Quarter project is fully financed from Section 106 resources and combines revenue 

and capital . The capital underspend reflects a revised revenue/capital split of the overall Isle of 

Dogs Community Foundation spend, which increased the revenue element and reduced capital. 

Bishops Square 0.930 0.816 88% -0.114
This is a fully Section 106 funded scheme with the slippage of earmarked resources being carried 

forward into 2011-12.

Roman Road Shops/                            

Bethnal Green Terrace
0.320 0.092 29% -0.228

This scheme is fully LABGI funded, with the slippage of earmarked resources being carried forward 

into 2011-12.

Whitechapel Centre 1.105 1.101 100% -0.004

Disabled Facilities Grant 0.730 0.730 100% 0.000

The spend against this budget is dependent on claims from external applicants, including RSLs. The 

budget is fully committed through grant approvals but claims for works did not fully utilise the 

available resources (see Local Priorities Programme element below), although the Government grant 

element was fully maximised.

High Street 2012 4.860 2.730 56% -2.130

This scheme is programmed to mainly take place over the three years to 2012-13. The Authority has 

contributed £1.5 million of Local Priorities Programme and Section 106 resources, with the remaining 

funding being received from various agencies. The spend profile is flexible between financial years, 

and slippage to starts on site has meant that significant costs associated with the commencement of 

the site works are now programmed for 2011-12 rather than 2010-11.

Dunbridge Street Health and Well-

Being Centre
1.610 1.610 100% 0.000

St Andrew's Health and Well-

Being Centre
4.777 0.000 0% -4.777

There is currently no mechanism to passport large sums to the NHS. Although a resolution is being 

sought. In  the interim no expenditure is anticipated this financial year.

Alie Street 0.800 0.800 100% 0.000

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 15.332 7.888 51% -7.444

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Private Sector and Affordable 

Housing
1.000 0.000 0% -1.000

This project relies on developing schemes with RSLs to recycle capital receipts to fund 

development. No projects were undertaken during 2010-11.

High Street 2012 0.900 0.000 0% -0.900

See Mainstream programme above. This scheme is programmed to mainly take place over the three 

years to 2012-13. The Authority has contributed £1.5 million of Local Priorities Programme and 

Section 106 resources, with the remaining funding being received from various agencies. The spend 

profile is flexible between financial years, and slippage to starts on site has meant that significant 

costs associated with the commencement of the site works are now programmed for 2011-12 rather 

than 2010-11.

Discretionary Private Sector 

Housing Grants
0.850 0.652 77% -0.198

The spend against this budget is dependent on claims from external applicants. Although the budget 

is fully committed through grant approvals claims for works completed did not fully utilise the budget 

in the current year.

Disabled Facilities Grant 0.270 0.207 77% -0.063

The spend against this budget is dependent on claims from external applicants, including RSLs. The 

budget is fully committed through grant approvals but claims for works did not fully utilise the 

available resources. (see Mainstream Programme above).

Installation of Automatic Energy 

Meters
0.200 0.026 -0.174

Slippage has taken place on this scheme and it is now anticipated that the works will be completed 

during 2011/12.

Emergency Property Works 

Contingency
1.000 0.000 0% -1.000

This is a contingency established for possible emergency health and safety works as part of the 

2009-10 budget process. No expenditure was incurred during 2010/11 and the provision will be 

carried forward into 2011-12 as necessary.

FM: Corporate DDA Programme 0.755 0.181 26% -0.574

FM: Southern Grove- Roof 

Improvements
0.002 0.000 100% -0.002 Scheme complete

FM: Poplar Public Mortuary 0.004 0.000 9% -0.004 Scheme complete

Brady Centre- Toilets 0.026 0.026 9% 0.000 Budget brought forward from Asset Management; scheme now complete

Anchorage House Chillers 0.000 0.006 9% 0.006 Original budget now expended.  This is residual spend incurred in 2010/11.

LPP TOTAL 5.008 1.098 22% -3.910

GRAND TOTAL 20.340 8.986 44% -11.354

Page 144



APPENDIX 6CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

DEVELOPMENT & RENEWAL

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Regional Housing Pot 4.564 0.620 14% -3.944

Funding of approximately £7.27 million has been secured from the DCLG 

to facilitate the regeneration of the St Clement's Hospital site and to 

undertake masterplaniing on the Malmesbury and Birchfield Estates. The 

masterplanning contracts have been let and some expenditure was 

incurred during 2010-11. Initial profiled expenditure had indicated that 

costs of £4.564 million would be incurred in 2010-11, however funds are 

not specific to a particular financial year and will be carried forward for 

utilisation in later years as necessary.

Decent Homes 22.007 17.922 81% -4.085

The mainstream Housing Capital programme is managed by Tower 

Hamlets Homes on behalf of the Authority and incorporates work to the 

Council's own stock. The initial programme approved by Cabinet in March 

2010 was £24.290 million, however this programme was revised by 

Cabinet in September 2010 in light of concerns regarding the level of 

resources available for future years. Indicative committed resources in 

2010-11 were £22.007 million, but certain schemes have slipped into 

2011-12. A report will be considered by Cabinet on 8 June 2011 detailing 

the resources carried forward into 2011-12 and updating Members of 

their committed use. 

Overcrowding Strategy 1.815 2.049 113% 0.234

The Overcrowding Strategy represented a £19.4 million commitment over 

two financial years. The initial Cabinet report estimated that expenditure 

of £9.7 million would be incurred in 2009-10, with the same amount in 

2010-11. As is the case with Blackwall Reach, this profile was flexible, 

with resources being in place to finance the expenditure in earlier years 

as necessary. The level of interest in the scheme meant that the number 

of completions during 2009-10 was significantly higher than initial 

projections anticipated. Resources were therefore brought forward into 

2009-10 within a corresponding decrease in the available budget for 2010-

11. A slight overspend on the programme meant that spend of £19.6 

million was ultimately incurred across the total programme.

Council Housebuilding 

Initiative
2.670 0.894 33% -1.776

Slippage occurred on this project due to on-site delays arising, as well as 

various legal issues with certain elements of the project. However all 

necessary milestones were met to ensure that Government grant was 

maximised, with the profile of the overall scheme adjusted in agreement 

with the Homes and Communities Agency. Funding is in place for the full 

three year scheme and is therefore flexible between years, provided 

expenditure continues to be incurred in accordance with the grant 

conditions.

Blackwall Reach 2.200 0.983 45% -1.217

The Blackwall Reach project represents a £13 million commitment over 

three financial years. A delay in the leaseholder buyback programme 

pending on-going approval for the scheme meant that the actual outturn 

was lower than forecast. The spend profile is flexible however, with 

resources in place to adapt the profiled expenditure between years as 

necessary.

Delivering Decent Homes 

(Accelerated Delivery)
2.000 1.994 100% -0.006

Ocean New Deal for 

Communities
10.000 10.617 106% 0.617

This project is funded from NDC capital grant of £5,000,000 and 

mainstream Capital Resources of £5,000,000 in 2010-11. Full 

expenditure was incurred in accordance with DCLG grant conditions. 

Resources are earmarked for the remaining two years of the NDC 

project, with an element being brought forward to fund the additional costs 

incurred in 2010-11.

Cotall Street / Bartlett 

Park
0.361 0.389 108% 0.028

Social Housing Energy 

Savings Programme
1.690 1.756 104% 0.066

HRA TOTAL 47.307 37.224 79% -10.083

Page 145



APPENDIX 6
CAPITAL MONITORING Q4

BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE (BSF)

Budget at Spend to % Budget Actual

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-11 Spent Variance

from

Budget

£m £m % £m REASONS FOR VARIANCES

MAINSTREAM PROGRAMME

Wessex 0.179 0.107 60% -0.072

St Paul's Way 16.983 14.197 84% -2.786

Bethnal Green Tech. College 4.260 4.818 113% 0.558

Tower Hamlets LEP 0.000 0.611 N/A 0.611

Morpeth 8.932 7.469 84% -1.463

Oaklands 6.600 7.815 118% 1.215

Sir John Cass 8.305 8.034 97% -0.271

Ian Mikardo 3.900 3.498 90% -0.402

Bowden House 1.000 0.915 92% -0.085

PRU Harpley 3.000 2.041 68% -0.959

Swanlea 4.000 3.651 91% -0.349

Raines 3.000 2.795 93% -0.205

Central Foundation 1.500 0.177 12% -1.323

Langdon Park 1.500 0.297 20% -1.203

Phoenix 1.000 0.016 2% -0.984

Stepney Green 1.500 0.016 1% -1.484

Bow Boys 0.000 0.014 N/A 0.014

ICT Infrastructure Schemes 1.179 1.179 100% 0.000

MAINSTREAM TOTAL 66.838 57.650 86% -9.188

LOCAL PRIORITIES PROGRAMME

Wave 5 BSF 1.100 0.000 0% -1.100
LPP (£550k) fully utilised, expenditure contained within BSF capital 

schemes shown above.

LPP TOTAL 1.100 0.000 0% -1.100

GRAND TOTAL 67.938 57.650 85% -10.288

The Building Schools for the Future funding carries forward from 

year to year and is not year specific.  The significant resource 

underspend from 2010/11 will be carried forward to be used in 

future years.

Page 146



Appendix 7 - Capital Receipts Allocations Requested to be Carried Forward at 31/3/11

Ref Project (to be Funded by Capital Receipts)
Year of original 

allocation

Available 

Allocation at 

1/4/10

Expenditure 

funded by 

Capital 

Receipts in 

20100/11

Remaining 

allocation at 

31/3/11

£m £m £m

OS312 Southern Grove - Roof Improvements 2003/04 0.002 - 0.002

OS415
Introduction of Food Regeneration Kitchens at Four 

Schools
2004/05 0.005 - 0.005

OS418 Poplar Public Mortuary 2004/05 0.004 - 0.004

OS502 Improvements to School Meal Kitchens 2005/06 0.002 - 0.002

OS505 Youth Service Accommodation Strategy 2005/06 0.094 (0.071) 0.024

OS550 Rampart Street CPO 2005/06 0.036 - 0.036

OS600
Improvements to school meals - kitchen refurbishment 

and modernisation
2006/07 0.007 - 0.007

OS601 Harry Gosling School Loan 2006/07 0.012 - 0.012

OS637 Idea Stores Finance 2006/07 0.122 - 0.122

OS638
LIFT Co Fees (RCDA Sep 2010 agreed to use this to 

fund W.O. 37763 Mental Health)
2006/07 0.012 (0.012) -

OS703 Business Continuity Planning 2007/08 0.012 - 0.012

OS705 ICT 2007/08 0.222 (0.222) -

OS707 Essential Health & Safety 2007/08 0.269 - 0.269

OS710 Accommodation Strategy 2007/08 1.068 - 1.068

OS710a
Accommodation Strategy (Agreed to use for Watney 

Ideas Store)
2007/08 1.000 (0.616) 0.384

OS714 20mph zones 2007/08 0.009 (0.009) -

OS801 Bishop Challoner Community Facilities 2008/09 0.110 - 0.110

OS802 Corporate DDA Programme 2008/09 2008/09 0.500 (0.181) 0.319

OS803 Asset Management Programme 2008/09 0.128 (0.032) 0.096

OS806a Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grant  2008/09 0.261 (0.261) -

OS810 Langdon Park Station 2008/09 0.017 (0.017) -

OS902a Bishop Challenor Community Facilities 2008/09 0.435 - 0.435

OS903a Osmani Youth Centre 2009/10 1.244 (1.244) -

OS908 Bancroft Library 2009/10 0.203 (0.190) 0.013

OS909a Mandatory Disabled Facilities Grants 2009/10 0.223 (0.223) -

OS910 Emergency Works Contingency 2009/10 1.000 - 1.000

OS913 Street Lighting Improvements 2009/10 0.001 (0.001) -

OS914 Installation of Automatic Energy Meters 2009/10 0.200 (0.026) 0.174

OS915a High Street 2012 2009/10 0.200 - 0.200

OS916a Discretionary Disabled Facilities Grants 2009/10 0.087 (0.021) 0.066

OS918 Corporate DDA Programme 2009/10 2009/10 0.255 - 0.255

LPP10.01 Wave 5 BSF 2010/11 0.550 (0.550) -

LPP10.02 Osmani Youth Centre 2010/11 2.000 (1.912) 0.088

LPP10.03 Bishop Challenor Community Facilities 2010/11 0.055 - 0.055

LPP10.04 High Street 2012 2010/11 0.400 - 0.400

LPP10.05 Mandatory DFG 2010/11 0.500 (0.313) 0.187

LPP10.06 Aids and Adaptations 2010/11 0.100 (0.100) -

LPP10.10 Victoria Park Masterplan 2010/11 1.600 (1.393) 0.207

LPP10.11 Contingency - Blackwall Reach 2010/11 4.000 (0.960) 3.040

HREC1 Ropery St receipt to be used for grant to Network HA n/a 0.800 (0.800) -

BBRTB HRA Buybacks schemes funded from RTB receipts n/a 0.297 (0.297) -

LPPBB09
HRA Buybacks scheme funded from LPP in 2009/10-                      

reimbursed by Decent Homes Reserve in 2010/11
n/a (3.658) 3.658 -

TOTALS 14.384 (5.792) 8.593Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
. 
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
o
u
r 

S
in

g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 e
m

b
ra

c
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
ix

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
.

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
0
%

A
 s

in
g
le

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 (
S

E
F

) 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 b

ri
n
g
s
 t
h
e
 s

ix
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

c
ts

 a
s
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

n
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g
 d

u
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0
1
0
. 
 T

h
e
 S

E
F

 

a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 k

e
y
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

ro
s
s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 p

iv
o
ta

l 
fo

r 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 T

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
s
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
e
w

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 &

 G
e
n
d
e
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 G

e
n
d
e
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

o
th

 b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

3
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
. 
N

e
w

 G
e
n
d
e
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

3
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 

O
c
to

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
le

g
is

la
ti
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

ro
s
s
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

tr
a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
g
e
n
d
e
r 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
.

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 S

in
g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 e
m

b
ra

c
e
s
 

s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

S
E

F
’s

 t
w

o
  
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

: 
w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 (
T

A
S

C
).

 T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
, 
th

e
 

q
u
a
n
ti
ta

ti
v
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
is

 n
e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 T
A

S
C

 E
Q

IA
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
E

Q
IA

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T

A
S

C
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 

M
a
rc

h

A
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

P
o
v
e
rt

y
s
tr

a
te

g
y

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 &

 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 S

in
g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

3
0
%

A
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

u
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 

o
n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
a
n
d
 

it
 i
s
 s

e
n
s
ib

le
 t
o
 w

a
it
 u

n
ti
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

P
P

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
 t
h
e
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

lin
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 S

in
g
le

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 

p
la

n
s
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.1
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

s
te

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n

1
.1

.1
 T

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s

1
.1

.2
 F

o
s
te

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n

1
.1

.3
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 149



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
E

n
d

 Y
e
a
r 

S
ta

tu
s

%
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
. 
 R

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
o
le

 t
o
 

b
u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 v

ib
ra

n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
d
e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
.

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

N
e
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

O
n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 T
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ilo
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 M

a
jo

r 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 

T
e
a
m

, 
F

a
m

ily
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
ts

 h
a
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

 r
e
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

u
tu

m
n
 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
.

B
u
ild

 i
n
to

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 e

q
u
ip

p
in

g
 o

f 

c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
M

e
m

b
e
r 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
m

b
ra

c
e
s
 b

o
th

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo

c
u
s

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
e
le

c
ti
o
n
. 
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 

a
re

 o
n
-g

o
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 A

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

o
n
it
o
rs

 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 a

 b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

.

D
e
liv

e
r 

m
a
y
o
ra

l 
re

fe
re

n
d
u
m

 6
th

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
n
d
/o

r 
h
o
ld

 m
a
y
o
ra

l 
e
le

c
ti
o
n

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
.

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 D

u
ty

 t
o
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 
 T

h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

a
n
d
 C

M
T

 h
a
v
e
 

a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

D
e
liv

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 g
ra

n
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
F

ra
n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 150



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
E

n
d

 Y
e
a
r 

S
ta

tu
s

%
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

3
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

lin
k
in

g
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 f
in

a
l 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le

 o
f 
m

o
n
th

s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g
re

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

s
o
m

e
 a

re
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 f
in

a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
c
o
u
p
le

 o
f 
m

o
n
th

s
.

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

ie
s

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 P

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 n

o
w

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 

D
M

T
s
. 
 T

h
e
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

v
ia

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 M

A
B

 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 a
n
d
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 M
a
y
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 m

e
d
ia

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r'
s
 o

ff
ic

e
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

o
lic

y
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

O
ly

m
p
ic

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
, 
s
c
o
p
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

T
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
la

y
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

L
O

C
O

G
. 
 A

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 O
ly

m
p
ic

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 

o
u
r 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

P
ID

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 m

o
n
th

s

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
u
n
c
il-

w
id

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

T
a
k
k
i 
S

u
la

im
a
n
 

(C
h
ie

f

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

M
T

 o
n
 1

3
/7

/1
0
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 v

ia
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
.

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 151



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
E

n
d

 Y
e
a
r 

S
ta

tu
s

%
 C

o
m

p
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

4
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

7
5
%

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
fo

c
u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 P
e
o
p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
  
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

H
R

IP
 -

  
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
/t
e
a
m

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 h

a
d
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 t
o
 4

8
 d

a
y
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

3
, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
0
 d

a
y
s
. 
In

 Q
4
, 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 w

a
s
 m

o
re

 o
n
 r

e
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
th

a
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t.

D
e
ta

ile
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

b
y
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t,
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

M
T

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 M

A
B

 o
n
 2

4
/1

1
/1

0
 –

 

th
is

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 t
h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

t 
Q

1
 a

n
d
 Q

2
 o

f 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

C
a
b
in

e
t 
to

 a
g
re

e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 T

a
rg

e
ts

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

5
0
%

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

M
A

B
 o

n
 2

4
/1

1
/1

0
. 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 g
o
 t
o
 M

A
B

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
, 
a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 

J
u
ly

.

H
R

IP
 -

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
n
e
w

 H
R

 a
d
m

in
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s

S
im

o
n
 K

ilb
e
y
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

N
e
w

 H
R

/W
D

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 1

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 –

 o
n
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 p

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
ts

.

1
.2

.2
 R

e
c
ru

it
in

g
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

1
.2

.3
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.2
: 

W
o

rk
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 a
s
 O

n
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

1
.2

.1
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 152



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
7
%

A
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 £

2
9
m

 w
o
rt

h
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
, 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
Y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 s

ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
ti
m

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n
g
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 C

M
T

 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
ly

.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

5
0
%

T
h
e
 M

a
y
o
rs

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

a
re

a
s
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 C

M
T

, 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r 

a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.

C
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
/ 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 F
e
b
-1

1

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 1

5
-y

e
a
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 L
B

T
H

 

fr
o
m

 2
0
1
1
-2

0
2
6

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 F
e
b
-1

1

P
ilo

t 
s
tu

d
y
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 L

A
P

s
 3

 &
 4

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

, 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

 a
re

 n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 L

A
P

s
 1

 &
 2

A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
) 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 F
e
b
-1

1

T
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
t 
s
a
le

s
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
a
n
-1

1
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 e

m
b
e
d
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

w
ill

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

T
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
y
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 N

A
P

P
M

I 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e

A
m

a
n
 D

a
lv

i 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
tu

rn
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
tr

e
n
d
s

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 153



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
A

la
n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
ro

v
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 "

O
n
e
 V

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

T
ru

th
" 

fo
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h
 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 154



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

8
. 
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
it
 f
u
lly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
, 
a
t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
, 
th

e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
a
 l
e
a
n
e
r,

 m
o
re

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

n
d
 

c
it
iz

e
n
-c

e
n
tr

e
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 t
h
re

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 -

 2
0
1
3
/1

4

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

C
o
u
n
c
il 

W
id

e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 f
u
lly

 m
o
b
ili

s
e
d
, 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
la

y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 F

in
e
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
- 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 s

u
m

m
e
r.

 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 V

a
lu

e
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 V

a
lu

e
s
 G

ro
u
p
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
. 
D

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

.

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
lk

it
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
o
lk

it
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
te

m
p
la

te
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

ta
rt

e
d
. 
K

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
lin

e
 o

f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ix

 M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

: 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
b
ili

s
e
d
. 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

p
h
a
s
e
.

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
fi
n
e
m

e
n
t

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 M

T
F

P
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
.

D
ra

ft
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

T
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 M

T
F

P
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

O
n
lin

e
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
a
l-
ti
m

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

P
a
rk

in
g
 F

in
e
s
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
; 

C
C

T
V

 i
m

a
g
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
5
%

T
h
e
 C

C
T

V
 m

o
d
u
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 [
O

n
lin

e
 r

e
n
e
w

a
ls

 o
f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 

P
a
rk

in
g
 R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
] 
. 
  
R

e
a
l-
ti
m

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
-l
o
n
g
e
r 

b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 

th
e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
lit

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r,

 C
a
p
it
a
. 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

  
c
a
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

a
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 w

e
b
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
, 
2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 155



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

9
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
n
n
e
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
la

ir
e

S
y
m

o
n
d
s

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 k

e
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 w

e
b
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t.
 

R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 g

re
e
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
e
y
 r

is
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 h

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
ro

le
 o

f 
m

a
n
u
a
l 
s
w

it
c
h
b
o
a
rd

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

C
la

ir
e
 

S
y
m

o
n
d
s

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 C
o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
, 
fu

ll 
y
e
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 o

n
 s

h
a
p
e
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
  
IC

T
 r

o
a
d
m

a
p

C
la

ir
e

S
y
m

o
n
d
s

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
- 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 t
o
 a

lig
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
a
n
n
e
l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
.

W
it
h
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

m
e
rg

in
g
 o

u
r 

IC
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
; 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts

 

re
fo

rm
s
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
0
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 –
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
 B

u
ild

in
g
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
ig

h
te

r 
p
u
b
lic

 s
p
e
n
d
in

g

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

F
o
rt

y
-f

iv
e
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
ff
 f
ro

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
) 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
 T

h
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

R
o
llo

u
t 
B

u
d
g
e
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

A
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

u
t 
fu

ll 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

u
p
o
n
 a

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
L
e
d
g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
, 
n
o
w

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

d
 f
o
r 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 r

o
llo

u
t 
o
f 
R

2
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 t
o
 a

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

e
r 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
P

h
a
s
e
 2

 -
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

fo
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

5
0
%

A
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

a
rl
y
-w

in
 p

ro
je

c
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 I
T

 o
u
ts

o
u
rc

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 156



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
1
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

o
b
u
s
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
T

h
e
 P

M
A

F
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E

x
c
e
ls

is
 s

y
s
te

m

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
T

h
e
 P

M
A

F
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
  
A

ll 
n
e
w

 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
x
t 
ro

u
n
d
 L

A
A

 

(o
r 

a
n
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
o
r)

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

ra
ft
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
 (

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
) 

w
e
re

 

a
g
re

e
d
 a

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
. 
 F

in
a
l 
P

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 157



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
2
. 
 D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
th

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

(B
B

F
) 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

o
v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

6
0
%

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

in
d
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

o
u
n
d
 1

 B
B

F
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 Q

2
 o

f 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 o

f 
m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

B
ir
c
h
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d
 

M
a
lm

e
s
b
u
ry

 t
o
 Q

3
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
,6

8
8
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r,

 a
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
 3

,7
2
7
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 j
u
s
t 
s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
, 
th

re
e
 

y
e
a
r 

G
o
L
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
,8

6
1
 h

o
m

e
s
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 R

d
1
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

(B
B

F
) 

&
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 R

d
2
 t
o
 H

C
A

 d
e
a
d
lin

e
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

3
5
%

R
o
u
n
d
 1

 (
1
7
 u

n
it
s
):

 2
 s

it
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 J

u
ly

 '
1
1
. 
3
 s

it
e
s
, 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
 o

b
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
, 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
ll 

is
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 o

w
n
e
rs

: 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 o

v
e
rs

a
ili

n
g
 r

ig
h
ts

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
v
e
r 

a
 s

u
b
s
ta

ti
o
n
 a

t 
W

a
p
p
in

g
 

L
a
n
e
 a

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
. 
 A

ll 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 b

u
ild

 c
o
s
t 
w

ill
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 a

p
p
ro

x
 £

6
0
0
k
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 '
1
2
. 
  
H

C
A

 h
a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

lo
n
g
s
to

p
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

a
te

 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 
 R

o
u
n
d
 2

: 
H

C
A

 h
a
s
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
n
o
t 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g

A
g
re

e
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 o

f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 H

C
A

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

C
A

.

D
e
liv

e
r 

1
6
8
8
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
3
%

7
3
3
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 O
n
e
 m

a
jo

r 
re

a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
e
 R

P
 w

a
s
 o

v
e
r-

o
p
ti
m

is
ti
c
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 

in
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
to

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
  
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 

q
u
e
ry

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 s

it
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 R

P
 h

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 2

4
6
 

u
n
it
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 Q

1
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
A

n
o
th

e
r 

la
rg

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

e
n
t 
in

to
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 Q

4
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 h

a
d
 a

 s
ta

rk
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 o

u
tt
u
rn

.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 &

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

M
a
lm

e
s
b
u
ry

 

&
 B

ir
c
h
fi
e
ld

 e
s
ta

te
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

It
 w

a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
  
th

a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r'
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
e
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 

Q
1
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 
A

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

to
 r

u
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 

Q
1
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 a

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o
 M

A
B

. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
tl
in

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r/

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

A
g
re

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
n
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
H

o
m

e
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

s
it
e
s
 n

o
w

 h
a
v
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 s

it
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 R

P
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
a
re

 o
n
 s

it
e
. 
T

h
e
 P

o
p
la

r 
H

A
R

C
A

  
D

a
v
id

 

H
o
u
s
e
 S

it
e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

2
4
 n

e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 T

H
C

H
 s

it
e
s
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

2
2
, 

m
o
s
tl
y
 f
a
m

ily
 s

iz
e
d
 h

o
m

e
s
.

2
.1

.1
 I
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
, 
fa

m
il
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g

A
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.1
: 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

tr
o

n
g

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

2
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
c
e
n

t 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 w
e
ll
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

2
.1

.3
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
ik

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
h

e
a
lt

h
c
a
re

 f
a
c
il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
p

a
rk

s

2
.1

.4
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 158



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
3
. 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 R

S
L
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 i
) 

S
e
c
u
re

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
n
e
w

 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
i)
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 R

P
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 u

s
u
a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 S

p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 r
e
n
ts

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

a
c
h
  
R

S
L
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 J

u
n
e
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 R

P
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 u

s
u
a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 S

p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 r
e
n
ts

.

L
a
u
n
c
h
 R

S
L
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m

e
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
R

S
L
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

T
e
n
a
n
ts

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
S

's
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
a
n
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 6

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 R

S
L
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 1

1

Page 159



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
4
. 
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
 2

-S
ta

r 
A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 t
o
 u

n
lo

c
k
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
. 

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
C

 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
  
- 

2
 s

ta
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

H
H

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
C

 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
  
- 

2
 s

ta
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

M
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
T

H
H

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
/a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tp

u
ts

, 
M

a
y
, 

A
u
g
u
s
t,
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
5
a
. 
R

e
s
h
a
p
e
 m

a
jo

r 
e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

:
B

la
c
k
w

a
ll
 R

e
a
c
h

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

1
5
%

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 S
w

a
n
/C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
/p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
 s

ta
rt

 o
n
 s

it
e
 l
a
te

r 
in

 2
0
1
1
. 

D
e
c
a
n
t 
re

s
u
m

e
d
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

a
 m

u
lt
i-
p
h
a
s
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
1
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

0
2
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u
b
m

it
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 o
n
g
o
in

g
, 
jo

in
tl
y
 w

it
h
 S

w
a
n
, 
b
u
t 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

in
 a

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
B

o
th

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y
 

A
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
1
.

S
e
le

c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
r

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
w

a
n
 /
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 P

L
C

 a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
, 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
to

 b
e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 8

th
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
.

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
0
%

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

D
e
c
 2

0
1
1
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
/p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

e
d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 b
y
 L

B
T

H
, 
H

C
A

 a
n
d
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

.

P
a
g
e
 1

2

Page 160



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
5
b
. 
R

e
s
h
a
p
e
 m

a
jo

r 
e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

:
O

c
e
a
n

 E
s
ta

te

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
  
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 w
a
s
 r

e
-p

ro
fi
le

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
ilo

t 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

x
 h

a
lf
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 n

o
w

 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
d
e
s
ig

n
/p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ta
g
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
a
re

a
 E

 B
lo

c
k
s

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

2
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 N

e
w

 B
u
ild

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
a
 E

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
5
c
. 
R

e
s
h
a
p
e
 m

a
jo

r 
e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

:
C

o
tt

a
ll
 S

tr
e
e
t

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

M
a
y
o
r 

a
g
re

e
d
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 f
o
r 

la
n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 E
a
s
t 
T

h
a
m

e
s
/P

o
p
la

r 

H
A

R
C

A
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 b

ri
e
f 
a
n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 L

B
T

H
 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 2

n
d
 s

ta
g
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

o
b
ta

in
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
a
g
re

e
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e

C
h
ri
s
 W

o
rb

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

D
e
a
d
lin

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 d

e
la

y
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

) 
P

o
p
la

r 
H

A
R

C
A

's
 u

n
w

ill
in

g
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
p
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 b

) 
N

e
w

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 n

o
w

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r.

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
b
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 a

n
d
  
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

P
a
g
e
 1

3

Page 161



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
6
. 
E

n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g
a
c
y
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
P

L
C

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

ta
k
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
M

F
. 
L
e
g
a
c
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 Q

2
 2

0
1
1
/1

2

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 L

e
g
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 O

v
e
rl
a
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

L
e
g
a
c
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 Q

2
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
; 
p
re

-a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
g
o
in

g

E
n
d
o
rs

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g
a
c
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

G
L
A

)

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

G
L
A

 e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1

T
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 4

 o
th

e
r 

h
o
s
t 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
, 
s
e
c
u
re

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 m

o
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t:

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
s
ig

n
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

C
L
C

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

C
L
C

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

B
u
ild

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

C
L
C

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
7
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 F

is
h
 I
s
la

n
d
 A

re
a
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
s
ti
n
g

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 D

P
D

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 M

A
B

 o
n
 2

0
th

 A
p
ri
l 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
D

P
D

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
s
ti
n
g

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 D

P
D

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 M

A
B

 o
n
 2

0
th

 A
p
ri
l 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
it
e
 a

n
d
 P

la
c
e
 M

a
k
in

g
 D

P
D

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
s
ti
n
g

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 D

P
D

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 M

A
B

 o
n
 2

0
th

 A
p
ri
l 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 G

re
e
n
 

G
ri
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 g

re
e
n
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
la

te
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

 f
in

is
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 
fo

r 
s
ig

n
 o

ff
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 a

d
o
p
t 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 1

5
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

S
1
0
6
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
in

a
lis

in
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 S
1
0
6
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
, 
to

 b
e
tt
e
r 

in
te

rr
o
g
a
te

 a
n
d
 s

to
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
-

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
d
a
ta

.

P
a
g
e
 1

4

Page 162



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
8
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

2
0
1
1
/1

5
 t
o
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

id
s

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

fi
rs

t 
p
ilo

t 
S

u
p
e
rh

ig
h
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
re

a
 B

ik
e
 

H
ir
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
  
in

it
ia

l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 C

y
c
le

 

R
e
v
o
lu

ti
o
n

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
Y

e
a
r 

3
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 S

ta
ff
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
ra

v
e
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

2
.2

.3
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 g

o
o

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 f
u

ll
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
il
it

ie
s
 -

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 l
e
is

u
re

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.2
: 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e
c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

2
.2

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

u
b

li
c
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 w

a
lk

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 s
a
fe

ly

2
.2

.2
 B

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 f

o
s
te

r 
m

u
tu

a
l 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
, 
a
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 s

e
n

s
e
 o

f 
w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
v
o

id
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e
in

g
 i
s
o

la
te

d

P
a
g
e
 1

5

Page 163



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
9
. 
U

s
e
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n
d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l,
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

to
ry

 

e
v
e
n
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

 (
D

&
R

 /
 

C
L
C

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

In
 Q

3
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
2
 u

n
it
 s

ta
g
e
d
 a

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 H
e
ro

e
s
 e

x
h
ib

it
io

n
 -

 f
e
a
tu

ri
n
g
 i
n
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

O
ly

m
p
ia

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 
in

 I
d
e
a
 S

to
re

 C
a
n
a
ry

 W
h
a
rf

 a
n
d
 I
d
e
a
 S

to
re

 W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l.
 W

e
 

h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 b
e
g
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
G

if
te

d
 

a
n
d
 T

a
le

n
te

d
; 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
a
le

n
te

d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

s
p
o
rt

s
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 r
e
a
lis

e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

lo
n
g
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 H

S
2
0
1
2
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
. 
P

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

w
id

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

fu
n
d
e
rs

, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
.

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

re
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 /
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

G
u
id

e
d
 w

a
lk

 (
1
) 

a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d
ig

 (
2
) 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
n
-a

ir
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 (
3
) 

ta
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

e
s
t 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 –

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

.

P
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

V
ic

to
ri
a
 P

a
rk

 a
s
 a

 l
iv

e
 

s
it
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 G

L
A

 a
n
d
 L

O
C

O
G

 -
 f
ir
s
t 

d
ra

ft
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 5

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
(C

re
a
te

 

‘1
0
’)

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 5

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
a
rt

 p
ro

je
c
t 
(l
o
tt
e
ry

 f
u
n
d
e
d
) 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 
a
n
 a

rt
is

ti
c
 d

ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 P

a
ra

d
is

e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 f
re

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 &
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 S
p
o
rt

s
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 O
p
e
n
 D

a
y
 b

y
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
; 
T

im
e
 t
o
 S

h
in

e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
&

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
; 

B
a
lf
o
u
r 

B
e
a
tt
y
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 Y

o
u
th

 G
a
m

e
s
, 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 –
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
0

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 1

6

Page 164



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 

S
te

p
h
e
n

H
a
ls

e
y

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
ly

m
p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 

fu
lly

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l

S
te

p
h
e
n

H
a
ls

e
y

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ta

rt
 o

f 
s
e
t 
u
p
 p

h
a
s
e
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

h
a
s
e

S
te

p
h
e
n
 

H
a
ls

e
y

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
lt

)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

S
te

p
h
e
n
 

H
a
ls

e
y

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
lt

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
1
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 B

a
is

h
a
k
h
i 
M

e
la

 i
n
 B

a
n
g
la

to
w

n
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 i
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

2
0
1
0
 M

e
la

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
 h

a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
. 
 A

w
a
it
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

o
n
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

v
id

e
 M

e
la

 s
ta

llh
o
ld

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 
5
0
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
2
4
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 b

e
 M

e
la

 s
te

w
a
rd

s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

e
la

 p
a
ra

d
e
: 
5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
a
p
p
ro

x
 1

5
0
 

c
h
ild

re
n
);

 2
 y

o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 (

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 
3
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

);
 1

 B
a
n
g
la

d
e
s
h
i 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

u
p
 t
o
 1

5
 

a
d
u
lt
s
)

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 M

e
la

 o
n
 2

3
rd

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
0

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

2
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 1

7

Page 165



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
2
. 
P

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
e
n
e
ri
c
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

y
 T

H
E

O
's

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

. 
T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
ff
ic

e
 w

ill
 o

p
e
n
 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 J
o
in

t 
d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
lly

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
in

c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 A

rt
s
 a

n
d
 E

v
e
n
ts

, 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

, 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

F
ir
e
 b

ri
g
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 m

o
n
th

 N
H

T
 (

R
o
y
a
l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 H

o
s
p
).

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ilo
t 
g
e
n
e
ri
c
 w

o
rk

in
g
 m

o
d
e
l 
fa

c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

J
o
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

A
S

B
, 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

jo
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 l
o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 1

8

Page 166



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
3
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
o
o
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 

8
5
 f
e
s
ti
v
a
ls

 a
n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
1
 m

a
jo

r 
fe

s
ti
v
a
l 
d
a
y
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
m

u
s
ic

 f
e
s
ti
v
a
ls

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
e
w

o
rk

s
 d

is
p
la

y
)

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 3

5
-4

0
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

rt
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 f
u
n
d

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 1

9

Page 167



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
4
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

ro
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
3
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
a
fe

ty
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
C

ro
s
s
in

g
 P

a
tr

o
l 
w

it
h
 4

 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
it
e
s
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 J
u
n
io

r 
R

o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 4

0
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

3
 j
o
in

t 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 M

e
t 
P

o
lic

e
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 k

e
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
K

e
e
p
 C

le
a
r 

Z
ig

 Z
a
g
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 e

a
rl
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 2

0

Page 168



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
5
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

p
e
n
 

S
p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 

w
it
h
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
/I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

h
a
s
e
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 

b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
re

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f
iv

e
-y

e
a
r 

tr
e
e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 r

e
a
lm

2
.3

.3
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
a
n

d
 l
it

te
r

2
.3

.2
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

p
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.3
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 c

le
a
n

e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
p

u
b

li
c
 r

e
a
lm

2
.3

.1
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 f
ir

s
t-

c
la

s
s
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
, 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
a
g
e
 2

1

Page 169



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
6
.

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
ly

 c
le

a
n
e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re

 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
rk

e
d
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

O
J
E

U
 n

o
ti
c
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
ry

 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
-d

ra
ft
e
d
 W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
0
 t
o
 2

0
1
4
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
J
E

U
 N

o
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 W
a
s
te

 T
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
o
 

le
a
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
it
e
 a

c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 w
a
s
te

 

fa
c
ili

ty
.

D
ra

ft
 a

n
 A

n
ti
-D

e
fa

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(g

ra
ff
it
i 
a
n
d
 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g
) 

d
ra

ft
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
e
p
a
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 l
it
te

r 
a
n
d
 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 

d
ra

ft
e
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 2

2

Page 170



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

p
a
ti
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
O

w
e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

R
o
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
C

L
C

 t
e
a
m

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

R
o
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

h
o
p
 F

ro
n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
: 
4
 

s
h
o
p
 f
ro

n
ts

 f
u
n
d
e
d
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
; 
8
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 s

h
o
p
 f
ro

n
ts

 e
a
r-

m
a
rk

e
d
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 P
h
a
s
e
 1

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 7
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 8

, 
a
s
 1

 t
ra

d
e
r 

p
u
lle

d
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 l
e
a
s
e
 e

x
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
. 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
, 
a
w

a
it
in

g
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 

re
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t.
 

S
e
t 
u
p
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 C
ro

s
s
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
s
 a

 f
o
ru

m
 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
ic

e

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
8
.

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 a
n
d
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
lo

n
g
 t
h
e
 A

1
1
 c

o
rr

id
o
r.

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

t 
A

ld
g
a
te

 &
 M

ile
 E

n
d
 W

a
s
te

 n
o
w

 o
n
 s

it
e
. 
T

ra
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
 A

ld
g
a
te

 H
is

to
ri
c
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 C

lu
s
te

r
N

ic
k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ta

g
e
 D

 d
e
s
ig

n
 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 (
e
.g

. 
m

a
rk

e
t 
s
ta

lls
) 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 B

o
w

 H
is

to
ri
c
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 c

lu
s
te

r
N

ic
k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)
 

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

P
a
g
e
 2

3

Page 171



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
9
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

F
ro

m
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 t
o
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

 1
3
%

 C
O

2
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lla

te
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 1
1
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e
t 
u
p
 t
h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 S

u
b
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 A

lli
a
n
c
e
 (

T
H

C
C

A
) 

a
n
d
 f
o
rm

 a
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
s
 t
h
e
 2

5
%

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
2
, 
th

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
4
0
%

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
0
%

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

2
0
2
0

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 d

ra
ft
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 c

a
rb

o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
it
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd

 i
n
 M

a
y
. 
1
0
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 R

e
:F

it
 p

ro
je

c
t.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 T

H
 a

s
 a

n
 E

le
c
tr

ic
 V

e
h
ic

le
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 

e
m

b
e
d
d
in

g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 L

IP
 2

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

IP
2
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(L

o
c
a
l 
C

lim
a
te

 

Im
p
a
c
ts

 P
ro

fi
le

) 
o
f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 

c
lim

a
te

, 
b
o
th

 n
o
w

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 

ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 s

tu
d
y
 l
e
d
 

b
y
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

, 
T

h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
a
 m

o
re

 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

L
B

A
P

) 
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 (

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
b
it
a
ts

) 
 a

n
d
 H

a
b
it
a
t 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

H
A

P
) 

le
a
d
s
 m

e
e
t 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
, 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

B
A

R
S

).
 A

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 e

c
o
lo

g
is

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 o

n
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
.

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
lig

h
ts

 f
ro

m
 n

o
n
-s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ts

: 
5
0
%

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

a
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

fo
u
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 s
o
ft
w

a
re

 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
  
A

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 

w
o
rk

s
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
-1

2
.

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
P

E
C

U
A

R
A

Y
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

2
.2

.3
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
 a

n
d

 u
s
in

g
 m

o
re

 r
e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
e
s

2
.2

.5
 A

d
a
p

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

b
u

il
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
to

 c
o

p
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 c

li
m

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

p
a
tt

e
rn

s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

2
.2

.4
 F

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 r

e
u

s
in

g
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 m

o
re

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.4
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

P
a
g
e
 2

4

Page 172



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
0
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
4
  
B

ri
n
g
 B

a
c
k
 D

a
y
s

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 
o
n
e
 e

s
ta

te
-b

a
s
e
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 

s
e
c
to

r,
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

it
h
in

 h
a
rd

-t
o
-

re
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 2

5

Page 173



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
1
. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

b
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 a

t 
b
o
th

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

, 
w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

a
d
ic

a
lly

 r
e
d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 t
h
e
 

w
a
y
 w

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
R

e
s
u
lt
 -

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 i
s
 5

1
.3

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
5
.5

%
 p

o
in

ts
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r'
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 1

.5
%

 p
o
in

ts
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
:1

 t
u
it
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 p
h
a
s
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 

“n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
” 

in
 p

la
c
e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

n
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 

e
.g

. 
F

E
M

. 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
-F

S
M

 a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

ig
o
ro

u
s
ly

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
w

 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
2
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
in

g
 a

ll 
o
f 
o
u
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

S
e
e
 B

e
lo

w

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
e
w

 p
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
B

a
tc

h
 3

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 –
 

S
te

p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
, 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 G

ir
ls

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 

P
h
o
e
n
ix

 a
n
d
 L

a
n
g
d
o
n
 P

a
rk

 s
ta

rt
e
d

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ta

g
e
 2

 D
e
s
ig

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

t 
C

F
G

S
/P

h
o
e
n
ix

/S
te

p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
/L

a
n
g
d
o
n
 P

a
rk

.

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

ta
rt

s
 a

t 
R

a
in

e
s
, 
H

a
rp

le
y
 P

R
U

, 
S

w
a
n
le

a
 

a
n
d
 B

o
w

d
e
n
 H

o
u
s
e

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 c
lo

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 o

n
 s

it
e
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
c
lo

s
e
 f
o
r 

S
te

p
n
e
y
 G

re
e
n
, 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

G
ir
ls

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
, 
P

h
o
e
n
ix

 a
n
d
 L

a
n
g
d
o
n
 P

a
rk

 b
y
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 

2
0
1
0

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

7
5
%

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
te

n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 P

F
I 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 

3
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
e
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
k
il
ls

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 f
u

lf
il
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u

ll
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l

3
.1

.3
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
, 
s
o

 e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 c

a
n

 l
e
a
rn

 b
a
s
ic

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
k
il
ls

 a
t 

a
n

y
 a

g
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.1
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
if

e
lo

n
g

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

3
.1

.1
 I
n

v
e
s
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
s
 w

h
o

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s

A
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
a
g
e
 2

6

Page 174



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
3
. 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
 o

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
s
ta

te
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

7
 o

u
t 
o
f 
8
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 o
n
 s

it
e
. 
4
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

D
e
la

y
s
 w

e
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
s
n
o
w

 a
n
d
 c

o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 w

in
te

r.
 A

ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
G

o
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

, 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

in
g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
la

c
e
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
n
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 o

n
 s

it
e
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

F
iv

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
w

o
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 7
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 o
n
 s

it
e
, 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 8

. 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
8
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t/
u
p
g
ra

d
e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

4
 o

f 
th

e
 8

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
A

ll 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

D
e
la

y
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
s
n
o
w

 a
n
d
 c

o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

w
in

te
r.

P
a
g
e
 2

7

Page 175



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
4
. 
E

x
p
a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 g

e
t 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

le
a
rn

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 P

a
re

n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

p
a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 P

a
re

n
t 
V

o
ic

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
P

a
re

n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 P

o
in

t 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
, 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

S
o
m

a
li 

p
a
re

n
ts

, 
fa

th
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 S

E
N

. 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
in

g
 p

o
s
ts

 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t.
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
lo

c
a
lis

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

P
a
re

n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

a
re

n
t 
fo

ru
m

s
/a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
ild

 u
p
o
n
 P

a
re

n
t 
V

o
ic

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
-s

c
h
o
o
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

tw
o
 F

a
m

ily
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

(S
E

A
L
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

c
lu

s
te

r 
b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 (

S
F

S
C

) 
fa

c
ili

ta
to

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

S
F

S
C

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

 c
o
u
rs

e
/w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
g
e
 2

8

Page 176



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
5
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
9
0
 e

n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
E

n
g
lis

h
 

a
s
 a

 S
e
c
o
n
d
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 p

la
c
e
s

F
io

n
a

P
a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
9
0
 p

la
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 a

t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
1
8
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 E

S
O

L
 c

o
u
rs

e
s

F
io

n
a
 

P
a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
1
8
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 g
a
in

 a
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 E

S
O

L
F

io
n
a
 

P
a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
u
rs

e
 v

e
n
u
e
s
 s

e
t 
u
p

F
io

n
a
 

P
a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

7
2
 L

e
a
rn

e
rs

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 

F
io

n
a
 

P
a
tt
e
rs

o
n
 /
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 2

9

Page 177



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
6
. 
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

-b
a
s
e
d
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
o
u
r 

k
e
y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
: 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 t
h
o
s
e
 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
; 
a
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 f
le

x
ib

le
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
ra

c
k
s
; 
jo

in
e
d
 u

p
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
h
o
ic

e
;a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
n
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

ff
e
r.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 W

o
rk

-B
a
s
e
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
th

re
e
 n

e
w

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 1
6
-1

9
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

ff
e
r 

w
it
h
 m

o
re

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

a
t 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 1

9
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
7
0
%

 b
y
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

ff
e
r 

b
o
o
k
le

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
7
4
.2

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 3

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
. 
(F

in
a
l 

re
s
u
lt
s
 d

u
e
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

)

Im
p
ro

v
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

a
is

e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 1

9
 t
o
 4

3
%

 b
y
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
4
2
.9

%
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 2

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

p
o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
. 
(F

in
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 d

u
e
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

)

R
a
is

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 1

6
-1

9
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
9
3
%

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 3

0

Page 178



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r 

2
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 

Id
e
a
 S

to
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 g
re

a
te

r 
lib

ra
ry

 u
s
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 v
ia

b
ili

ty
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
Id

e
a
 

S
to

re
 ‘
m

e
tr

o
’

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
re

a
te

 a
 j
o
in

t 
h
e
a
lt
h
-r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P

C
T

) 

a
t 
Id

e
a
 S

to
re

s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 i
n
 a

ll 
Id

e
a
 

S
to

re
s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
8
. 
 E

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

h
ig

h
ly

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

m
o
s
t 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
0
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid

a
y
, 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
A

Y
P

 b
ro

c
h
u
re

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
k
e
y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid

a
y
 (

fo
u
r 

b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
; 
o
n
e
 b

y
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
1
)

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

3
,5

0
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
M

a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

F
o
u
r 

K
e
y
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 1

,0
0
0
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 w
it
h
 o

n
e
-t

o
-o

n
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

ig
n
-p

o
s
ti
n
g

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
A

Y
P

 k
e
y
 w

W
o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 4
0
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 9

5
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 I
t 
is

 u
n
re

a
lis

ti
c
 f
o
r 

P
A

Y
P

 k
e
y
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 a
lo

n
e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 1

0
0
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 d

o
u
b
le

d
 t
h
e
ir
 

ta
rg

e
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 8

5
2
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

P
a
g
e
 3

1

Page 179



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
9
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 n

e
w

 a
n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 j
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

b
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
n
g
o
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 L

D
A

 e
m

p
lo

y
a
b
ili

ty
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 W

N
F

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

w
o
rk

 l
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 S

k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 

to
 C

M
T

 g
ro

u
p
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

8
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
to

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 E

S
F

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 S

in
g
le

 P
o
in

ts
 o

f 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
o
 d

a
te

 1
7
0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
ro

lle
d
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 E

S
F

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 1

2
5
 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 j
o
b
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
o
 d

a
te

, 
4
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 a

t 
2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

3
2
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
. 
 R

e
c
e
n
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
1
1
 w

ill
 a

im
 t
o
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
9
9
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
. 

5
0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

G
a
te

s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
4
 p

a
re

n
ts

 p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
 6

 p
a
re

n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
to

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 J

o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
. 
A

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
3
0
 p

a
re

n
ts

 b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

G
a
te

s
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

S
C

F
, 
S

k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 &

 J
C

P
. 

1
2
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 S

k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

4
0
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

4
0
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 t
o
 d

a
te

 a
t 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 h

o
s
t 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 C

re
d
it
 

S
u
is

s
e
, 
P

o
w

e
rc

h
e
x
, 
L
lo

y
d
s
 R

e
g
is

te
rs

, 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 L
B

T
H

.

1
4
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 t
ra

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

n
d
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 I
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 l
ic

e
n
c
e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 w
o
rk

 &
 s

k
ill

s
 p

la
n

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

L
E

A
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 d
ra

ft
 f
o
rm

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
 g

a
p
s
. 
T

h
is

 

d
ra

ft
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ta

in
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

3
.2

.3
 H

e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
e
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
y
 g

e
t 

a
 j
o

b

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.2
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

3
.2

.1
 H

e
lp

in
g

 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 e

s
c
a
p

e
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
, 
b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

e
b

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

3
.2

.2
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

P
a
g
e
 3

2

Page 180



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
0
. 
 B

u
ild

 o
n
 o

u
r 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
re

a
lly

 m
a
k
e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

L
a
y
la

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
0
%

N
e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 b
u
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

L
a
y
la

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ilo
t 
to

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 g

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

L
a
y
la

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ta

g
e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

in
 2

0
1
1
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

L
a
y
la

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 y

e
t 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 –

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 

s
ta

rt
e
d
, 
it
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 w

id
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 W
e
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

 

p
o
v
e
rt

y
.

P
a
g
e
 3

3

Page 181



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
1
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

M
o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

e
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 W

o
rk

in
g
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

u
n
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

tr
u
g
g
le

d
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

th
e
ir
 W

N
F

 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 w

e
ll.

W
o
rk

in
g
 W

e
ll 

T
ru

s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 p

o
s
t 
W

N
F

. 
T

h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 W

e
ll 

T
ru

s
t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

t 
a
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 
to

 f
in

d
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

V
is

it
 t
o
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 
n
e
w

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 b

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 L

e
a
d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

–
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t'
s
 o

p
e
n
 d

a
y
.

8
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

o
d
e
ra

te
 t
o
 s

e
v
e
re

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 P

o
e
tr

y
 i
n
 W

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

a
n
d
 8

 p
e
rs

o
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 p

la
n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
,

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

1
1
5
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 6

+
 h

o
u
rs

o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

r 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 
jo

b

s
e
a
rc

h
, 
m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
) 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

T
o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t,
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
0
6
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 3

0
/0

9
/1

0
, 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 s

h
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

M
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 b

u
t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
t.
 

1
5
4
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 t
h
e
ir

jo
b
s
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g

W
e
ll 

T
ru

s
t,
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

T
h
e
 W

N
F

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 w

h
y
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
h
it
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
A

n
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
u
tl
in

in
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 3

4

Page 182



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
2
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
y
o
u
th

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 

a
 1

4
-1

9
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

, 
lin

k
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
1
4
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
1
4
-1

8
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 

N
E

E
T

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
l 
&

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
5
%

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 1

4
-1

9
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 

s
o
m

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 b
u
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 

s
e
c
to

r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
W

e
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
u
r 

D
ip

lo
m

a
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
u
ilt

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
re

ta
il 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
is

u
re

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
0
0
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 b
y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
l 
&

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

. 
A

 n
e
w

 

v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
r 

1
9
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
1
0
0
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

A
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 s
ta

rt
s
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
l 
&

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 F

e
b
 

2
0
1
1
 a

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
 B

o
th

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
m

m
a
n
d
e
r 

(P
o
lic

e
) 

a
n
d
 T

H
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 

fo
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

N
H

S
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 s

a
id

 t
h
e
y
 

w
ill

 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
ir
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
ta

k
e
 o

f 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 N
E

E
T

 t
o
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 6

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
l 
&

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

P
a
g
e
 3

5

Page 183



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
3
. 
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 

n
e
e
d
s
, 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 E
n
a
b
le

r.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 C
V

S
 –

 S
L
A

 a
g
re

e
d
, 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

 
 C

V
S

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 a

tt
a
in

e
d

 
 C

E
O

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
t

 
 D

ra
ft
 p

u
b
lic

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
la

u
n
c
h
 e

v
e
n
t 
h
e
ld

 [
a
ro

u
n
d
 3

0
0
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
]

 
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

 
 S

L
A

 s
ig

n
e
d

 
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/A

d
m

in
 o

ff
ic

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 C

M
F

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

e
a
m

s
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
(O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
).

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
in

g
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
to

 r
o
ll-

o
v
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o
r 

a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

–
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 –

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
-

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 t
a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
C

M
F

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 3

 m
o
n
th

s
 –

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 J

a
n
 1

1
 -

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
a
k
e
 

in
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
C

S
R

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

h
e
s
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
-a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

M
ic

h
a
e
l

K
e
a
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
u
e
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 r

o
u
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

h
e
s
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 f
u
n
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 f
u
n
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 t
h
ir
d
 r

o
u
n
d
 a

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
la

n
n
e
d
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.3
: 

F
o

s
te

r 
e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

3
.3

.1
  
  
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 b

o
th

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n

tr
e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip

3
.3

.2
  
  
  
 M

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 k
e
y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 /
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s

3
.3

.3
  
  
  
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
o

u
ri

s
m

, 
w

it
h

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 a

n
d

 P
a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s

P
a
g
e
 3

6

Page 184



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
4
. 
M

a
rk

e
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 v

is
it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
e
n
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
 o

n
 t
h
is

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 f
o
r 

T
H

 v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
re

s
s
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

 k
e
y
 v

is
it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

s
m

a
lle

r 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 L

B
T

H
 a

s
 l
e
a
d
: 
Id

e
n
ti
fy

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
e
e
t 
w

it
h
 4

 v
e
n
u
e
s

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
ff
e
r 

v
e
n
u
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
N

ic
k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
ig

n
 u

p
 3

 v
e
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 E

L
B

P
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 C
o
m

p
e
te

 F
o
r 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
  
- 

£
3
 m

ill
io

n
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

L
B

P
 /
 C

o
m

p
e
te

 F
o
r 

b
y
 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 3

7

Page 185



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
5
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

C
o
lin

 C
o
rm

a
c
k
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 i
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 i
n
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
, 

re
g
a
rd

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 h

a
d
 t
o
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
-w

ri
te

, 
p
ro

m
p
te

d
 a

s
 m

u
c
h
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

a
ft
 o

f 
C

o
a
lit

io
n
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

, 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

C
o
lin

 C
o
rm

a
c
k
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
in

a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
in

 t
ra

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

C
o
m

p
le

te
 d

ra
ft
 3

-y
e
a
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

C
o
lin

 C
o
rm

a
c
k
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 l
a
id

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 

C
P

D
G

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

C
o
lin

 C
o
rm

a
c
k
 

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

4
.1

.4
  
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a
m

il
ie

s

4
.1

.2
  
 P

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 n

e
g

le
c
t

4
.1

.3
  
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
, 
a
n

d
 h

e
lp

in
g

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 s

e
tt

le
d

 h
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.1
: 

E
m

p
o

w
e
r 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.1

.1
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
, 
c
h

o
ic

e
, 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
a
g
e
 3

8

Page 186



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
6
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

W
o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll,

 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 w

o
rk

 o
n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 k

n
o
w

 a
b
o
u
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
. 
T

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 f
o
r 

C
a
re

rs
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
o
o
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 

c
a
re

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
re

rs
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 -

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
in

is
h
e
d
 o

n
 

3
1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
, 
a
n
d
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 i
t 
to

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 n
e
w

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 C

a
re

rs
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
rg

a
n
is

e
 C

a
re

r’
s
 W

e
e
k
 e

v
e
n
t 
a
t 
R

u
s
s
ia

 L
a
n
e
 D

a
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
 e

v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
a
re

rs
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 C

a
re

rs
 W

e
e
k
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 C

a
re

rs
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

J
S

N
A

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
.

L
e
a
d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

to
 a

tt
e
n
d
 ‘
H

e
a
lt
h
c
h
e
c
k
s
 f
o
r 

C
a
re

rs
’ 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
o
 b

o
th

 c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 G

P
s
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

A
H

W
B

 d
o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 l
e
a
d
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
n
o
 v

is
it
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
.

R
a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
c
a
re

rs
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

c
a
re

 b
y
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 

c
a
re

rs
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

7
5
%

H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 f
o
r 

C
a
re

rs
 P

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
a
tc

h
y

D
e
liv

e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
re

rs
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

m
o
te

 c
a
re

rs
’ 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
a
re

rs
’ 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

rs
’ 
g
ro

u
p
s
, 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
u
rg

e
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

t 
Id

e
a
 S

to
re

s
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 c

a
re

rs
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

P
a
g
e
 3

9

Page 187



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
u
tt
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 

c
a
re

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

R
A

S
) 

“T
a
s
k
 f
o
rc

e
” 

a
n
d
 

2
1
0
 s

e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

e
t 
th

e
 N

I1
3
0
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

s
e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

 p
la

n
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
.

3
0
%

 o
f 
e
lig

ib
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

e
t 
th

e
 N

I1
3
0
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

s
e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

P
a
g
e
 4

0

Page 188



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
8
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

/i
m

p
ro

v
e
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 P

u
tt
in

g
 

P
e
o
p
le

 F
ir
s
t

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
in

a
lis

e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 M

o
d
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

, 
J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 p

h
a
s
e
 1

 T
O

M
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

o
n
 1

0
/0

1
/2

0
1
1
 t
h
e
re

 

w
a
s
 a

 D
M

T
 a

w
a
y
 d

a
y
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
a
 p

h
a
s
e
 2

 T
O

M
. 
P

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
s
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
.

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

a
ta

lo
g
u
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
v
ic

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
9
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

 a
 c

o
m

p
a
ti
b
le

 a
n
d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 m

o
d
e
l 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g
 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
ill

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 i
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ie
c
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
N

H
S

 E
a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 G

P
 C

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 w
a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

J
o
in

tl
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g
 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

J
o
in

tl
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g
 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 i
n
to

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

m
o
d
e
ls

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g
 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

P
a
g
e
 4

1

Page 189



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
0
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 j
o
in

t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
ill

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g
re

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
is

.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 f
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 j
o
in

t 
P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

a
rl
y
 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 (

h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l)
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
 M

o
re

 i
n
-d

e
p
th

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 

d
u
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 b

y
 e

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
.

A
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
  
w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

's
 a

im
 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 0

9
/1

0
, 
re

fr
e
s
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
-f

re
s
h
e
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

A
H

W
B

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

n
 a

 c
lie

n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

b
a
s
is

.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
1
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 a

b
u
s
e
, 
h
a
rm

 a
n
d
 n

e
g
le

c
t 

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 a

b
u
s
e
, 
h
a
rm

 a
n
d
 n

e
g
le

c
t 
is

 o
n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
rg

a
n
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 e

v
e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

W
o
rl
d
 E

ld
e
r 

A
b
u
s
e
 D

a
y
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
T

o
y
n
b
e
e
 H

a
ll.

A
p
p
o
in

t 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
a
ir
 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

B
o
a
rd

, 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

 

p
la

n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

in
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

th
e
m

, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 -

- 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

A
la

rm
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 v

ia
 L

&
D

.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

e
lp

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 
C

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

P
a
g
e
 4

2

Page 190



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
2
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 

s
a
fe

ly
, 
s
e
c
u
re

ly
 a

n
d
 f
re

e
 f
ro

m
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

7
5
%

T
h
e
 T

e
a
m

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

s
to

c
k
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

m
p
ty

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
T

h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

to
c
k
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 w
ill

 d
e
la

y
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 

p
o
lic

y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
a
n
d
 E

m
p
ty

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
%

S
u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 p

o
s
tp

o
n
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 i
n
s
is

te
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

N
S

 w
h
o
 d

id
n
't
 w

a
n
t 
a
n
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 

to
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

e
n
s
u
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 T

h
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
s
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 s
ta

rt
 i
n
 M

a
y
, 
c
o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
u
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
1
1

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
L
B

T
H

 m
a
x
im

is
e
s
 a

ll 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 s
u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

(D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

&
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
la

im
s
 t
o
 E

L
R

P
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 a

re
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
3
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
, 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
0
%

S
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

a
ll 

c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
, 
b
u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 f
in

is
h
e
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
u
b
lis

h
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
o
ff
e
r 

fo
r 

s
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 

b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

D
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

n
ig

h
t 
s
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
b
y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C

a
re

 P
a
th

w
a
y
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
C

a
re

 P
a
th

w
a
y
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
g
u
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

P
a
g
e
 4

3

Page 191



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
4
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

o
f 
th

e
 b

e
lo

w
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
p
e
n
in

g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
n
e
w

 L
u
n
c
h
 C

lu
b
s
 J

u
n
e
/J

u
ly

 

2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

N
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 A
D

P
 l
u
n
c
h
 c

lu
b
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
ld

 o
p
e
n
in

g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 b
u
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
d
 

th
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
L
in

k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

a
s
t 
E

n
d
 L

if
e
.

S
p
ri
n
g
 i
n
to

 S
u
m

m
e
r 

e
v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 J
u
ly

, 
2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 e
v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

lm
o
s
t 
2
0
0
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 a

 c
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

te
r 

lif
e
 

w
it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
x
c
it
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
 H

e
ld

 a
t 
B

is
h
o
p
 C

h
a
llo

n
e
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l,
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 i
n
te

rg
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 i
n
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t;
  
L
in

k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 

ru
n
n
in

g
 4

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 S

u
n
d
ia

l 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 

W
h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
Id

e
a
 S

to
re

 J
u
n
e
/J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
ti
re

 R
e
a
d
y
 w

a
s
 a

 p
re

-p
ilo

t 
p
ilo

t 
o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 C

L
G

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 L

in
k
A

g
e
 P

lu
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
L
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 m

e
a
n
t 
s
o
m

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
.

P
a
g
e
 4

4

Page 192



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
5
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
-o

ri
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P

o
lic

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

J
o
in

t 
ta

s
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

A
S

B
, 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 T

H
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
to

 p
a
ir
e
d
 

L
A

P
s
 1

&
2
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 Y

o
u
 D

e
c
id

e
!-

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
ro

u
n
d
 

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 L

A
P

s
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
a
ly

ti
c
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 (
e
.g

. 
A

S
B

 a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
ri
m

e
 d

e
n
s
it
y
 m

a
p
p
in

g
) 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
6
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 R

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
A

n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 W

N
F

. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 t
o
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
 a

n
 e

n
d
. 

S
o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

IP
 m

a
in

 g
ra

n
t 
(p

ri
s
o
n
 e

x
it
 

te
a
m

) 
b
u
t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 t
h
ru

s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
re

a
te

 a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd

 t
o
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
0
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 

y
e
a
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
h
o
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
rd

e
rs

 b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

4
.2

.1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.2
: 

T
a
c
k
le

 a
n

d
 p

re
v
e
n

t 
c
ri

m
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

a
c
k
li
n

g
 a

n
ti

-s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

ri
m

e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.2

.2
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 h

o
li
s
ti

c
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll
 w

h
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
ju

s
ti

c
e
 s

y
s
te

m

4
.2

.3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
k
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 -

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

P
a
g
e
 4

5

Page 193



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
7
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 g

ir
ls

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
re

a
te

 a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

L
a
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
8
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 y

o
u
th

 o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
A

Y
P

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

4
/1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 M

e
t-

T
ra

c
k
 P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 a
n
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 l
e
d
, 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 y

o
u
th

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

. 
S

o
m

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
tt
e
n
d
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 o

rd
e
r,

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
a
w

a
y
 

fr
o
m

 C
o
u
rt

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
o
ff
e
rs

 a
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 a

th
le

ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 f
it
n
e
s
s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f
o
c
u
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

lif
e
s
ty

le
s
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
te

r 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

 

R
a
p
id

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 T

e
a
m

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

4
/1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

1
0
0
%

IA
G

 a
n
d
 N

e
w

 S
ta

rt
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
A

d
v
is

e
rs

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
c
o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
-

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 b
y
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

is
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
.

P
a
g
e
 4

6

Page 194



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
9
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 d
ru

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
liv

e
r 

3
 D

ru
g
 A

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 w

e
e
k
s
 b

y
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

3
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 T

H
E

O
s
 f
o
r 

d
ru

g
-

re
la

te
d
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

In
te

g
ra

te
 t
h
e
 D

ru
g
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

w
id

e
r 

O
ff
e
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
l 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 b

re
a
c
h
e
s
 b

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

4
/1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 D

e
a
le

r-
A

-D
a
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
A

n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 4

7

Page 195



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
0
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
5
%

T
h
is

 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t,
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 p

o
s
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

P
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

T
h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a
u
n
c
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 T

e
a
m

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

d
u
lt
s
, 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

D
e
la

y
e
d

8
0
%

8
0
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
 t
e
a
m

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

s
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 
It
 h

a
s
 g

o
o
d
 

lin
k
s
 w

it
h
 C

A
M

H
s
 a

n
d
 P

D
 t
e
a
m

s
.

T
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
T

A
S

C
.

P
re

s
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

 r
e
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

P
u
b
lis

h
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 D

V
D

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 S

ix
 L

iv
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
in

 J
u
ly

. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 a

s
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

P
ro

m
o
te

 n
e
w

 e
x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 s
h
o
rt

ly
 a

t 
th

e
 S

t 
T

h
o
m

a
s
 s

it
e
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 s

h
o
rt

 d
e
la

y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 d

e
c
a
n
t.
  

S
h
ip

to
n
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 a

 s
it
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 E

C
S

H
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 w

it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 
h
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 H

C
A

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 p
re

p
a
ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 f
in

a
l 
g
o
 a

h
e
a
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

.

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 

s
y
s
te

m
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

h
if
t 
in

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

w
a
rd

s
 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

L
e
a
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 E

L
C

A
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.3
: 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.3

.1
  
  
  
  
  
  
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

4
.3

.2
  
  
  
  
  
  
 U

s
in

g
 j
o

in
e
d

-u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 h
e
a
lt

h
, 
d

ru
g

s
, 
a
lc

o
h

o
l,
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

, 
s
k
il
ls

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

, 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
, 
d

e
b

t 
a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 a

g
e
 

4
.3

.3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

a
c
k
li
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
u

s
e
s
 o

f 
c
ri

m
e
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 ‘
a
t-

ri
s
k
’ 
g

ro
u

p
s
, 
to

 n
ip

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

P
a
g
e
 4

8

Page 196



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
1
. 
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

C
Y

P
P

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
a
fe

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 F
a
m

ily
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 M

o
d
e
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 s

w
if
t 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 f
ro

m
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

7
5
%

T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
, 
le

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
to

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
a
m

ily
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 M

o
d
e
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
T

ru
s
t 
b
y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

4
/1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

, 
A

p
ri
l 
–
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
a
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
b
o
a
rd

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
.

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
’ 
T

ru
s
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
s
u
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

a
m

in
g
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

P
a
g
e
 4

9

Page 197



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
2
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 

th
re

e
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

’s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

3
5
%

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

fE
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 c

e
a
s
e
 a

ll 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

ff
e
c
t.
 W

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

2
3
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

fa
m

ily
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
4
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 2

1
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 b
y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
4
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 C

h
ild

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

fE
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 c

e
a
s
e
 a

ll 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

ff
e
c
t

1
,1

7
6
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 2

1
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 b
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
. 
W

e
 w

e
re

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

fE
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 c

e
a
s
e
 a

ll 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

ff
e
c
t

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
3
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 Y

e
a
rs

 1
-3

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 u

s
e
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
tl
in

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 S
t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 P
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 J

o
h
n
 O

rw
e
ll 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 &
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 S
p
o
rt

s
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.1
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 i
n

 p
e
o

p
le

’s
 h

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 l
if

e
s
ty

le
s

5
.1

.4
  
  
  
  
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

5
.1

.1
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o

5
.1

.2
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
d

ia
b

e
te

s
, 
h

ig
h

 b
lo

o
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 a

n
d

 c
h

o
le

s
te

ro
l

A
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

5
.1

.3
  
  
  
 S

lo
w

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 o
b

e
s
it

y

P
a
g
e
 5

0

Page 198



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
4
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
,7

0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
le

is
u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 v

is
it
s
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
5
0
0
,0

0
0
 u

n
d
e
r-

1
6
 l
e
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 v

is
it
s
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 d
ra

ft
 S

p
o
rt

 &
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
liv

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
e
 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
lk

in
g
 m

o
re

 o
ft
e
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 

w
e
e
k
ly

 H
e
a
lt
h
 W

a
lk

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

5
0
0
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 2

,0
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

2
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

s
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 

h
o
ld

in
g
 1

4
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
 &

 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
,

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 5

1

Page 199



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
5
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

A
S

P
IR

E
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

s
 f
a
ll 

s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
iz

e
 o

f 
2
5
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 

s
o
m

e
 d

e
la

y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e
c
u
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 A

S
P

IR
E

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

4
/1

0
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

1
0
0
%

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 A
S

P
IR

E
 c

o
h
o
rt

s
 o

f 
2
5
 w

it
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

W
e
lf
a
re

 O
ff
ic

e
rs

 b
y
 M

a
y
, 
A

u
g
u
s
t,
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
1

D
e
la

y
e
d

9
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ll 
b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
b
u
t 

th
e
y
 f
a
ll 

s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
2
5
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 h

a
rd

-t
o
-r

e
a
c
h
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

E
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
re

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 i
n
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
fi
n
is

h
 u

n
ti
l 

M
a
y
. 
T

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
h
e
n
.

P
a
g
e
 5

2

Page 200



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
6
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
fo

o
d
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 l
e
d
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ilo

t 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
lu

s
te

rs
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
 w

it
h
 r

o
ll-

o
u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 L

A
P

7
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
.

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

u
p
il 

le
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 p

u
p
il 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
a
g
e
 5

3

Page 201



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
7
. 
In

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

, 
d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

L
A

A
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 u

s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 T
o
b
a
c
c
o
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
A

lli
a
n
c
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
,0

6
1
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (

N
I 

1
2
3
 -

 O
v
e
r 

1
6
s
 s

to
p
p
e
d
 s

m
o
k
in

g
) 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

3
0
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 g

a
in

 t
h
e
 S

m
o
k
e
 F

re
e
 

A
w

a
rd

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
3
0
 u

n
d
e
ra

g
e
 t
e
s
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
8
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
H

e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

c
a
le

d
 b

a
c
k
 d

u
e
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 

a
n
d
 J

u
ly

 b
u
t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 

a
t 
th

e
 B

a
is

h
a
k
i 
M

e
la

 f
a
m

ily
 z

o
n
e
 i
n
 A

lle
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
ra

d
is

e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

t 
V

ic
to

ri
a
 

P
a
rk

. 
P

a
rk

 b
a
s
e
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 h
e
ld

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

a
m

ily
 W

e
e
k
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

M
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
. 
T

h
e
 S

N
T

 f
o
o
tb

a
ll 

to
u
rn

a
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
u
n
d
e
r 

1
6
s
 

w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

p
o
n
s
o
re

d
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 J

u
ly

-A
u
g
u
s
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
a
m

p
p
o
s
t 
b
a
n
n
e
rs

, 
b
ill

b
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
 s

u
p
e
r 

s
id

e
s
.

L
a
u
n
c
h
 e

v
e
n
t 
fo

r 
W

a
lk

4
L
if
e
 M

ile
 i
n
 M

ile
 E

n
d
 P

a
rk

, 
J
u
ly

 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 L
a
u
n
c
h
 e

v
e
n
t 
h
e
ld

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r

E
x
h
ib

it
 p

h
o
to

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
o
o
d
 

g
ro

w
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r 

(A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

&
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
o
o
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 

e
v
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 1

6
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 W
e
 a

re
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
  
W

o
m

e
n
's

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

h
o
to

 e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
 t
h
e
n
. 
It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 b

y
 W

E
N

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 f
o
o
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
h
ib

it
io

n
 t
o
 I
d
e
a
 S

to
re

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 M

u
lb

e
rr

y
 P

la
c
e
 l
o
b
b
y
.

P
a
g
e
 5

4

Page 202



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
9
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
a
t 
e
m

p
o
w

e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
n
d
 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

H
o
ld

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

n
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
4
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r/

c
a
re

r 
fo

ru
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

F
o
ru

m
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

fo
ru

m
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 T

A
S

C
 a

n
d
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 

P
C

T
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 (

lin
k
 t
o
 P

S
A

 1
6
),

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

.

5
.2

.2
  
  
  
 C

o
m

b
a
ti

n
g

 d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 a
n

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s

5
.2

.3
  
  
  
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
a
ti

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 h

e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.2
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

5
.2

.1
  
  
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 h
ig

h
-q

u
a
li
ty

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
a
g
e
 5

5

Page 203



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 8

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
0
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

ll 
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 l
e
d
 b

y
 C

A
M

H
S

, 
u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

re
v
ie

w
. 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

h
a
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 o

n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 P

la
n
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(C
h
ild

re
n
,

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
1
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 

w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

fo
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
, 
e
a
rl
y
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
is

 a
n
d
 

liv
in

g
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
.

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 C

a
re

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
0
. 

(h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.t
o
w

e
rh

a
m

le
ts

.n
h
s
.u

k
/p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
/c

o
rp

o
ra

te
-p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
/)

.

N
e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

 p
la

c
e
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n
 (

A
d
u
lt
s
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 C

a
re

rs
: 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

 

n
e
w

 M
e
m

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
 n

e
w

 D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 A

d
v
is

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 L

ia
is

o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

D
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 A

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 E

C
S

H
 p

ro
je

c
t

P
a
g
e
 5

6

Page 204



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

T
h

e
m

e
 1

: 
O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 L
P

0
7
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
o
m

e
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

B
V

P
I 
a
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
0

5
1

5
0

4
6
.3

4
-7

.3
%

�
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 L
P

0
7
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

th
n
ic

 

m
in

o
ri
ty

.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

B
V

P
I 
a
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
5

1
7

2
7

2
2
.2

3
-1

7
.7

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
9
1
.4

%
 o

f 
a
ll 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 E
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
, 
ie

 w
it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

o
v
e
r 

5
%

 s
in

c
e
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r.

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-L

B
T

H
 a

re
a
s
. 
L
B

T
H

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
d
 9

1
.8

%
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-L

B
T

H
 8

7
.3

%
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 

C
M

T
 a

n
d
 M

A
B

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 W

F
R

T
C

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
L
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
w

h
e
n
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
. 

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

T
a

rg
e

t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

O
u

tt
u

rn

A
p

ri
l

M
a
y

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n

u
a
ry

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2

0
1

1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 205



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 L
P

0
7
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

B
V

P
I 
a
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
tr

a
te

g
y.

  
S

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
’ 
a
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y,

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 

D
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
5
).

  

 G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

4
.7

2
5
.4

2
-6

3
.0

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

/s
h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
th

e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
rr

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 s

e
lf
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
, 
c
e
rt

if
ie

d
 b

y 
a
 G

P
 o

r 
lo

n
g
 t
e
rm

 d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
F

T
E

 

s
ta

ff
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

7
8
.5

4
6
.5

7
.3

1
-1

3
.5

%
�

re
d

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
6

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

/t
o
ta

l 

v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 x

 1
0
0
%

.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
o
h
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

8
5

8
6
.7

6
8
7

9
1
.4

5
.1

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 r

e
ly

 i
n
 p

a
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

ig
o
u
r 

o
f 
th

e
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
/ 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 
w

e
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 

s
ta

ff
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
a
u
d
it
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y 
- 

th
is

 m
a
y 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 s

ta
ff
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y,

 o
n
ly

 7
5
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
h
a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 t
o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 
th

e
y 

h
a
v
e
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
. 

C
M

T
 a

n
d
 M

A
B

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 W

F
R

T
C

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
, 
h
a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 8

.5
2
 f
te

 

d
a
ys

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 7

.3
1
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
.2

1
 d

a
ys

 (
1
4
%

).

B
o
th

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
. 
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
n
e
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
. 
 T

h
is

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y 

o
f 
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
.2

1
 d

a
ys

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
.5

 d
a
ys

.

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

O
u

tt
u

rn

M
a

y
J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 206



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t
im

e
 -

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 -
 S

ta
g
e
 1

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
w

it
h
in

 2
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
5

9
2

8
6

9
4

9
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
1
a

 V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
te

d
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
(+

/-
) 

  M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
£
m

ill
io

n
 (

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
i.
e
. 
0
 e

q
u
a
ls

 n
o
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
, 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 f
ig

u
re

 

e
q
u
a
ls

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
, 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 f
ig

u
re

 e
q
u
a
ls

 u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r 

(c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 z

e
ro

)

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

0
�
�
��
�
�

0
0
.0

7
3

N
o
t 
m

e
t

�
R

E
D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
9
a

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 (

c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t)

 -
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
t 
L
in

e
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 1

0
9
a
/b

/c
, 
s
h
o
w

in
g
 t
re

n
d
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
v
o
lu

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

h
if
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

N
/A

6
7
0
,0

0
0

N
/A

7
1
8
,3

7
9

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
9
1
.4

%
 o

f 
a
ll 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 E
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
 -

 w
it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
ys

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

B
T

H
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-L

B
T

H
 a

re
a
s
. 
L
B

T
H

 d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
d
 9

1
.8

%
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-

L
B

T
H

 8
7
.3

%
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 i
s
 £

7
3
,0

0
0
 (

th
is

 r
e
p
la

c
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

 9
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
£
4
6
3
,0

0
0
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 q
u
o
te

d
).

  
 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 (

£
2
3
k
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
).

  
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 b

re
a
k
-e

v
e
n
. 
 A

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
(£

1
9
k
) 

w
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
7
k
. 
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
1
2
7
k
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t.

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
ri

l
M

a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r
O

c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r
D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r
J
a

n
u
a

ry
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 207



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
9
b

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 (

c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t)

 -
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 1

0
9
a
/b

/c
, 
s
h
o
w

in
g
 t
re

n
d
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
v
o
lu

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

h
if
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

N
/A

2
3
8
,3

7
9

N
/A

2
1
5
,3

6
6

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0
9
c

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 (

c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t)

 -
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

W
e
b
s
it
e
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 1

0
9
a
/b

/c
, 
s
h
o
w

in
g
 t
re

n
d
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
v
o
lu

m
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

h
if
ts

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

2
,1

9
2
,7

0
0

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1
0
a

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 O

v
e
ra

ll 
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

N
/A

N
/A

9
0

8
6
.8

-3
.6

%
N

/A
R

E
D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

b
y 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
w

it
c
h
b
o
a
rd

 c
a
lls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
 T

h
e
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

b
y 

th
e
 t
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

H
H

 S
L
A

 a
t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 v

is
it
s
 a

re
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
 f
ig

u
re

s
.

T
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 n
e
w

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

 -
 p

h
o
n
e
, 
fa

c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
b
. 
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 o

u
tt
u
rn

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
s
h
if
t 
to

 m
o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
s
s
 c

o
s
tl
y 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ye

a
rs

. 
 I
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 p
e
r 

c
h
a
n
n
e
l,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
o
 

s
e
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
s
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
(a

) 
m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 a

v
o
id

a
b
le

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
a
n
d
 (

b
) 

a
 s

h
if
t 
to

 

w
e
b
-e

n
a
b
le

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 n
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls

 -
 p

h
o
n
e
, 
fa

c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
b
. 
W

e
b
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
.

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

o
c
it
m

 f
in

d
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

u
tt
u
rn

s
 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
a
n
n
e
ls

; 
fo

r 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
, 
o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
: 
- 

p
h
o
n
e
 9

1
%

, 
- 

fa
c
e
-t

o
-f

a
c
e
 7

7
%

, 
- 

w
e
b
 6

6
%

 

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

1
0

0
0

5
1

0
0

0

1
0

1
0

0
0

1
5

1
0

0
0

2
0

1
0

0
0

2
5

1
0

0
0

A
p

ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

H
o
t 
L
in

e
s
 (

L
)

O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

 (
L
)

W
e
b

 S
it
e
s
 (

H
)

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 208



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1
1

F
ir
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
%

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 “

H
o
w

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 t
h
a
t 
yo

u
r 

c
a
ll 

to
d
a
y 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
h
a
t 
yo

u
 p

h
o
n
e
d
 u

s
 a

b
o
u
t?

”)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

ym
o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

M
a
yo

r 
L
 R

a
h
m

a
n

9
0

9
0

9
1

9
0

-1
.1

%
�

R
E

D

R
E

S
0
1
2
, 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

1
0
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

"p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
/p

a
y"

 (
A

R
S

 M
e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
0

5
0

5
4

5
0
.7

-6
.1

%
�

R
E

D

T
h

e
m

e
 2

: 
A

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e

 t
o

 L
iv

e
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

2
0
7
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
4

N
e
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
, 
m

in
u
s
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
s
, 
p
lu

s
 a

n
y 

g
a
in

s
 o

r 

lo
s
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

2
9
9
9

2
3
9
8

2
9
9
9

1
1
6
3

-6
1
.2

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

in
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
5
0
.7

%
 i
s
 +

/-
2
.9

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 1

9
9
9
 

o
n
w

a
rd

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
v
ie

w
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 i
m

a
g
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
9
0
.3

%
 w

a
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

b
e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
d
ri
v
e
r 

fo
r 

th
is

 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 l
e
n
g
th

y 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 r
e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
a
ir
s
 c

a
lls

 d
ro

p
 t
o
 a

ro
u
n
d
 8

7
%

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 w

in
te

r 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 T

H
H

 a
n
d
 M

e
a
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 c

a
ll 

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
. 

8
0

8
2

8
4

8
6

8
8

9
0

9
2

9
4

9
6

9
8

1
0

0

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
0
/1

1

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t

-1
0

1
0

3
0

5
0

7
0

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

O
u

tt
u

rn

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 209



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
8
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 
h
o
m

e
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 r

e
n
t)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
2
8
7

1
9
3
1

1
2
8
7

7
3
3

-4
3
.0

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
3

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 (

g
ro

s
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 o

n
ly

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(a
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

. 
 F

a
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 3

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

4
0
5

6
1
9

4
0
5

2
1
4

-4
7
.2

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 7

3
3
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 4
3
%

 o
ff
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
,6

8
8
. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
to

 b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
d
 i
f 
w

e
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 3

,7
2
7
 

u
n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 G

o
L
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
,8

6
1
; 
9
6
.5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

ye
d
 i
n
to

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 o

r 
b
e
yo

n
d
. 
(O

n
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

s
o
lv

e
n
c
y 

a
n
d
 f
o
u
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 d

e
la

ys
).

 T
h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 c

. 
3
1
0
 

u
n
it
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 s

lip
p
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r.

 T
h
e
 R

S
L
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 u

n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 t
o
 d

o
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
y 

c
o
u
ld

 

to
 t
ry

 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
t 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 b
u
t 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

e
re

 o
b
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
rr

e
s
o
lv

a
b
le

. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 1

0
/1

1
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
,9

9
9
 n

e
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
u
n
it
s
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
y 

a
re

 a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l.
 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
n
ti
re

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
N

o
t 
a
ll 

th
o
s
e
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
/1

1
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 y

e
t,
 o

n
e
 o

r 
tw

o
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 o

n
 a

 

s
it
e
 c

a
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 ,
a
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
v
ia

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

T
h
is

 s
lip

p
a
g
e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
 t
o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
n
o
w

 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 a

t 
a
lm

o
s
t 
1
9
0
0
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
, 
w

e
ll 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 y

e
a
r’
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
2
3
1
. 
W

h
ile

 

w
e
 w

o
rk

 h
a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 g

re
a
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

c
to

rs
 

a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

ta
rt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
la

n
d
 a

t 
a
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 p
ri
c
e
, 
p
ro

s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

s
a
le

 o
f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
, 
a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

b
u
ild

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 a
 f
e
w

 o
f 
th

e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
tu

a
l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 u
n
it
s
 f
ro

m
 m

ix
e
d
 

te
n
u
re

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ra
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 H

C
A

 a
ls

o
 a

ff
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
 s

ta
rt

s
 f
o
r 

1
0
0
%

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

5
0

5
5

0

1
0

5
0

1
5

5
0

2
0

5
0

2
5

5
0

3
0

5
0

3
5

5
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

5
0

5
5

0

1
0

5
0

1
5

5
0

2
0

5
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u

n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 210



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
o
 A

S
B

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

6
0

6
7

6
5

7
3

1
2
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
5

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 r

e
-l
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y 
(d

a
ys

) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
D

a
ys

 (
T

h
e
 t
im

e
 i
n
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
ys

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

a
y 

a
ft
e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y 

is
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

d
 u

p

to
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

rt
s
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

2
8

2
7
.2

3
2
6

2
3
.1

1
1
1
.1

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ily

 r
e
n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 i
s
 6

5
%

 d
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r’
s
 f
ig

u
re

, 
re

m
a
rk

a
b
ly

 c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 

re
n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 6

4
%

 d
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 f
ig

u
re

. 
 A

s
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
it
 i
s
 n

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
s
 a

 

s
im

ila
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
u
n
it
s
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 d

e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 s

ta
rt

s
 o

n
 s

it
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
y 

fa
c
to

rs
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

rt
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ily

 r
e
n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 i
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t,
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
to

ta
l 
re

n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 A
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
it
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
th

e
 2

1
4
 f
a
m

ily
 u

n
it
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
5
8
%

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
re

n
te

d
 u

n
it
s
 (

3
7
2
: 
3
2
3
 p

lu
s
 4

9
 )

 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 4

5
%

 p
o
lic

y 
ta

rg
e
t.
  
A

s
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r’
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

is
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
rt

s
 o

n
 s

it
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
th

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

o
r 

n
e
x
t 
ye

a
r.

 O
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 p

o
lic

y-
c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 
m

ix
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
iz

e
d
 u

n
it
s
 f
o
r 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 r
e
n
t.
  
N

e
x
t 
ye

a
r’
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
li

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 o
v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t,
 a

s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
re

n
te

d
 f
a
m

ily
 u

n
it
s
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
a
t 
a
ro

u
n
d
 5

7
0
 u

n
it
s
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

0

1
0

0

2
0

0

3
0

0

4
0

0

5
0

0

6
0

0

7
0

0

8
0

0

9
0

0

1
0

0
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
J
u
n
e

S
e

p
te

m
b
e

r
D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r
M

a
rc

h
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

Ju
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s

t
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 211



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
6

S
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
£
 (

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
, 
w

ri
te

 o
ff
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
5

1
2
.6

1
1
.5

1
1
.8

3
2
.9

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
7

R
e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

n
t 
d
u
e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
0
0
.0

1
9
9
.9

7
1
0
0

9
9
.8

3
-0

.2
%

�
R

E
D

L
A

A
4
0
5
c
, 

L
A

A
L
o
c
a
l4

0
5
c
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
te

d
 n

o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 R

S
L
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

h
o
ic

e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

5
2
7
.3

2
4
9

8
4

7
1
.4

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 A

ll 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 S

a
tu

rd
a
y 

a
n
d
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
ry

 a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
t,
 b

u
t 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
re

 h
o
s
ti
le

 t
h
a
n
 e

v
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s

t
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
O

c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 O
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 O

u
tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
2

0
1

1
/1

2

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 212



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
L
o
c
a
l2

1
3
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
1

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 
w

h
o
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
(s

),
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 

th
e
ir
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

8
1
1

1
2

[L
A

T
E

 -
 J

U
L
Y

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

L
A

A
N

I1
5
8
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
8
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

to
c
k
 t
h
a
t 
is

 d
e
c
e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

4
9

5
5
.9

5
4
7

[L
A

T
E

 -
 J

U
L
Y

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
ys

ic
a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 o
n
e
 w

e
e
k
 s

a
m

p
le

, 
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 b

y 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
a
te

v
e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

N
/A

N
/A

2
,0

9
2
,6

5
1

2
,0

2
7
,1

2
4

-3
.1

%
N

/A
R

E
D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 M

a
rg

in
a
lly

 m
is

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y 

3
.1

%
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 

ye
a
r,

 w
h
e
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 r

o
s
e
 b

y 
7
.2

%
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 v

is
it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 f
e
ll 

b
y 

6
.6

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-

1
0
. 
N

e
w

 s
ta

ff
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r:

 r
e
m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
in

g
 h

o
u
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
p
e
n
in

g
 o

n
 W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
ys

; 
a
n
d
 

g
re

a
te

r 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y 

fo
r 

ru
n
n
in

g
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 t
o
 v

is
it
 I
d
e
a
 S

to
re

s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 F

in
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 a

u
d
it
. 
E

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 F

in
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 a

u
d
it
. 
E

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
.

9
0
0
0

5
0
9
0
0
0

1
0
0
9
0
0
0

1
5
0
9
0
0
0

2
0
0
9
0
0
0

2
5
0
9
0
0
0

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 213



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0
6

P
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
%

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

ye
a
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r 

(L
o
w

e
r)

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

3
.3

4
.5

[1
0
5
 K

S
I]

1
2
.7

 

[1
0
0
 K

S
I]

1
4
.5

[9
1
 K

S
I]

1
7
.5

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
8

6
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
8

6
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

0

P
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

to
n
n
e
s
 (

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

e
t 

o
f 

s
e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
5
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
ye

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

&
 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

N
o
t 
s
e
t

1
2
.9

2
1
0
.3

6
-4

1
8
%

�
R

E
D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 [
K

S
I}

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

ye
a
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 

d
e
ta

ils
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
K

S
I;
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

K
S

I 
b
e
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 l
a
g
, 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
a
s
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y.
  
F

ro
m

 2
0
0
8
/0

9
 t
o
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
, 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
d
 m

a
d
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
3
%

 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

te
p
s
 

it
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
8
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 e

v
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

o
n
w

a
rd

s
. 
 S

te
p
s
 T

a
k
e
n
 s

o
 f
a
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
:

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 S

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 s

e
t 

• 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

• 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

• 
D

e
c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 E

n
e
rg

y 
S

tr
a
te

g
y 

in
 P

la
c
e

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r

• 
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

• 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

• 
W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

• 
A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

1
4
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

Ju
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 214



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
1
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

9
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e
, 
re

c
yc

lin
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
to

ta
l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e
, 
re

c
yc

lin
g
, 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o

r 
a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y 
to

ta
l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
6

2
6
.5

1
3
2

2
7
.2

5
-1

4
.8

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5
a
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

9
5
a
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
2

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 l
it
te

r

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
0

1
1

8
6

2
5
.0

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5
b
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

9
5
b
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
3

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 d
e
tr

it
u
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
1

1
0

1
0

7
3
0
.0

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
a
s
 3

2
%

. 
T

h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 b

y 
4
.7

5
%

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

o
u
r 

d
ry

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 g

o
o
d
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
d
ry

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
p
 t
o
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

e
a
r 

th
e
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
n
e
r 

c
it
y 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 a

t 
2
9
.7

2
%

. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt
u
rn

J
u
ly

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r
M

a
rc

h
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt

u
rn

J
u

ly
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

1

Page 215



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5
c
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

9
5
c
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
4

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 g
ra

ff
it
i

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

7
2
0

6
8

-3
3
.3

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5
d
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

9
5
d
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
5

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
8

2
3

-5
0
.0

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 t
h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 
s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
(A

R
S

 m
e
a
s
u
re

) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

6
1

6
2

6
3

6
0
.3

-4
.8

%
�

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
t 
in

 2
0
0
8
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
[L

A
A

] 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
; 
th

e
 L

A
A

 h
a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
o
lis

h
e
d
 

[O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
].

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

in
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
6
0
.3

%
 i
s
 +

/-
2
.8

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 s
in

c
e
 1

9
9
9
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 [
6
0
%

 o
n
 l
a
s
t 

ye
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt
u
rn

] 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
t 
in

 2
0
0
8
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
[L

A
A

] 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
; 
th

e
 L

A
A

 h
a
s
 

s
in

c
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
o
lis

h
e
d
 [
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
].

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u

tt
u

rn
J
u

ly
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

J
u
ly

N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

O
u
tt
u
rn

P
a
g
e
 1

2

Page 216



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 r

a
te

 p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
(A

R
S

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

5
8

6
1

6
3

5
9
.6

-4
.8

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1
8

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r:

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 v

ie
w

 r
u
b
b
is

h
 a

n
d
 

lit
te

r 
ly

in
g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

s
 "

a
 v

e
ry

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m
" 

(A
R

S
 m

e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
5

1
6

1
4

1
2
.7

9
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 r

a
te

d
 l
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

(A
R

S
 m

e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
6

4
7

4
8

4
7
.3

-1
.5

%
�

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
1
2
.7

%
 i
s
 +

/-
1
.9

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

in
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
4
7
.3

%
 i
s
 +

/-
2
.9

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 s
in

c
e
 1

9
9
9
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 s

te
a
d
ily

 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

in
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
5
9
.6

%
 i
s
 +

/-
2
.8

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 s
in

c
e
 1

9
9
9
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
.

-1
0

1
0

3
0

5
0

7
0

1
9
9
9

2
0
0
0

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

O
u
tt

u
rn

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
8

 2
0

0
9

 2
0

1
0

 2
0

1
1

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

O
u

tt
u

rn

P
a
g
e
 1

3

Page 217



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

T
h

e
m

e
 3

: 
A

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
8
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

1
7

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

6
.2

5
6

5
.5

5
.3

3
.6

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
9

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

4
6

A
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 T

a
yl

o
r

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
3
.1

 
3
.4

3
.1

3
.4

 (
P

)
9
.6

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
0
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
0

A
d
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 T

a
yl

o
r

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

3
.5

4
.8

3
.5

6
.1

 (
P

)
7
4
.2

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 c

o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
t 
tu

rn
 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t
h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

, 
w

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

.3
%

 N
E

E
T

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
.5

%
, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
6
.0

%
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
F

ia
n
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 M

a
y 

2
5
th

 2
0
1
1
. 

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0

O
u
tt

u
rn

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.54

4
.55

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

4

Page 218



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
1
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
1

O
v
e
ra

ll 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
ra

te
 (

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

5
4
.9

6
0
.4

5
5
.7

6
0
.3

8
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
2
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
2
a

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
B

y 
M

a
y 

2
0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 d

a
ta

) 
n
a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 
-5

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 -
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

-5
.7

-4
.9

-5
.7

-3
.9

3
1
.6

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.
 U

p
d
a
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y 
D

W
P

, 
w

h
o
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 (

1
6
/6

4
 m

a
le

,1
6
/5

9
 

fe
m

a
le

) 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t
ill

 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

L
A

A
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1
).

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.
 U

p
d
a
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y 
D

W
P

, 
w

h
o
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 (

1
6
/6

4
 m

a
le

,1
6
/5

9
 

fe
m

a
le

) 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

L
A

A
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1
).

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
F

in
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 M

a
y 

2
5
th

 2
0
1
1
. 

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0

O
u
tt

u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t

-1
0 -9 -8 -7 -6 -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0

2
0
0
9
/1

0

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a
y

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n

u
a
ry

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

M
a
rc

h

2
0
1
1
/1

2

T
a
rg

e
t

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Ja
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

5

Page 219



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

5
3
a

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
. 
B

y 
M

a
y 

2
0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 d

a
ta

) 
e
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
.1

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 

R
e
n
e
w

a
l

3
.1

4
.4

3
.1

6
9
3
.5

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
2
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 

L
it
e
ra

c
y

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 c
h
ild

 t
u
rn

s
 5

, 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 

p
o
in

ts
 o

r 
m

o
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

3
 E

Y
F

S
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

) 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
5
.3

4
2
.9

4
6
.0

0
4
6
.0

0
0
.0

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
3
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
7

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
9

7
4

8
0
.0

0
7
6

-5
.0

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.
 U

p
d
a
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y 
D

W
P

, 
w

h
o
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 (

1
6
/6

4
 m

a
le

,1
6
/5

9
 

fe
m

a
le

) 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t
ill

 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

L
A

A
 p

e
ri
o
d
 (

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
1
).

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 4

6
%

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y.

 W
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a
rg

e
t

A
p

ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

6

Page 220



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
5

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

5
0

4
5
.8

5
3
.0

0
5
1
.8

-2
.3

%
�

R
E

D

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
6
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
6

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 5

5
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

1
6

1
.0

0
0

M
E

T
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
5
1
.8

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 4

5
.6

%
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
3
%

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
e
v
e
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

G
C

S
E

's
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra

te
s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
t 
fa

lli
n
g
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 b

y 
1
.6

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 w
e
a
k
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

S
IP

) 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

d
v
is

o
rs

 (
S

D
A

's
) 

a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 7

6
%

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 f
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 (

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
).

 w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
is

 a
n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

w
e
 a

re
 3

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
1
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 

W
e
 a

im
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

o
u
g
h
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 g
e
t 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 i
t 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

- 
b
u
t 
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 r

is
e
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 L

A
 h

a
s
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 
s
e
tt
in

g
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
o
e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
d
a

T
h
e
 k

e
y 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 r

e
a
d
in

g
 d

ip
p
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 W
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
.

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 K

S
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 T

a
lk

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
.

B
ro

a
d
e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C

o
g
n
it
iv

e
 A

c
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

C
A

M
E

) 
p
ro

je
c
t 
–
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
M

E
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
 a

ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
1
:1

 T
u
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

is
te

n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
P

ri
o
ri
ty

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L
A

) 
w

it
h
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
E

v
e
ry

 C
h
ild

 a
 W

ri
te

r 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

7

Page 221



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
8
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1
8

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 

G
C

S
E

 a
n
d
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
1

0
.0

0
0

M
E

T
�

G
R

E
E

N

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

8
7
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
1

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
.6

4
.4

4
.2

3
.2

2
3
.8

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

fE
 f
o
r 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 h

a
lf
 t
e
rm

s
 1

-5
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

ye
a
r 

w
e
re

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
d
 a

 S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
3
.2

%
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y 

b
e
tt
e
r 

(l
o
w

e
r)

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 L

A
's

 o
w

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
4
.4

%
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 r

a
te

 o
f 
3
.9

%
. 
T

h
e
 L

A
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

ir
c
u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 P

A
 W

o
rk

b
o
o
k
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

u
s
e
. 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
-u

p
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 &

 W
e
lf
a
re

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 a

v
o
id

 d
ri
ft
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

p
a
tt
e
rn

s
 o

f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 e

n
tr

e
n
c
h
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 T

H
 w

h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 T

H
 w

h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 5

5
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2
 

fo
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 (

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
).

 T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.

-113579

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

-1012345

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

8

Page 222



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

1
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

0
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 

K
e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 

&
 F

a
m

ili
e
s

2
3

1
3
.8

9
2
0

1
8
.5

2
-7

.4
�

R
E

D

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

9
2
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
1

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 %

 g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
c
a
lly

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
1
.5

3
5

3
0
.9

0
3
3
.1

0
-7

.1
%

�
R

E
D

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

9
3
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y 
2
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

9
2

8
9
.1

9
3
.0

0
8
8

-5
.4

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 1

8
.5

2
%

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
) 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 D

F
E

. 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
D

F
E

 a
n
d
 C

S
F

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 3

3
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 3
5
.2

%
 g

a
p
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

m
e
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 3

0
.3

%
. 
T

h
e
 g

a
p
 i
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
3
.9

%
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

te
a
d
y 

a
n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 2
0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 2
0
%

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

b
it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t.
 

T
h
e
 E

a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 a

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
. 
T

h
e
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
ti
n
g
 

g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 b

o
ys

 a
n
d
 g

ir
ls

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 E
a
rl
y 

Y
e
a
rs

 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
In

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

, 
a
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 a
im

 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
m

o
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

m
o
s
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
o
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
; 
w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 s
e
e
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 i
f 
th

is
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
. 
A

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y 

ye
a
rs

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 e

th
o
s
 a

n
d
 a

m
b
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y 

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
w

o
u
ld

 s
e
e
 m

o
re

 r
a
p
id

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

g
a
p
; 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
L
A

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u
tt

u
rn

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 o
u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 1

9

Page 223



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

9
4
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y 
2
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 M

a
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

8
5

8
7
.2

8
8
.0

0
8
7
.0

0
-1

.1
%

�
R

E
D

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

9
9
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
5

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

5
3

5
0

5
3

3
7
.5

 [
P

R
O

V
]

-2
9
.2

%
�

R
E

D

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

0
0
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
6

 L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

5
3

 

3
5
.7

1
5
3

2
5
 [
P

R
O

V
]

-5
2
.8

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 w

a
s
 8

8
%

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 a

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 8

9
.1

%
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 K

S
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

fo
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 T

a
lk

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
in

te
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
1
:1

 T
u
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 

L
is

te
n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

. 
O

u
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 a

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L
A

) 
e
n
s
u
re

s
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
8
%

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
t 
tu

rn
 o

f 
8
7
%

, 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 f
o
r 

la
s
t 
ye

a
r.

 T
h
is

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

is
 4

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
T

e
a
c
h
e
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
. 
W

e
 a

re
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C

o
g
n
it
iv

e
 A

c
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

C
A

M
E

) 
p
ro

je
c
t 
in

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

re
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
1
:1

 t
u
it
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 a
s
 a

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L
A

) 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 c
lu

s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 3

7
.5

%
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

D
F

E
).

 T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
 

D
F

E
 a

n
d
 C

S
F

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u
tt
u
rn

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 o
u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

P
a
g
e
 2

0

Page 224



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

0
1
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
7

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

2
3

1
3
.8

9
2
0

1
8
.5

2
 [
P

R
O

V
]

-7
.4

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
1

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 A

 L
e
v
e
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
- 

A
 L

e
v
e
l 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

 p
e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
2
2

 

6
3
1

N
o
t 
S

e
t

6
3
6
.6

N
/A

�
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
7

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

1
6

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
9
.9

4
8

4
7
.4

5
7

-2
0
.3

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 2

5
.0

%
 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y 

th
e
 D

F
E

. 

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
 D

F
E

 a
n
d
 C

S
F

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 A

-l
e
v
e
l 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

 (
A

P
S

) 
p
e
r 

le
a
rn

e
r 

w
a
s
 6

3
6
.6

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 w

a
s
 u

p
 b

y 
5
.6

 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 s

c
o
re

 p
e
r 

le
a
rn

e
r 

fr
o
m

 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.

A
-L

e
v
e
l 
3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

u
b
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

S
F

 D
M

T
. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

is
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

ll 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y 

c
a
n
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
, 
o
n
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 t
o
 t
ra

c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 H

U
B

 t
e
a
m

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 A

-l
e
v
e
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 1

8
.5

2
%

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
) 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 D

F
E

. 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
D

F
E

 a
n
d
 C

S
F

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u

tt
u

rn
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

5
0

0

5
5

0

6
0

0

6
5

0

7
0

0

7
5

0

8
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 o
u
tt
u
rn

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 o
u
tu

rn
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 T
a

rg
e

t

P
a
g
e
 2

1

Page 225



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

C
E

0
6
5
, 
L
A

A
N

I0
3
5
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

3
5
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
9

B
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 v

io
le

n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

 
1
8

 

1
8

2
0

1
9
.5

-2
.5

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I0
4

0
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
4

0
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

1
2
3

1
7
4
 [
P

ro
v
]

1
3
8

[L
A

T
E

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 U

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
u
r 

n
e
w

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 i
s
 6

3
.6

%
. 
T

h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
iv

in
g
 

in
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
r 

in
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
ta

x
 c

re
d
it
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 6

0
 p

e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
m

e
d
ia

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y 
h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 5

7
%

, 
e
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

 6
.6

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
7
. 
T

h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 3

,1
3
5
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
if
te

d
 o

u
t 
o
f 
p
o
v
e
rt

y 
in

 

2
0
0
8
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y 
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

c
o
re

d
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
:

- 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f,
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
, 
M

u
s
lim

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
4
/5

- 
K

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V

io
le

n
t 
E

x
tr

e
m

is
m

 a
g
e
n
d
a
 5

/5

- 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 5
/5

- 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t,
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 
5
/5

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 A

w
a
it
in

g
 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y 
d
a
ta

.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y 
S

tr
a
te

g
y 

a
n
d
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 p

o
v
e
rt

y 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 a

s
p
e
c
t 
to

 o
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y.
 

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
0

P
a
g
e
 2

2

Page 226



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
N

I0
0
7
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

0
7
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
h
ri
s
 H

o
lm

e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
 

n
/a

n
/a

2
7
.1

[L
A

T
E

 J
U

N
E

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 j
o
b
 (

A
R

S
 m

e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
K

e
a
ti
n
g

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

 
7
2

7
2

7
5

7
2

-4
.0

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I0
7
9
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
9
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
3

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
th

e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
9
.5

7
0
.5

7
1
.8

7
4
.2

3
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

u
rv

e
y 

o
f 
C

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 v

ia
 w

w
w

.n
s
c
s
e
s
u
rv

e
y.

c
o
m

. 
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 d

a
ta

 a
ro

u
n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

v
e
l 
2
 b

y 
1
9
. 
T

h
e
 1

0
/1

1
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 (
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 0

9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

. 
T

h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 7

4
.2

%
 (

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 a

n
d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
–
 7

1
.8

%
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
ts

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y 
3
.7

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 n
o
t 
a
 p

re
c
is

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 

in
te

rv
a
l 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
7
2
%

 i
s
 +

/-
2
.8

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 T

re
n
d
 d

a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 
 

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
9
9
9

2
0
0
0

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

O
u

tt
u

rn

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0

P
a
g
e
 2

3

Page 227



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
N

I0
8
0
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

8
0
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
th

e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
3

4
0
.9

4
6

4
2
.9

-6
.7

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
0
6
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

0
6
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0
5

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

2
6

0
[L

A
T

E
 -

 J
U

L
]

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

7
5
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

5
0

4
5
.8

5
3

5
1
.8

-2
.3

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
In

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 u

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 d
e
la

y 
in

 p
u
b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y 
a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
y 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
to

 p
u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 m

id
-J

u
ly

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

v
e
l 
3
 b

y 
1
9
. 
T

h
e
 1

0
/1

1
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ye

a
r 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 (
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 0

9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l.
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 4

2
.9

%
 (

L
A

 t
a
rg

e
t:
 4

6
%

).
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 3

.1
%

 

u
n
d
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
2
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 f
ro

m
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 s
lo

w
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 i
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
s
h
o
w

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

le
a
rl
y 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 

fo
r 

1
0
/1

1
. 
W

e
 a

re
 p

u
tt
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
: 

T
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 P

la
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t
o
 

• 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 e

n
tr

y 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
 T

H
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

s
in

g
 A

L
P

s
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

• 
E

n
tr

y 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

o
u
tb

o
ro

u
g
h
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y 
T

H
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

’ 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
. 
C

o
m

p
a
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 o
n
 A

 l
e
v
e
l,
 A

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 a

n
d
 B

T
E

C
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

• 
In

tr
o
d
u
c
e
 1

6
-1

9
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 

• 
S

h
a
re

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 b
y 

1
9
 w

h
ile

 n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

e
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
. 

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0

0

2
0

P
a
g
e
 2

4

Page 228



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
L
o
c
a
l0

0
1
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2
4

E
S

O
L
 E

n
tr

y 
L
e
v
e
l 
O

n
e
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

3
5
2

3
8
7

3
6
2

5
5
3

5
2
.7

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
1
2
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

1
2
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0
6

U
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

-4
4

-4
2
.1

-5
5

-2
9
.6

-4
6
.2

%
�

R
E

D

T
h

e
m

e
 4

: 
A

 S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
E

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
2
0
0
9
 u

n
d
e
r-

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
a
s
 4

0
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 f
e
m

a
le

s
 a

g
e
d
 1

5
-1

7
 –

 a
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
9
.6

%
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 (

1
9
9
8
) 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
8
.1

%
 a

n
d
 a

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
0
.3

%
.

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
r-

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y 
1
2
.5

%
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 r

a
te

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 e
v
e
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
a
te

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 r

a
te

. 
 A

ft
e
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 d

e
c
lin

e
, 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y 

ra
te

s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
h
o
w

e
d
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
7
 t
o
 

2
0
0
8
 b

y 
o
v
e
r 

2
8
%

, 
a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
t 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 h

u
g
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
. 
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 s
m

a
ll 

a
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
a
te

s
 c

a
n
 v

a
ry

 g
re

a
tl
y 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 f
e
m

a
le

 1
5
-1

7
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 b

u
t 
s
lig

h
tl
y 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
.

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 e

n
d
in

g
 i
n
 a

b
o
rt

io
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

, 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

ye
d
. 
O

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 i
t 

w
ill

 a
s
s
is

t 
u
s
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
5
1
.8

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 4

5
.6

%
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
3
%

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
e
v
e
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

G
C

S
E

's
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra

te
s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 j
u
s
t 
fa

lli
n
g
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 b

y 
1
.6

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 w
e
a
k
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

S
IP

) 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

d
v
is

o
rs

 (
S

D
A

's
) 

a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
.

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tu

rn
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0

P
a
g
e
 2

5

Page 229



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1
3
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

6
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ti
m

e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
8
.0

3
9
-1

3
%

[L
A

T
E

 -
 A

u
g
]

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1
2
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

3
5

C
a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
re

rs
 w

h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

r 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

 

ye
a
r 

w
h
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 C

o
h
e
n
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
2
5
.9

3
3
.9

3
0
.9

 (
P

ro
v
)

3
1
.3

-1
.3

%
�

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
2
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

1
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 
o
f 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
s
/t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
0
0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
.2

8
2
.1

4
2
.0

9
7
2

1
.7

7
1
5
.6

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
. 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
a
re

r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
ye

a
r.

 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

th
e
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
it
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 q

u
a
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.54

4
.55

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 2

6

Page 230



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
3
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

1
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 
o
f 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
/t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
0
0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
5
.0

5
2
0
.2

9
2
0
.0

9
2
2
.8

1
-1

3
.5

%
�

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I0
1

8
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

8
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

4

R
a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y 
a
d
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 

%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

H
ig

h
e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

-4
.9

8
2
.2

9
-9

.9
1

[L
A

T
E

 -
 A

U
G

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
7
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

3
3
i

A
rs

o
n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 -
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(P
ri
m

a
ry

 i
s
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
y,

 r
e
s
c
u
e
 o

r 
e
s
c
a
p
e
) 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
1
.9

7
.3

1
1
.5

7
.9

8
3
0
.6

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
A

w
a
it
in

g
 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y 
d
a
ta

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 w

id
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
ri
m

e
 t
yp

e
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 l
o
w

e
r 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
5
.4

2
. 
It
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 d

ri
v
e
n
 b

y 
th

e
 d

o
w

n
 t
u
rn

 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y.
 O

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ye

a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 O

u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a

rg
e

t
M

a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

P
a
g
e
 2

7

Page 231



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
8
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

3
3
ii

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
(A

rs
o
n
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
&

 d
id

 n
o
t 
in

v
o
lv

e
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 o

r 
re

s
c
u
e
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

3
5
.8

1
1
.4

3
3
4
.7

1
4
.8

1
5
7
.3

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

4
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
3
9
9

1
5
0
9

1
4
1
3

[L
A

T
E

 -
 A

u
g
]

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

1
8

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y 
a
d
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

-4
.9

8
2
.2

9
-9

.9
7

[L
A

T
E

 -
 A

u
g
]

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 A

w
a
it
in

g
 D

a
ta

 -
 D

a
ta

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 A

w
a
it
in

g
 D

a
ta

 -
 D

a
ta

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 T
a
rg

e
t

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a
rc

h
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
a
g
e
 2

8

Page 232



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
5
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

1
9

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 a
g
e
d
 1

0
-1

7

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 p

e
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

1
.1

3
1
.1

5
1
.0

8
[L

A
T

E
 -

 A
u
g
]

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 c

ri
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 (

A
R

S
 m

e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y 

B
a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
6

4
6

4
4

4
2

4
.5

%
�

G
R

E
E

N

T
h

e
m

e
 5

: 
A

 H
e

a
lt

h
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

5
0
4

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l0

5
6
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 w

it
h
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 w

h
o
 a

re
 o

b
e
s
e
. 
 

 M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

L
a
yl

a
 R

ic
h
a
rd

s

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

2
3
.6

2
5
.7

2
3
.7

2
5
.7

-8
.4

%
�

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

-3
0

2
0

7
0

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

O
u

tt
u

rn

P
a
g
e
 2

9

Page 233



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 9
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs

�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�

	

�
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
��

�

��
�
�
�
�"

	

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�
#
�
��

 
�
�
!
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
$
�

�
�
�
�
�
"

�
�
�
��

�
�

%

�
&
�

 
�
'
	
��
�

(
�
'
'
�
"

L
A

A
N

I1
2
3
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

2
3
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0
9

S
to

p
p
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 

T
ru

s
t

1
0
4
3

1
4
8
9

1
0
6
1

[L
A

T
E

 -
 

J
U

N
E

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

L
A

A
N

I1
2
0
a
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

2
0
a
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0
7

A
ll-

a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
u
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y 
ra

te
 -

 M
a
le

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 

T
ru

s
t

8
0
4

7
8
7
.8

8
7
8
7

[L
A

T
E

 -
 

J
U

L
/A

U
G

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

L
A

A
N

I1
2
0
b
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l1

2
0
b
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0
8

A
ll-

a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
u
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y 
ra

te
 -

 F
e
m

a
le

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 

T
ru

s
t

5
5
5

5
1
2
.9

5
4
7

[L
A

T
E

 -
 

J
U

L
/A

U
G

]
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 w
ill

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 l
a
te

 J
u
n
e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
t 
h
a
lt
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

is
e
 o

f 
o
b
e
s
it
y 

th
a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
ye

a
r 

6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
. 
L
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y 

a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

t 
Y

e
a
r 

6
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
4
 

ye
a
rs

 (
2
0
0
6
/0

7
 –

 2
3
%

, 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
 –

 2
4
.5

%
, 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 –

 2
5
.7

%
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 -

 2
5
.7

%
) 

w
e
 c

a
n
 s

e
e
 t
h
a
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 

o
b
e
s
it
y 

h
a
s
 p

la
te

a
u
e
d
 a

t 
2
5
.7

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 h
a
v
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

 1
.5

 a
n
d
 1

.2
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

u
r 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

 n
e
w

 j
o
in

t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 e

v
e
n
 g

re
a
te

r 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
o
b
e
s
it
y 

in
 y

e
a
r 

6
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 
a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
in

q
u
e
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
in

 J
u
ly

/A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 
 

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

P
a
g
e
 3

0

Page 234



 

1 

 
 

Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date 
 
5 July 2011 

Classification 
 

Unrestricted 

 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 
 

Report of:  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Originating Officer: 
Louise Fleming, Senior Committee Officer, 
Democratic Services  

Title:  
Four Month Forward Plan 
Ward(s) affected:  

All  

 
 
 

1. Summary 

 
1.1 This report is the Four Month Forward Plan for the Council. It gives details 

of every decision likely to be made by the executive (Cabinet, Council and 
Grants Panel) over the next four months. 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the Forward Plan and use it 
to inform planning for the 2011-12 work programme.

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 235



 

2 

 
  

THE FOUR MONTH FORWARD PLAN 
 
 

6
th
 July 2011 to 5

th
 October 2011 

 
Contact Officer:  Louise Fleming 
    Democratic Services  
Email:    louise.fleming@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Telephone:   020 7364 4878 
Fax No:   020 7364 3232 

 

The Forward Plan is published monthly 
 Kevan Collins 

Chief Executive 
Town Hall  
Mulberry Place 
5 Clove Crescent  
London E14 2BG 

P
age 236



 

3 

Tower Hamlets Council Forward Plan 
 

The Council is required to publish a Forward Plan of all key decisions, which are likely to be taken by the Executive (Cabinet, Council 
and Grants Panel) over the next four months.  Key decisions are all those decisions, which involve major spending, or savings or 
which have a significant impact on the local community.  The precise definition of a key decision adopted by Tower Hamlets is 

contained in Article 13.03 of the Constitution. 
 
The Forward Plan also includes Budget and Policy Framework items. A schedule of these Budget and Policy Framework Items with 
programmed dates of submission to Cabinet and Council is attached as Appendix A to this document. Budget and Policy Framework 
Items are those items (listed in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution) that require adoption by the full Council following formal 
consideration by the Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee.    
 
The Forward Plan is formally published on a monthly basis and contains details of the key decisions to be made Executive for the four 
month period following its publication, the body making the decision, the date the decision is due to be made, who is going to be 
consulted, background information and how representations can be made. In addition to the formal publication, the Forward Plan is 
also updated after each meeting of the Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny Committee (if matters have been called-in). The updated 
versions of the Forward Plan are available for inspection on the Tower Hamlets Council website and/or Intranet.  
 
This does not prevent further issues, which are not identified in the Forward Plan, from being added to the agendas of meetings 
during the period.   If these matters are Key Decisions they will be formally published on the Tower Hamlets website and/or Intranet.   
 
The most effective way for the public to make their views known about the issues listed in the Forward Plan is to examine the 
consultation column of the Forward Plan, and/or contact the report author or Cabinet Lead Member as soon as possible, and no later 
than 10 working days before the decision is expected to be taken. 
 
You can also view the Council’s Consultation Calendar, which lists all the issues on which the Council and its partners are consulting. 
 

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/consultation 

 

P
age 237



 

4 

You can make contact by: 
 
Ø  Email to the address shown in the Forward Plan 
 
Ø  Telephoning the extension shown in the Forward Plan 
 
Ø  By writing to the officer at: 
 

c/o Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, 
London, 
E14 2BG 

 
Date next Forward Plan Published 15th July 2011 
 
You can also view the Forward Plan online. 
 
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 
You can also inspect it, free of charge, at Libraries, Idea Stores, One Stop Shops and Council offices. 
 
 
For any additional information or advice about the Forward Plan, contact Louise Fleming on Tel. No. 020 7364 4878 or by email at 
louise.fleming@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

P
age 238



 

5 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 6 July 2011 

 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

1Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
1/11 

 
Planning 

Obligations 
Supplementary 

Planning Document 
(SPD) 2011. 

 
 
 
 

Approval of draft SPD 
for statutory public 

consultation. 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Internal consultation with 

relevant directorates. 
 
 

Document distributed to 
relevant parties and 3 

weeks comment window 
offered. Comments 

reported on and draft 
document amended 

accordingly. 
 

 
Yes 

 
 

EqIA will be 
submitted as an 
appendix to the 
Cabinet Report. 

 

 
Councillor Rabina 

Khan, Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

cllr.rabina.khan@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Owen Whalley,  Head 
of Planning and 
Building Control 

owen.whalley@towerha
mlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext:5313 

 
The Draft 

SPD will be 
an 

appendix to 
the Cabinet 

Report. 
 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 239



 

6 

 
2Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
2/11 Public Realm 

Contracts Update 
Report 

 
 

Note the medium term 
contracting approach 
for Waste and other 

Public Realm services 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Consultation is being 
carried out with other 
Council departments. 

 
 

The consultation 
activities identified 

above will be 
completed by the end 

of June 2011. 
 

 
No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiona Heyland, Head of 
Waste Strategy, Policy 

and Procurement 
fiona.heyland@towerha

mlets,gov,uk 
 
 

Ext 6838 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 240



 

7 

 
3Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
3/11 

 
Victoria Park Live 

Site 2012 
 
 
 

To sign a contract 
with Live Nation to 
deliver the Live Site 
programme in 2012 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Key partners include 

LOCOG and the GLA.  
The Live Site has 

been regularly 
discussed at  various 
cross service groups 
including the Olympic 

Board and the 
Olympic Operations 

Group, the latter 
whose membership 

includes external 
agencies such as the 
Met Police and NHS. 

 
Public consultation 
will take place later 

this year as part of the 
Licensing process and 
also planning process 

should planning 
consent be required. 

 

 
 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Heather Bonfield, 
Interim Head of Culture 
heather.bonfield@tower

hamlets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 1667 

 
Background 

briefing. 
 

Contract 
along with 

appendices 
regarding 
conditions 

around use of 
the park, risk 
assessments 

etc 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 241



 

8 

 
4Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
4/11 

 
Independent Audit 

Of Leasehold 
Service Charges – 

Final Report 
 
 
 
 

To agree the report 
and associated action 

plan. 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Leasehold Audit 
Project Steering 

Group – via Reports 
and meetings, this 

includes Tower 
Hamlets Leasehold 

Association members, 
independent 

leaseholders, Tower 
Hamlets Homes board 

members and other 
independent members 

 
 

Yes 

 
No 

 
Councillor Rabina 

Khan, Cabinet Member 
for Housing 

cllr.rabina.khan@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Jackie Odunoye, Head 
of Strategy, Innovation 

& Sustainability 
jackie.odunoye@towerh

amlets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 7522 

 
Independent 

Audit Of 
Leasehold 

Service 
Charges – 

Final Report 
& Associated 
Comments 

Independent 
Audit Of 

Leasehold 
Service 

Charges – 
Summary 

Action Plan 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLAA GREAT PLAA GREAT PLAA GREAT PLACE TO LIVECE TO LIVECE TO LIVECE TO LIVE 

P
age 242



 

9 

 
5Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
5/11 

 
Maximising Income 

from Advertising 
Opportunities – 
Preston’s Road 

Roundabout 
 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Directorates 

 
 
 

The report will be 
circulated prior to final 

draft being issued. 
 

 
No 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury,  Cabinet 
Member for Resources 
cllr.alibor.choudhhury@

towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Toks Osibogun, Head 
of Corporate Property 

Services 
toks.osibogun@towerh

amlets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4085 

 
N/A 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 243



 

10 

 
6Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
6/11 

 
Poplar Baths 

 
 
 

To proceed with 
option one for the 

regeneration of the 
baths as the way 
forward and to 

provide the basis for 
the procurement brief. 

 
Determine which 

route for procurement 
represents the 
preferred way 

forward. 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Consultation with local 
residents/designers/T

HH/other 
Directorates/HCA 

 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aman Dalvi, Corporate 
Director, Development 

and Renewal 
aman.dalvi@towerhaml

ets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4247 

 
Tender 

Documentati
on 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 244



 

11 

 
7Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
7/11 

 
Haileybury Youth 

Facility 
 
 

Agree whether to 
develop the initiative 

 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Consultation with local 
residents/designers/T

HH/other 
Directorates/HCA 

 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aman Dalvi, Corporate 
Director, Development 

and Renewal 
aman.dalvi@towerhaml

ets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4247 

 
Consultation 

with local 
residents/des
igners/THH/o

ther 
Directorates/

HCA 
 
 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 245



 

12 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 6 July 2011 

 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

8Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
8/11 

 
Update on 
Building 

Schools for the 
Future 

Programme 
and 

acceptance of 
Capital 

Estimates for 
Bow Boys/New 

School,  
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Public Open 

consultations at all 
relevant sites to 

consult on proposed 
developments in 

preparation of planning 
applications 

 
 

 
No 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerhaml
ets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Ann Sutcliffe, Head of 
Building Schools for the 

future 
ann.sutcliffe@towerhamlet

s.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4077 
 

 
LEP stage 2 
submissions 
with Capital 
estimates for 
the Design 

and Build for 
Bow 

Boys/New 
School, 

Beatrice Tate 
School, and 

George 
Greens 
School. 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 246



 

13 

 
9Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
8/11 

 
Beatrice Tate 
School, and 

George Greens 
School. 

Update on 
Spotlight Youth 

Centre at 
Langdon Park 

School. 
 

Cabinet are 
recommended 
to authorise the 

Corporate 
Director of 

Development 
and Renewal 

with Delegated 
Authority to 

enter into the 
Design and 

Build Contracts 
including if 

necessary any 
Early Works 

Agreement and 

 
 

 
Design quality 

Indicators workshops 
at all schools to 

engage whole school 
stakeholders in design 
and build principles. 

 
Presentations to all 
school Governing 

Bodies and Trustees. 
 

Engagement with CSF 
colleagues over 

community access and 
service provision 

 
Facilitated workshop 

sessions with identified 
stakeholders. 

Public information with 
leaflets, drawings and 

face to face 
engagement and 
discussions with 

design team. 
Formal presentations 

with Q & A 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 247



 

14 

 
10Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
8/11 

 
any other 
ancillary 

documents with 
THe LEP on the 

following 
Schools; 

Bow Boys/New 
School; Beatrice 

Tate School; 
George Greens 

School 
 

Authorise the 
Corporate 
Director of 

Development 
and Renewal in 
consultation with 

the Assistant 
Chief Executive 
(Legal Services) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 248



 

15 

 
11Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
8/11 

 
to grant a 

Development 
Agreement 

incorporating 
any documents 
including a 21 
year + 1 day 
Lease for the 
provision of a 
Youth Centre 

Facility. 
 

Authorise the 
Corporate 
Director of 

Development 
and Renewal in 
consultation with 

the Assistant 
Chief Executive 
(Legal Services) 
to negotiate and 

conclude with 
Poplar HARCA, 
Tower Hamlets 
Schools Limited 
(THSL) and the 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 249



 

16 

 
12Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
8/11 

 
THe LEP all 
necessary 

certificates/cons
ents/documents/

contracts 
ancillary or 

incidental to the 
above subject to 
final approval of 

such 
certificates/cons
ents/documents/
contracts by the 
Assistant Chief 

Executive (Legal 
Services). 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 250



 

17 

 
13Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
9/11 

 
Update on 

Spotlight Youth 
Centre at 

Langdon Park 
School. 

 
 

Authorise the 
Corporate 
Director of 

Development 
and Renewal in 
consultation with 

the Assistant 
Chief Executive 
(Legal Services)  

 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Public Open 

consultations at all 
relevant sites to 

consult on proposed 
developments in 

preparation of planning 
applications 

 
Design quality 

Indicators workshops 
at all schools to 

engage whole school 
stakeholders in design 
and build principles. 

 
Presentations to all 
school Governing 

Bodies and Trustees. 
 

Engagement with CSF 
colleagues over 

community access and 
service provision 

 
 

 
No 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerhaml
ets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ann Sutcliffe, Head of 
Building Schools for the 

Future 
ann.sutcliffe@towerhamlet

s.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4077 

 
Project Files 

 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 251



 

18 

 
14Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
9/11 

 
to grant a 

Development 
Agreement 

incorporating 
any documents 
including a 21 
year + 1 day 
Lease for the 
provision of a 
Youth Centre 

Facility at 
Langdon Park 

School. 
 

Authorise the 
Corporate 
Director of 

Development 
and Renewal in 
consultation with 

the Assistant 
Chief Executive 
(Legal Services) 

 
 

 
Facilitated workshop 

sessions with identified 
stakeholders. 

Public information with 
leaflets, drawings and 

face to face 
engagement and 
discussions with 

design team. 
Formal presentations 

with Q & A 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 252



 

19 

 
15Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
9/11 

 
to negotiate and 

conclude with 
Poplar HARCA, 
Tower Hamlets 
Schools Limited 
(THSL) and the 

THe LEP all 
necessary 

certificates/cons
ents/documents/

contracts 
ancillary or 

incidental to the 
above subject to 
final approval of 

such 
certificates/cons
ents/documents/
contracts by the 
Assistant Chief 

Executive (Legal 
Services). 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUA PROSPEROUS COMMUA PROSPEROUS COMMUA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYNITYNITYNITY 

P
age 253



 

20 

 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 6 July 2011 

 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYUNITYUNITYUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

16Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
10/11 

 
Responsible 

Drinking 
Borough 

 
 

Agree that the 
proposed 

implementation of 
a Responsible 

Drinking Borough 
(RDB) may 
proceed. 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
 
 

Council 
13/07/11 

 
Consultation has already 

taken place which 
exceeds legal 

requirements for 
implementing 

Designated Public Place 
Orders.  

 

 
Yes 

 
 

Completed 
Thursday 26th 

May 
 
 

 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed, 

Deputy Mayor 
cllr.ohid.ahmed@towerham

lets.gov.uk 
 
 

Stephen Halsey, Corporate 
Director – CLC 

stepehn.halsey@towerham
lets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 3220 

 
Responsible 

Drinking 
Borough 

Equalities 
Impact 

Assessment 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 254



 

21 

 
17Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 

10/11 

 
Note that the 

proposed RDB 
model will 

provide access to 
advice and 
support for 

problem drinkers. 
 

 
 

 
The following groups 
have been consulted: 

Residents 
Key Partners through 
the Community Safety 

Partnership 
Licensees and licensed 

premises owners 
Landowners (inc. places 

of worship, Canary 
Wharf Group and 

Housing Associations) 
 

Registered Social 
Landlords 

Neighbouring boroughs 
and their Police Borough 

Commanders 
NHS 
GPs 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 255



 

22 

 
18Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
10/11 

 
 

 
 

 
LBTH Drug and Alcohol 

Action Team 
LBTH Enforcement 

Officers 
Substance Misuse 

Services 
Third Sector groups 

including Faith groups, 
Hostels, Charities, 
Tenant Resident 

Associations, Safer 
Neighbourhood Panels 

and Neighbourhood 
Watches 

 
The consultation has 

been co-ordinated by a 
dedicated project board 
made up of officers from 

Community Safety, 
Corporate 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 256



 

23 

 
19Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
10/11 

 
 

 
 

 
Communications 

(Communication Lead 
and Consultation and 
Involvement Advisor) 
and Legal Services. It 

was in line with national 
best practice for a period 

of 6 weeks and went 
beyond the statutory 

requirements on 
consultation for 

Designate Public Place 
Orders from the Home 

Office. 
 

Consultation letters were 
sent out, information & 
consultation roadshows 
were held in each paired 

LAP, a dedicated 
webpage was set up 

giving further information 
and inviting comments. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 257



 

24 

 
20Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
10/11 

 
 

 
 

 
A presentation was 
given at the Hostels 

Forum as well as direct 
engagement by the 

Drugs Outreach Team 
and THEOs with street 
drinkers and affected 

residents during targeted 
reassurance patrols. The 

consultation was 
promoted in the form of 
press releases, a half 
page advertisement in 
East End Life and 48 

posters across the 
borough. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 258



 

25 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 6 July 2011 

 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

21Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

       

 

                                                 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 259



 

26 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 6 July 2011 

 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 

 
22Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
11/11 

 
Performance and 
Corporate Budget 
Monitoring – Year 

End 
 
 
 

To note and agree 
the actions in the 

report 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
Directorates 

 
 
 

Directorates 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury,  Cabinet 
Member for Resources 

cllr.alibor.choudhhury@t
owerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Alan Finch, Service 
Head Corporate Finance 
Aalan.finch@towerhamle

ts.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4915 

 
Files held by 
Directorates 

and Corporate 
Finance (4th 

Floor, Mulberry 
Place) 

 

 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

P
age 260



 

27 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Council – 13 July 2011 

 
 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period 

 
23Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
12/11 

 
Draft Tower 

Hamlets 
Community 

Plan 
 
 
 

Cabinet to 
recommend the 

Community 
Plan to full 
Council for 
approval 

 
Cabinet 
08/06/11 

 
 
 

Council 
13/07/11 

 
Extensive consultation 

has taken place to inform 
the draft Community 
Plan. This includes 

consultation with local 
people, voluntary and 

community 
organisations, 

businesses and key 
partner organisations to 
develop the objectives of 

the Plan.  
 

 
An EqIA on the 

Community Plan 
draft has been 

conducted by the 
Council’s Scrutiny 

and Equalities 
Team. 

 
 

24th January 2011 
 

 
Mayor Lutfur Rahman 

mayor@towerhamlets.go
v.uk 

 
 
 
 

Kevin Kewin, Deputy 
Service Head Strategy 

and Performance 
kevin/kewin@towerhaml

ets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4075 

 
Background 

paper on 
process for 

refreshing the 
Community 

Plan 

 

                                                 
 

P
age 261



 

28 

 
24Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
12/11 

 
 

 
 

 
A formal public 

consultation on the draft 
Community Plan is also 
scheduled to take place 

in Feb/March 2011. 
 

The Partnership’s 
Consultation and 

Improvement Team has 
led and provided advice 
on consultation activities 
for the Community Plan. 

For the first stage of 
consultation this included 

community events for 
residents, market stalls, 

an online survey, 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 
 

P
age 262



 

29 

 
25Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
12/11 

 
 

 
 

 
discussions with 

equalities groups in the 
borough, workshops with 
key partners, discussion 
at Partnership meetings 
and Members’ seminar. 

 
 

Consultation planned on 
the draft Community Plan 
includes making the draft 
available on the Tower 

Hamlets Partnership and 
Council for Voluntary 

Services websites 
 

A copy of the draft will 
also be circulated to 

community groups, local 
businesses, partners and 

stakeholders for their 
comments and feedback. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 
 

P
age 263



 

30 

 
26Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
13/11 

 
Responsible 

Drinking 
Borough 

 
 

Agree that the 
proposed 

implementation of 
a Responsible 

Drinking Borough 
(RDB) may 
proceed. 

 
Note that the 

proposed RDB 
model will 

provide access to 
advice and 
support for 

problem drinkers. 
 

 
Cabinet 
06/07/11 

 
 
 

Council 
13/07/11 

 
Consultation has already 

taken place which 
exceeds legal 

requirements for 
implementing 

Designated Public Place 
Orders. The following 

groups have been 
consulted: 
Residents 

Key Partners through 
the Community Safety 

Partnership 
Licensees and licensed 

premises owners 
Landowners (inc. places 

of worship, Canary 
Wharf Group and 

Housing Associations) 
 

 
Yes 

 
 

Completed 
Thursday 26th 

May 
 
 

 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed, 

Deputy Mayor 
cllr.ohid.ahmed@towerham

lets.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Stephen Halsey, Corporate 
Director – CLC 

stepehn.halsey@towerham
lets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 3220 

 
Responsible 

Drinking 
Borough 

Equalities 
Impact 

Assessment 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 264



 

31 

 
27Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
13/11 

 
 

 
 

 
Registered Social 

Landlords 
Neighbouring boroughs 
and their Police Borough 

Commanders 
NHS 
GPs 

LBTH Drug and Alcohol 
Action Team 

LBTH Enforcement 
Officers 

Substance Misuse 
Services 

Third Sector groups 
including Faith groups, 

Hostels, Charities, 
Tenant Resident 

Associations, Safer 
Neighbourhood Panels 

and Neighbourhood 
Watches 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAA SAA SAA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 265



 

32 

 
28Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
13/11 

 
 

 
 

 
The consultation has 

been co-ordinated by a 
dedicated project board 
made up of officers from 

Community Safety, 
Corporate 

Communications 
(Communication Lead 
and Consultation and 
Involvement Advisor) 
and Legal Services. It 

was in line with national 
best practice for a period 

of 6 weeks and went 
beyond the statutory 

requirements on 
consultation for 

Designate Public Place 
Orders from the Home 

Office. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 266



 

33 

 
29Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
13/11 

 
 

 
 

 
Consultation letters were 
sent out, information & 
consultation roadshows 
were held in each paired 

LAP, a dedicated 
webpage was set up 

giving further information 
and inviting comments. 

A presentation was 
given at the Hostels 

Forum as well as direct 
engagement by the 

Drugs Outreach Team 
and THEOs with street 
drinkers and affected 

residents during targeted 
reassurance patrols. The 

consultation was 
promoted in the form of 
press releases, a half 
page advertisement in 
East End Life and 48 

posters across the 
borough. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 267



 

34 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 3 August 2011 

 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

30Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
14/11 

 
The Limehouse Cut 
Conservation Area 

 
 
 

Report setting out the 
possible designation 
of the Limehouse Cut 

Conservation Area 
 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Before the decision is made 
key stakeholders and local 
residents will be consulted 
as will relevant colleagues 

 
The public consultation will 

take place over the six 
week period 18th April to the 
29th May.  A public meeting 

is to be held on the 25th 
May.   

 
An Equality 

Impact 
Assessment 
will not be 
required.  

Conservation 
Area status is 

dependant 
upon the 

character of 
the historic 

environment 
rather upon 

the 
community 

which inhabits 
it 

 
Councillor Rabina 

Khan, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
cllr.rabina.khan@tow

erhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 

Mark Hutton, Team 
Leader (Development 

Design and 
Conservation) 

mark.hutton@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 5372 

 
The 

Limehouse 
Cut 

Conservatio
n Area 

History Files 
1, 2, 3, 4. 

 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 268



 

35 

 
31Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
14/11 

 
 

 
 

 
The draft conservation area 

character appraisal has 
been put on the Councils 

website and local residents 
and stakeholders have 

been advised by letter of its 
availability. The advice of 
the Community Planning 
and Liaison Officer has 

been sought. 

 
Thus a 

Conservation 
Area has a 

neutral effect on 
the community 

living there. 
 

 

 
 

 
Tower 

Hamlets 
Website: 

www.towerh
amlets.gov.

uk 
 

There is 
also other 
information 
held which 
is only held 
electronicall

y 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 269



 

36 

 
32Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
15/11 

 
Introduction of a 
Permit Transfer 

Scheme 
 
 

For noting 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
D&R, Legal, Communities 
Localities & Culture and 

Scrutiny & Equalities 
 
 
 

Internal officer meetings 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Rabina 

Khan, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
cllr.rabina.khan@tow

erhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Owen Whalley, 
Service Head, 

Planning & Building 
Control 

owen.whalley@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 5314 

 
N/A 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 270



 

37 

 
33Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
16/11 

 
St. George’s Pools 

Refurbishment 
 
 
 

Endorsement of 
proposed 

refurbishment project 
for St George’s Pools 

 
 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Proposals developed in full 

consultation with 
Greenwich Leisure Ltd 

(GLL) 
 
 
 
 

Project Board and ongoing 
dialogue 

 

 
No (Any impact 

on customers will 
be temporary 

whilst the works 
are implemented) 

 

 
Councillor Rania 
Khan, Cabinet 

Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towe
rhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Heather Bonfield, 
Interim Head of 

Culture 
heather.bonfield@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 1667 

 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 271



 

38 

 
34Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
17/11 

 
Bromley-by-Bow 

Masterplan 
Supplementary 

Planning Document 
(SPD) 

 
 
 

To approve the draft 
Bromley-by-Bow 
Masterplan SPD, 
currently under 

review, ready for 
statutory public 
consultation (six 

weeks). 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
The London Thames 

Gateway Development 
Corporation (LTGDC) and 
the London Development 

Agency (LDA) are key 
project partners, and have 

contributed a total of 
£45,000 towards the 

production of the SPD.  
Decisions at the project 

level will be made in 
consistent consultation with 
these agencies (whilst they 

exist). 

 
A full EqIA was 
undertaken for 
the Council’s 
Core Strategy 
2025 (Local 

Development 
Framework). As 

such, in 
accordance with 
the Corporate 
Guidance on 

EqIA  
 

 
Councillor Rabina 

Khan, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
cllr.rabina.khan@tow

erhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Owen Whalley,  
Head of Planning and 

Building Control 
owen.whalley@tower

hamlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext:5313 

 
Tower 

Hamlets 
Core 

Strategy 
2025 (Sept 

2010) 
 

Bromley-by-
Bow Land 
Use and 
Design 
Brief, 

Interim 
Planning 
Guidance 

(2009) 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 272



 

39 

 
35Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
17/11 

 
 

 
 

 
LBTH officers have carried 
out extensive informal and 
statutory consultation with 

the community, public 
sector agencies and 

landowners on the previous 
draft Bromley-by-Bow 

Masterplan in 2006/7, and 
the Bromley-by-Bow Land 
Use and Design Brief in 

2008. The latter was 
approved as Interim 

Planning Guidance (IPG). 
These consultations 

influenced the evolution of 
these documents, which in 

turn will inform the 
production of the SPD. 

 

 
assessments, the 
Masterplan SPD 
will not require a 
full EqIA, but will 

be subject to a an 
EqIA screening 

assessment. 
 
 

An EqIA 
screening 

assessment will 
be undertaken 
prior to Cabinet 

and will be 
included within 

the Cabinet 
Report. 

 

 
 

 
Draft 

Bromley-by-
Bow 

Masterplan 
2007 (draft 

2007) 
 

 
 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 273



 

40 

 
36Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
17/11 

 
 

 
 

 
With the current iteration of 

the Bromley-by-Bow 
Masterplan SPD, LBTH 

officers have also 
undertaken informal 

consultation with key public 
sector agencies, 

landowners and other 
relevant Council 

departments over the last 
few months, to feed into the 
evolution of the document. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 274



 

41 

 
37Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
17/11 

 
 

 
 

 
A six week period of 

statutory public consultation 
will be undertaken in 
June/July 2011. The 

precise details of the public 
consultation will be 

developed and finalised 
with colleagues from the 

Participation and 
Engagement Team and 

D&R’s Community Planning 
and Liaison Officer, prior to 
Cabinet and a summary of 
the consultation aspirations 
will be included within the 

Cabinet Report. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A GRA GRA GRA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEEAT PLACE TO LIVEEAT PLACE TO LIVEEAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 275



 

42 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 3 August 2011 

 

A A A A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYPROSPEROUS COMMUNITYPROSPEROUS COMMUNITYPROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

38Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What supporting 
documents or 

other information 
will be available? 

 
18/11 

 
Consultation 

on the addition 
of sixth form 

provision in the 
East of Tower 

Hamlets 
delivered 
through a 

consortium of 
four schools 

 
Cabinet is asked 

to agree the 
decision for 

additional sixth 
form provision in  

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
The schools informally 
consulted the following 

on the East 
Collaborative: 
The principal 

stakeholders – the 
governing bodies, 

current pupils and their 
parents and carers and 

all teaching and 
support staff of the four 

schools, through 
meetings and surveys 

 
 

 
No 

 
Councillor Oliur 

Rahman, Cabinet 
Member for 

Children’s Services 
cllr.oliur.rahman@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 

Anne Canning, 
Service Head, 
Learning and 
Achievement 

anne.canning@tower
hamlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 3114 

 
Consultation 

document on the 
addition of sixth 
form provision in 
the East of Tower 

Hamlets which 
sets out the 

reasoning behind 
the decision to re-
designate the four 
schools to 11-18 

status. 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 276



 

43 

 
39Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What supporting 
documents or 

other information 
will be available? 

 
18/11 

 
the East of 

Tower Hamlets 
delivered 
through a 

consortium of 
four schools: 

 
Bow School, 

Langdon Park 
school, St Paul’s 

Way Trust 
School and 

Stepney Green 
School (the East 
Collaborative). 

 

 
 

 
The partnership 

stakeholders – the 
Tower Hamlets family 
of schools and Tower 

Hamlets Local 
Authority. 

 
Following this, formal 
consultation is being 

carried out by the local 
authority and the 
schools. A list of 

stakeholders consulted 
is provided in Appendix 

1 of the Consultation 
document. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 277



 

44 

 
40Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
18/11 

 
 

 
 

 
The consultation 

document is being sent 
to stakeholders by 

email, and 
stakeholders are 

invited to submit their 
views by email. 

 
Depending on the 

results of the 
consultation, a 

Statutory Notice will be 
published, with 4 

weeks for 
representations to be 

given. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 278



 

45 

 
41Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
19/11 

 
Re-

commissioning 
of Youth 
Services 

Contracts 
 
 
 
 

To re-tender the 
youth service 

contracts 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Consultation will be 
taken as part of the 

tendering process, with 
young people, other 

directorates, schools, 
third sector, and the 

police 
 
 
 
 

 
An EqIA will be 

needed as part of 
the tendering 

process, but not 
at this stage. 

 
 

Before tendering 
 

 
Councillor Oliur Rahman, 

Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services 

cllr.oliur.rahman@towerha
mlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Mary Durkin, Service Head 
of Youth & Community 

mary.durkin@towerhamlet
s.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 4373 

 
None 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 279



 

46 

 
42Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
20/11 

 

 
Enterprise 
Strategy 

 
 
 

Approval 
 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
 

 
 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerhaml
ets.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Nick Smales,  Service 
Head – 2012 Olympic 

Paralympic Games 
nick.smales@towerhamlet

s.gov.uk 
 

 
Employment 

and Enterprise 
Strategies 

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 280



 

47 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 3 August 2011 

 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

43Forwar
d Plan 

No 

Title of Report 
and outline of decision 

sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 

out and if so the 
result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
21/11 

 
Sex Encounter 

Establishments – Adoption 
of Legislation – Approval 
of Consultation Process 

 
 

Approve adoption of 
legislation that regulates 

Sexual Encounter 
Establishments – Finalise  
and approve consultation 

proposals 
 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Expansive 

consultation to 
Councillors. 

relevant 
Directorates, 

Businesses, Trade 
organisations, 

known interested 
parties, local 

residents, Police, 
faith organisations 

 
Targeted mail shot, 

email, website, 
East End Life 

 
 

 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed, 

Deputy Mayor 
cllr.ohid.ahmed@towerha

mlets.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Colin Perrins, Head of TS 
and EHD Commercial 

colin.perrins@towerhamlet
s.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 6872 

 
Draft Sex 
Encounter 

Establishments 
Policy 
Sex 

Entertainment 
venues – Home 
Office Guidance 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 281



 

48 

 
44Forwar
d Plan 

No 

Title of Report 
and outline of decision 

sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 

out and if so the 
result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
22/11 

 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board arrangements 

 
 
 

Approval of the proposed 
approach 

 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Helen Taylor, Acting 
Corporate Director, 
Adults Health and 

Wellbeing 
Hhelen.taylor@towerha

mlets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 2204 

 
 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 282



 

49 

 Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 3 August 2011 

 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

45Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted before 
decision is made and how 
will this consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried out 

and if so the 
result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
23/11 

 
Mental Health 

Accommodation 
 
 
 

Approval 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
The Strategy has been 
developed under the 
guidance of a Clinical 

Reference Group, involving 
relevant clinicians, and 

mental health and 
Supporting People 

commissioners. The 
Strategy has been 

considered at a seminar 
involving senior executives 

from LBTH, ELFT and 
NHSTH. 

 

 
Yes, and 
attached. 

 

 
Mayor Lutfur 

Rahman 
mayor@towerhamlet

s.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Deborah Cohen, 
Service Head 

Commissioning & 
Strategy 

deborah.cohen@tow
erhamlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 0497 

 
Draft 

Commission
ing Strategy 

for 
Accommoda

tion of 
Working 

Age Adults 
with a 
Mental 
Health 

Problem 
 

Need and 
Capacity  

 

 

                                                 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 283



 

50 

 
46Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted before 
decision is made and how 
will this consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment 
been carried out 

and if so the 
result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 
documents 

or other 
information 

will be 
available? 

 
23/11 

 
 

 
 

 
The process of developing 

the Strategy involved 
establishing the views of 
service users through a 
programme of discovery 

interviews, workshops with a 
broader group of clinicians, 

with supported 
accommodation providers. 

 
 

A consultation plan will be 
tabled. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Assessment 

for 
Accommoda

tion of 
Working 

Age Adults 
with a 
Mental 
Health 

Problem 
(including 

commerciall
y sensitive 
appendix) 

 
EQIA 

 
Consultation 

Plan 

                                                 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 284



 

51 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 3 August 2011 

 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 

 
47Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 

available? 

 
24/11 

 
Contracts 

Forward Plan 
 
 
 

To note and 
agree the 
proposed 

forward plan of 
contracts, 

identify those 
contacts on 

which further 
reports will be 

required. 
 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
CMT, 

Directorates 
 
 
 

Meetings 
 

 
No 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury, Cabinet 
Member for Resources 

cllr.alibor.choudhury@to
werhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Richard Parsons, Service 
Head Procurement 

richard.parsons@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 4608 

 

 
All relevant 

information will be 
contained within the 

Cabinet report. 
 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HONE TOWER HONE TOWER HONE TOWER HAMLETSAMLETSAMLETSAMLETS 

P
age 285



 

52 

 
48Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 

available? 

 
25/11 

 
Financial 
Outlook 
2012/13-
2014/15 

 
 
 

To note and 
agree the 

actions in the 
report 

 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Directorates 

 
 

Meetings 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury, Cabinet 
Member for Resources 

cllr.alibor.choudhhury@t
owerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Alan Finch, Service Head 
Corporate Finance 

alan.finch@towerhamlets
.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 4915 

 
Files held by 

Directorates and 
Corporate Finance 
(4th Floor, Mulberry 

Place) 
 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

P
age 286



 

53 

 
49Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 

available? 

 
26/11 

 
2010/11 

Treasury 
Management 

Outturn 
 
 
 

To note and 
agree the 

actions in the 
report 

 

 
Cabinet 
03/08/11 

 
Directorates 

 
 

Meetings 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury, Cabinet 
Member for Resources 

cllr.alibor.choudhhury@t
owerhamlets.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Alan Finch, Service Head 
Corporate Finance 

alan.finch@towerhamlets
.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 4915 

 
Final accounts 

2010/11 
Treasury 

Benchmarking report 
 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

P
age 287



 

54 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 7 September 2011 

 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

50Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
27/11 

 

 
Marsh Wall East 

Masterplan 
Supplementary 

Planning Document 
(SPD) 

 
 

To approve the Marsh 
Wall East Masterplan 

for statutory public 
consultation of  

 

 
Cabinet 
07/09/11 

 
LBTH officers carried 
out extensive informal 
consultation with the 

community, key public 
sector agencies, 
landowners, and 
relevant Council 

departments through 
regular steering group 

meetings, public 
exhibitions, 

workshops, leaflets, 
and web based 

information. 
 

 
An EqIA was 

undertaken for 
the Council’s 
Core Strategy 
2025 (Local 

Development 
Framework), as 
such the Marsh 

Wall East 
Masterplan SPD 

will not require an 
EqIA. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Owen Whalley, Head of 
Planning & Building 

Control 
owen.whalley@towerha

mlets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 5314 

 
Consultation 

and 
Engagement 
Statement 

 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 288



 

55 

 
51Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
27/11 

 
between four and six 
weeks with a view to 

Cabinet formally 
adopting the Marsh 

Wall East Masterplan 
as a SPD in February 

2012. 

 
 

 
The Lead Member for 
Housing agreed for 

Officers to brief local 
Members of Cubitt 

Town, Blackwall and 
Millwall wards on the 
Masterplan and seek 

advice on how to 
consult local people. 

 
 
 

A four to six week 
period of formal public 

consultation will be 
undertaken in October 

2011. The draft 
Masterplan will be 

presented to Cabinet 
in September 2011 for 

approval to consult 
the public. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 289



 

56 

 
52Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision 
making Body 
and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
27/11 

 
 

 
 

 
The precise details of 
the public consultation 
will be worked up with 
colleagues from the 

Consultation & 
Involvement Team 

(Communities 
Localities and Culture 

Directorate) and 
Community and 

Participation 
Involvement Officer 
(Development and 

Renewal Directorate) 
prior to Cabinet and a 

summary of the 
planned consultation 
will be included within 
the Cabinet Report. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 290



 

57 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 7 September 2011 

 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

53Forwar
d Plan 

No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an 
Equality Impact 

Assessment 
been carried 
out and if so 
the result of 

this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

       

 

                                                 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 291



 

58 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 7 September 2011 

 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

54Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of decision 

sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 
made and how will 

this consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact 

Assessment been 
carried out and if 
so the result of 

this Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 292



 

59 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 7 September 2011 

 

A HEALTHY COMMA HEALTHY COMMA HEALTHY COMMA HEALTHY COMMUNITYUNITYUNITYUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

55Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 
decision is made 
and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What supporting 
documents or other 
information will be 

available? 

       

 

                                                 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY    

    

 

P
age 293



 

60 

 Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 7 September 2011 

 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 

 
56Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
28/11 

 
Strategic 

Performance and 
Corporate Budget 

Monitoring as at 30 
June (Quarterly 

report) 
 
 
 
 

To note and agree 
the actions in the 

report 
 

 
Cabinet 
07/09/11 

 
Directorates 

 
 
 
 

Meetings 
 

 
N/A 

 
Councillor Alibor 

Choudhury, Cabinet 
Member for Resources 
cllr.alibor.choudhhury@

towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Alan Finch, Service 
Head Corporate 

Finance 
alan.finch@towerhamle

ts.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 4915 

 
Files held by 
Directorates 

and Corporate 
Finance (4th 

Floor, Mulberry 
Place) 

 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

P
age 294



 

61 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Council – 14 September 2011 

 

 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 

 
57Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is 

made and how will this 
consultation take 

place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 

 
 

      

 

                                                 
 

P
age 295



 

62 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 5 October 2011 

 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

58Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision 
sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before  

decision is made and 
how will this consultation 

take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
29/11 

 
Open Space 

Strategy 2011 
 
 
 
 

Adoption of 
strategy 

 
 

 
Cabinet 
05/10/11 

 
Internal consultation 

throughout 
development process – 
D&R Strategic Planning, 
Sport & Physical Activity 
Service, Clean & Green 
Service, Arts & Events 

Service 
 

 
Yes 

 
Prior to Cabinet 

meeting 
 

 
Councillor Rania Khan, 

Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration 

cllr.rania.khan@towerh
amlets.gov.uk 

 
 

Jackie Cox 

Performance Manager 
Strategy & Resources 

Communities, 
Localities & Culture 

jackie.cox@towerhaml
ets.gov.uk 

 
Ext: 6955 

 

 
N/A 

 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 296



 

63 

 
59Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision 
sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before  

decision is made and 
how will this consultation 

take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

 
29/11 

 
 

 
 

 
External resident and 

stakeholder 
consultation – to be 

carried out prior to 
adoption in summer 2011 

through web-based 
consultation and 

attendance at events in 
parks. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                 

A GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVEA GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

P
age 297



 

64 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 5 October 2011 

 

A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY 
 

KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 
3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 

 
60Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be 
consulted before 

decision is made and 
how will this 

consultation take 
place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information will 
be available? 

       

 

                                                 

A PROA PROA PROA PROSPEROUS COMMUNITYSPEROUS COMMUNITYSPEROUS COMMUNITYSPEROUS COMMUNITY 

P
age 298



 

65 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 5 October 2011 

 

A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period) 
 

61Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date 

that decision will 
be made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 
been carried out and 
if so the result of this 

Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or 

additional 
information. 

What supporting 
documents or 

other information 
will be available? 

       

 

                                                 

A  SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA  SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA  SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITYA  SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY 

P
age 299



 

66 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 5 October 2011 

 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period 
 

62Forwar
d Plan 

No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 

 
30/11 

 
Domiciliary Care 
Contract Award 

 
 
 

Contract award 
decision 

 
Cabinet 
05/10/11 

 
Bidders conferences will 

be undertaken at key 
points through the 

procurement process. 
These will provide 

opportunities for potential 
bidders to seek 

clarification on any 
aspect of the 

procurement process, 
and will be supported by 

the Corporate 
Procurement Team to 
ensure the Council’s 

interests are 
safeguarded. 

 

 
Yes 

 
 

A screening 
assessment has 
been undertaken, 

and full 
assessment will be 
completed by 30 

June 2011, prior to 
finalisation of the 

Service 
Specification. 

 

 
Mayor Lutfur Rahman 

mayor@towerhamlets.go
v.uk 

 
 
 

Helen Taylor, Interim 
Corporate Director – 

AHWB 
helen.taylor@towerhaml

ets.gov.uk 
 

Ext: 2204 

 
Tender 

documents, 
including 
Method 

Statement 
and 

evaluation 
criteria. 
Service 

Specification 

 

                                                 

A HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITYA HEALTHY COMMUNITY 

P
age 300



 

67 

Forward Plan July 2011 – October 2011 
 

Cabinet – 5 October 2011 

 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

 
KEY: 1/ For Decision  2/ Decision made (subject to call-in process) 

3/ Item called–in   4/ Decision confirmed (post call-in period 
 

63Forward 
Plan No 

Title of Report 
and outline of 

decision sought 

Decision making 
Body and date that 

decision will be 
made. 

Who will be consulted 
before decision is made 

and how will this 
consultation take place? 

Has an Equality 
Impact Assessment 

been carried out 
and if so the result 

of this 
Assessment? 

Contact details for 
comments or additional 

information. 

What 
supporting 

documents or 
other 

information 
will be 

available? 
       

 

 

 

 

                                                 

ONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETSONE TOWER HAMLETS 

P
age 301



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Committee 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Date 
 
5 July 2011 

Classification 
 

Unrestricted 

 

Report 
No. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
No. 
 
 

Report of:  
Michael Keating, Service Head One Tower 
Hamlets 
 
Originating Officer: 
Lorna Spence, Research Officer, Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 

Title:  
Annual Residents’ Survey Results 
 
Ward(s) affected:  

All  

 

 

1. Summary 

 
1.1 This report presents the results from the 2010-11 Tower Hamlets 

Annual Residents’ Survey. Based on face to face interviews, the survey 
explores the views of 1,150 residents, representative of the borough’s 
population, about the Council, services and the local area. 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That Overview and Scrutiny Committee note the Annual 
Residents’ Survey results and use it to inform planning for the 
2011-12 work programme. 

Agenda Item 7.3

Page 303



Page 304

This page is intentionally left blank



TITLE AUTHOR DATE

Annual Residents 
Survey 2010-11 

Lorna Spence / 
Kevin Kewin, Strategy and 

Performance

5th July 2011 

1. OVERVIEW

1.1 The attached research briefing presents the results from the 2010-11 Tower 
Hamlets Annual Residents Survey. Based on face to face interviews, the 
survey explores the views of 1,150 residents, representative of the 
borough’s population, about the Council, services and the local area.  

1.2 The results show a continued improvement in relation to the image of the 
Council and the views of Tower Hamlets residents compare favourably to 
those elsewhere. Whilst the Council continues to have some service ratings 
lower than the London average, overall the borough’s position relative to 
London has shown some improvement over the year.

1.3  Significantly, the findings also provide an indicator of the changed economic 
context and its impact on local communities. Concern over rising prices and 
interest rates, and lack of jobs, are all at their highest level since the survey 
began in 1998/99. The fieldwork for the most recent survey took place in 
January and February 2011; prior to the implementation of many areas of 
the government’s deficit reduction strategy, including the reduction to the 
Council’s 2011/12 budget. It will be important therefore to reflect on the 
impact of this in the longer term. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the findings of this 
year’s Annual Residents Survey and consider how they might inform its 
work programme.

3. SUMMARY

3.1 A brief summary of the headline results - as they relate to the Council’s key 
priorities - is provided below. The attached research briefing provides a 
more detailed analysis of the findings.  

Crime and ASB 
3.2 Crime remains the top personal concern for borough residents but 

perceptions are improving:
! 42 per cent of residents say crime is one of their top three concerns, just 

above the London average (38 per cent).  
! Concern over crime has fallen by five percentage points over the last 

year. This is part of longer term trend of improvement; levels of concern 
over crime have been falling over the last four years - in both Tower 
Hamlets and London.

1Page 305



 Figure 1 Top concerns of residents, Tower Hamlets, 2010-11 

8

8

9

9

11

13

13

14

16

17

18

22

23

30

42

Poor public transport

Number of homeless people

Lack of recreational facilities

Not enough done for the elderly

Pollution

Standard of education

Traffic congestion

Quality of health service

Level of Council Tax

Rising prices / interest rates

Lack of provision for young people

Affordable housing

Litter/dirt in streets

Lack of jobs

Crime

% of residents (who say the issue
is one of their top 3 personal
concerns)

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010-11

'Which three of these are you personally most concerned about?'

3.3 Views about anti-social behaviour (ASB) problems across the borough 
continue to improve with levels of concern falling across key areas. Three 
areas have shown significant improvement over the year:

! parents not taking enough responsibility for the behaviour of their 
children (-6 points);

! vandalism and graffiti (-5); 
! abandoned or burnt out cars (-4). 

3.4 These improvements are part of a longer term trend and over the last four 
years, concern over most ASB problems has fallen by more than 10 
percentage points. 

Worklessness
3.5 Concern about economic issues has increased markedly this year. Concern 

over ‘lack of jobs’ has increased from 26 to 30 per cent over the year – this 
is the highest level of concern recorded on the survey since it started (in 
1998/9), and well above London-wide levels (23 per cent). This is the 
second most pressing issue for residents after concern over crime.

3.6 Concern over rising prices and interest rates has also seen a dramatic 
increase over the year – doubling from 9 to 17 per cent. This is also the 
highest level ever recorded since the survey began, and levels of concern 
are on a par to those across London.

 Cleanliness and public realm  
3.7 Litter and dirt remains the 3rd most common resident concern. Almost one 

quarter (23 per cent) of borough residents cite ‘litter and dirt in the streets’ 

2Page 306



as one of their top 3 concerns. Levels of concern are similar to the London 
average.

3.8 Views around street cleaning, street lighting, parks and open spaces have 
all remained similar to last year, though over the longer term perceptions 
around these areas have shown strong improvement.

Housing
3.9 The fourth most pressing resident concern is concern over housing. Over 

one in five (22 per cent) residents cite ‘affordable housing’ as one of their 
top 3 personal concerns – a similar level to last year, and the same as the 
London average. 

3.10  User satisfaction ratings for council housing and Housing Benefit services 
are more positive in Tower Hamlets than in London.  
! 48 per cent of those who rented accommodation from the council rate 

council housing as good through to excellent - 10 percentage points 
higher than for London residents generally.

! 63 per cent of Housing Benefit recipients rate the Housing Benefit 
service as good to excellent, also 10 points higher than in London.

  Education and youth provision 
3.11 User satisfaction ratings are relatively high for both nursery and primary 

education. Almost three quarters (74 per cent) of those who use nurseries 
rate the service as good or excellent, and 71 per cent of those using primary 
education rate the services as good or excellent. User satisfaction with 
secondary education is lower (55 per cent). Across all three types of 
education, satisfaction ratings in Tower Hamlets are similar to London-wide 
satisfaction levels. 

3.15 One in eight (13 per cent) residents cite the ‘standard of education’ as one 
of their top 3 personal concerns. Education was not high up on the list of 
residents’ top concerns and ranks 10th highest out of 15 areas. Concern 
over the ‘lack of provision for young people’ was considered more of an 
issue and was a key concern for 18 per cent of residents, and ranked the 5th

highest concern out of 15 areas.

 Image of the council
3.16  Views about the image of the council continue to show improvement this 

year, and the Council is now beginning to move ahead of the London 
average on some of these measures.

3.17 The majority (81 per cent) of residents agree that council staff are friendly 
and polite – this remains – by far - the most positively rated aspect of the 
council’s image, and has seen a significant increase (+6) since last year.
The other area where there has been improvement is the extent to which 
people feel the council is listening to their concerns – up five points on last 
year.

3Page 307



3.19 Tower Hamlets now outperforms London on four aspects of its image:  

- Does a better job than a year ago (+8) 
- Listens to concerns of local residents (+7) 
- Staff are friendly and polite (+5) 
- Responds quickly when asked for help (+5) 

3.20 Overall, 63 per cent of residents say they are satisfied with the way Tower 
Hamlets Council runs things. This is a decrease on last year’s rating of 67 
per cent but still higher than in the previous two years (59 per cent).

 Community concerns  
3.21 While the majority (78 per cent) of residents remain satisfied with their local 

area as a place to live, this is down from last year’s peak of 84 per cent and 
closer to previous levels.  

3.22 Perceptions around cohesion and engagement remain largely unchanged 
from last year, though they are still more positive than in previous years: 

! Three quarters (76 per cent) of residents feel that the local area is a 
place where people from different backgrounds get on well together. 

! 75 per cent are satisfied that people treat each other with respect and 
consideration in the local area. 

! Around half of those surveyed (53 per cent) felt they could influence 
decisions affecting their local area.

3.23 Views about the long-term benefits of the Olympic and Paralympic Games 
for local residents have become less positive over the last year. Two thirds 
of residents (66 per cent) felt that there would be long term benefits from the 
Olympic and Paralympic games for Londoners and those living in the 
surrounding areas, and 57 per cent felt there would be benefits for Tower 
Hamlets residents. Both measures have shown a significant fall since last 
year (-9 and -10 percentage points).   

4Page 308



 Research Briefing 2011-02 
   April 2011 

Annual Residents Survey 2010-11
Summary 
This Briefing summarises the results from the Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010-11 

which explores residents’ views about the council, services and the local area. The survey is based 

on interviews with 1,150 residents who were representative of the borough population.  

This Briefing focuses particularly on changes in perceptions compared to the previous year. 

Appendix B provides historical data back to 1998/99 and this shows a clear trend of improved 

perceptions across most areas.   

! Service satisfaction ratings remain highest for public transport, recycling, refuse collection and 

health services; over two thirds of residents rate these services as good to excellent. Three 

service areas have seen a significant improvement in ratings over the year: public transport 

(+5), parking services (+5) and council housing (+4). For most services (16 of the 22 service 

areas considered), satisfaction ratings are similar to last year’s.  

! Three services have seen a significant fall in satisfaction ratings: social services for adults (-6); 

social services for children and families (-5), and adult education (-4). However, less than five 

per cent of the residents surveyed use these services, so the results reflect general perceptions 

around the quality of such services as opposed to the views of service users.   

! The services which attract the highest user satisfaction ratings are Idea stores/libraries and 

nursery education; around three quarters of users rate these services positively.  Ratings are 

also high for recycling, children’s centres and primary education; 71-72 per cent of users rate 

these services as good through to excellent.   

! While Tower Hamlets continues to have some service ratings lower than the London average, 

overall the borough’s position relative to London has shown improvement over the year. Of the 

21 areas compared: borough ratings are better for two services (council housing and Housing 

Benefit); on a par with London for 13; and lower in the case of six. Last year, ratings were lower 

for 10 services; the four services whose relative position has improved are: recycling, refuse 

collection, parking services and secondary education. 

! Views about the image of the council continue to show improvement and the Council is now 

beginning to move ahead of the London average on some aspects of image; of the 12 image 

statements tested, Tower Hamlets now outperforms London on four aspects of its image and is 

on par with London for the remaining eight. 

! Overall, 63 per cent of residents say they are satisfied with the way Tower Hamlets council runs 

things. This is a decrease on last year’s rating of 67 per cent but still higher than the previous 

two years (59 per cent). 

Page 309



Summary                                             Page 2              

! While the majority (78 per cent) of residents remain satisfied with their local area as a place to 

live, this is down from last year’s peak of 84 per cent and closer to previous levels. 

! Perceptions around cohesion and engagement remain largely unchanged from last year, 

though they are still more positive than in previous years. Three quarters (76 per cent) of 

residents feel that the local area is a place where people from different backgrounds get on 

well together and around half of those surveyed (53 per cent) felt they could influence 

decisions affecting their local area.  

! Crime remains – by far - the top personal concern for borough residents; 42 per cent of 

residents say crime is one of their top three concerns. Positively, concern over crime has 

fallen by five percentage points over the year though levels of concern still remain above the 

London average (38 per cent). 

! Borough residents are also less concerned about the level of council tax (-6) and traffic 

congestion (-3), both significantly down since last year and lower than levels of concern 

across London.   

! Concern over economic issues has increased markedly this year. Concern over lack of jobs 

has increased from 26 to 30 per cent over the year – this highest level of concern recorded on 

the survey since it started (in 1998/9), and above London-wide levels (23 per cent). Concern 

over rising prices and interest rates has increased dramatically, almost doubling (9 to 17 per 

cent). Again, this is the highest level of concern ever recorded on this issue.   

! Views about anti-social behaviour (ASB) problems across the borough continue to improve. 

Three areas have shown significant improvement over the year: parents not taking 

responsibility for the behaviour of their children (-6); vandalism and graffiti (-5); and 

abandoned or burnt out cars (-4). No areas have seen a worsening in perceptions. These 

improvements are part of a longer term trend and over the last four years, concern over most 

ASB problems has fallen by more than 10 percentage points.  

! Almost half (48 per cent) of those surveyed said they agreed that ‘police and other services 

were successfully dealing with crime and ASB issues in their local area’, 18 per cent 

disagreed, and the remaining third were ambivalent (ie they neither agreed nor disagreed, or 

they didn’t know). This is a similar picture to last year.  

! Views about the long-term benefits of the Olympic and Paralympic Games have become less 

positive over the last year.  Two thirds of residents (66 per cent) felt that there would be long 

term benefits from the Olympic and Paralympic games for Londoners and those living in the 

surrounding areas, and 57 per cent felt there would be benefits for Tower Hamlets residents. 

Both measures have shown a significant fall since last year (-9 and -10 percentage points).  

Further information: This Briefing was produced by the Chief Executive’s Strategy and 

Performance team.  Research briefings are designed to improve the use and sharing of data across 

the Partnership. Previous Briefings can be downloaded on the LBTH intranet: 

http://towernet/Intranet/staff_services/business_planning/corporate_policy/corporate_research_briefi

ngs.aspx. For more information, please contact: Lorna Spence (Research officer) on ! 020 7364 

4014.

Page 310



Results                             Page 3              

Introduction  
This Briefing summarises the results from the 2010-11 Tower Hamlets Annual Residents 

Survey which took place in January and February 2011. The Survey of Londoners - 

which is carried out using a similar methodology and by the same contractor (TNS-

BRMB) – provides comparative data for London for key questions. Appendix A provides 

more detail on the survey methodology. 

Views about services: general perceptions of all residents
Figure 1 shows the proportion of residents who rate services as good through to 

excellent. These data capture the views of all residents regardless of whether they use 

the service or not – ie they relate to perceived quality of service delivery. Ratings are 

typically lower for services that are less widely used because these services attract a 

higher percentage of ‘don’t know’ responses.   

Figure 1 Views about services (all residents), Tower Hamlets, 2010-11 

Advice on interpretation of survey data
As the data are based on a sample of the population, it needs to be borne in mind that all 

figures are survey estimates not precise counts or measures. The concept of ‘statistical 

significance’ is used here to highlight those differences that are likely to reflect real changes 

over time (or between groups), as opposed to those which may be simply reflecting sampling 

variability. Green and red arrows are used to denote statistically significant differences.  

All estimates are rounded to the nearest percentage point - after all calculations have been 

performed. For this reason, percentage point changes/differences on tables may not always 

equate exactly to the difference between the two rounded figures presented.

6

5

6

8

6

4

30

5

14

4

25

13

18

3

8

17

15

9

11

10

8

7

22

24

27

29

30

30

30

33

33

34

39

47

50

57

58

60

60

66

68

68

68

72

40 20 0 20 40 60 8

Social services: adults*

Social services: children/families*

Secondary education*

Children's centres*

Adult education*

Nursery education*

Parking services

Housing Benefit

Council housing

Primary education

Road/pavement repairs

Leisure & sports facilities

Policing

Collection of Council Tax

Libraries/idea stores

Parks and open spaces

Street cleaning

Street lighting

Recycling facilities

Refuse collection

Local health services

Public transport

0

% rating service as poor / extremely poor % rating service as good / excellent

* Services used by less 

than 15 per cent of adults 

surveyed.

Source: Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey, 2010-11

Page 311



Results                             Page 4              

Service satisfaction ratings remain highest for public transport, recycling, refuse 

collection and health services; over two thirds of residents rate these services as good to 

excellent. This is a similar picture to last year, though public transport has seen a 

significant rise of five percentage points over the year; this may reflect a positive 

endorsement on the new and improved East London line which opened last Spring.  

Two other services have seen a significant rise in ratings this year: parking services (+5 

points) and council housing (+4). For most services (16 of the 22 service areas 

considered) satisfaction ratings are similar to last year’s.  

Three services have seen a significant fall in satisfaction ratings: social services for 

adults (-6), social services for children and families (-5) and adult education (-4). 

However, fewer than five per cent of residents use these services, so the results reflect 

general perceptions around the quality of these services, as opposed to informed user 

views.  

Appendix table B1 shows long term trends in satisfaction ratings for all services. 

% %

Public transport 72 5 72 1 - 0 -

Recycling facilities 68 3 - 68 -1 - -1 -

Refuse collection 68 2 - 71 0 - -3 -

Local health services 68 4 - 66 0 - 3 -

Street lighting 66 2 - 72 -1 - -6

Parks and open spaces 60 -1 - 67 -3 - -8

Street cleaning 60 -2 - 58 0 - 2 -

Libraries/idea stores 58 -1 - 67 1 - -9

Collection of Council Tax 57 4 - 62 -2 - -5

Policing 50 3 - 56 3 - -6

Leisure & sports facilities 47 0 - 45 -2 - 2 -

Road/pavement repairs 39 1 - 36 -4 - 4 -

Primary education 34 0 - 38 -1 - -4

Housing Benefit 33 0 - 19 -5 14

Council housing 33 4 19 -4 14

Adult education 30 -4 32 -3 - -2 -

Nursery education 30 1 - 29 -1 - 1 -

Parking Services 30 5 30 -3 - 0 -

Children's centres 29 -1 - n/a n/a n/a

Secondary education 27 0 - 29 -6 -2 -

Social services: children/families 24 -5 22 -3 - 2 -

Social services: adults 22 -6 21 -3 - 1 -

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010/11 & Survey of Londoners 2010/11

* All data are rounded to nearest percentage point (post calculations). Changes or differences that are 

statistically significant are denoted by arrows. 

Change 

since 

09/10

London 10/11

Table 1 Views about services (all residents)

Tower Hamlets 

10/11

Change 

since

09/10

% of residents rating service        

as good to excellent                       

(base: all residents)

Tower 

Hamlets vs. 

London 

(p.point 

difference*)

Page 312



Results                             Page 5              

Views about services: Tower Hamlets vs. London 
While Tower Hamlets continues to fare less well than London on some service 

satisfaction measures, overall, the borough’s position relative to London shows some 

improvement this year (Table 1).  

Comparisons are possible across 21 service areas; this year borough ratings were 

similar to that of London for 13 services, better for two, and lower than London in the 

case of six services. Last year, borough ratings were lower for 10. The four services 

whose relative position has improved over the year are: recycling, refuse collection, 

parking services and secondary education. These services now have borough ratings 

that are on a par with the London average (ie not significantly different).  

The two services that continue to be rated more highly in Tower Hamlets than London 

are council housing and the Housing Benefit (HB) service. This reflects both the fact that 

Tower Hamlets has more council tenants and HB recipients than London (so there are 

fewer don’t know responses in Tower Hamlets) and importantly, that that those who do 

use the services, rate them more highly in Tower Hamlets than in London (see Table 2). 

User satisfaction ratings 
Resident satisfaction ratings are affected by how many people use the service, as those 

services used by fewer residents tend to attract a higher proportion of ambivalent 

responses, which effectively deflates the proportion rating the service as good or bad (as 

was shown in Figure 1). User satisfaction ratings provide a more informed assessment of 

service quality and better like for like comparison for such services.  

Figure 2 compares satisfaction ratings of all residents against user satisfaction (for those 

services that are not used by everyone). 

Figure 2 Service satisfaction ratings: all residents vs. service users 

30

33

27

47

33

60

34

29

68

30

58

34

48

55

61

63

63

71

72

72

74

76

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Parking Services

Council housing

Secondary education

Leisure and sports facilities

Housing Benefit service

Parks and open spaces

Primary education

Children's centres

Recycling facilities

Nursery education

Libraries/idea stores

% rating service good to excellent (users)

% rating service good to excellent (all residents)

Source: TNS-BRMB; Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey, 2010-11

Notes: Services used by less than 5 per cent of adults surveyed have been excluded from the analysis due to small sample size (ie social 

services for adults; social services for children & families; and adult education). 

Page 313



Results                             Page 6              

The services which attract the highest user satisfaction ratings are Idea stores/libraries 

and nursery education; around three quarters of users rate these services positively.  

Ratings are also high for recycling, children’s centres and primary education; 71-72 per 

cent of users rate these services as good through to excellent.   

In most cases, user satisfaction ratings are significantly higher than perceived 

satisfaction measures across all services. The difference in ratings is particularly marked 

for children’s centres and nursery education where user satisfaction ratings are over 40 

percentage points higher than perceived satisfaction measures.   

Table 2 compares user satisfaction ratings in Tower Hamlets over the year and provides 

London benchmarking data. Over the year, user satisfaction ratings have fallen for 

libraries/idea stores and for leisure and sports facilities, though ratings from leisure and 

sport users in the borough still remain higher than the London average. User satisfaction 

ratings in Tower Hamlets are also higher than London for Council Housing and the 

Housing Benefit service. User ratings for parks and open spaces are lower among 

borough residents compared with the London average.  

Some of the data shown in Table 2 need careful interpretation as for some services the 

sample size of users is relatively small which can make it difficult to draw firm 

conclusions on the basis of just two years worth of data. For this reason, annual data on 

user satisfaction for such services are best viewed alongside longer term data; data for 

the last thirteen years are shown in Appendix table B2 and these show that there is an 

upward trend in user satisfaction for most services over the longer term.  

% %

Libraries/idea stores 583 76 -5 80 0 - -4 -

Nursery education # 119 74 -5 - 68 -2 - 6 -

Recycling facilities 897 72 0 - 73 -1 - -1 -

Children's centres # 134 72 -10 - n/a n/a n/a

Primary education 218 71 -7 - 68 -4 - 2 -

Parks and open spaces 781 63 -3 - 71 -6 -8

Housing Benefit service 326 63 -3 - 52 -7 - 10

Leisure and sports facilities 461 61 -10 53 -4 - 8

Secondary education # 157 55 -9 - 54 -13 1 -

Council housing 379 48 1 38 -4 10

Parking Services 431 34 6 - 35 1 - -1 -

# Less than 15 per cent of the population surveyed use these services, so sample sizes are relatively 

small (n < 170) and the confidence intervals attached to these data are larger than for other services. 

Services used by less than 5 per cent of the sample population are excluded altogether (samples <100). 

* All data are rounded to nearest percentage point (post calculations). Changes or differences that are 

statistically significant are denoted by arrows. 

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010/11 & Survey of Londoners 2010/11

Table 2 User satisfaction with services

Tower Hamlets 

2010-11

London          

2010-11
Tower 

Hamlets vs. 

London     

(p. point 

difference *)

% rating service good to 

excellent                         

(base: service users)

Change 

since 

09/10

Change 

since 

09/10

Sample

size 

(users)

Page 314



Results                             Page 7              

Image of council
Views about the image of the council continue to show some improvement this year, and 

the Council is now beginning to move ahead of the London average on some of these 

measures (Table 3).  

On the 12 image statements, views are similar to last year on 10 and significantly better 

for two. The majority (81 per cent) of residents agree that council staff are friendly and 

polite – this remains – by far - the most positively rated aspect of the council’s image, 

and has seen a significant increase (+6) since last year. The other area where there has 

been improvement is the extent to which people feel the council is listening to their 

concerns – up five points on last year.   

Tower Hamlets now outperforms London on four aspects of its image:  

- Does a better job than a year ago (+8) 

- Listens to concerns of local residents (+7) 

- Staff are friendly and polite (+5) 

- Responds quickly when asked for help (+5) 

The borough scores are on a par with the London average on the other eight image 

statements. This represents an improvement on last year, when the borough was on a 

par with London on 11 statements, and better on only one.  

This improvement is part of a long term trend. Data from 1998/99 indicate that views 

about the council’s image have become more positive over the long term across most 

areas (Appendix table B3). One exception is the statement ‘the council doesn’t do 

enough for people like me’ - here progress has been less smooth. Agreement with this 

statement rose during 2002/3 and 2007/8, though it has fallen slowly since, bringing the 

borough in line with the London average.  

% %

Staff are friendly and polite 81 6 76 2 - 5

Making local area a better place to live 72 0 - 70 -3 - 3 -

Doing a good job 72 -1 - 73 0 - -1 -

Keeps residents informed 71 -1 - 71 0 - 0 -

Efficient and well-run 65 1 - 67 2 - -1 -

Listens to concerns 61 5 55 -3 - 7

Responds quickly when asked for help 58 2 - 53 -1 - 5

Involves residents in decision-making 53 0 - 50 1 - 3 -

Does a better job than a year ago 51 -1 - 43 -2 - 8

Good value for Council Tax I pay 51 0 - 52 2 - -1 -

Doesn’t do enough for people like me 45 -1 - 45 -1 - 1 -

Difficult to get through to on phone 40 2 - 40 2 - -1 -

Change 

since

09/10

Change 

since 

09/10

Notes: Figures in italics are negative statements - so a fall in the percentage is an improvement. 

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010/11 & Survey of Londoners 2010/11

% agreeing 'a great deal' or                   

'to some extent'

* All data are rounded to nearest percentage point (post calculations). Changes or differences that are 

statistically significant are denoted by arrows. 

Table 3  Image of council

Tower 

Hamlets vs. 

London 

(p.point 

difference*)

Tower Hamlets 

10/11 London 10/11

Page 315



Results                             Page 8              

Communicating with the Council 
East End Life remains a key source of 

information for residents: 58 per cent of 

residents say they read East End Life 

regularly (which is defined as at least three 

out of every four weeks on average). 

Telephone remains – by far - the most 

popular method of contacting the council 

(used by two thirds of residents) and is also 

the most popular preferred method for 

future contact. Only seven per cent 

currently use the internet to contact the 

council but 15 per cent say they would 

prefer to use this method in the future. 

Communication patterns are broadly similar 

to last year.

Overall satisfaction with council and place  
Just under two thirds (63 per cent) of residents said they were satisfied with the way 

Tower Hamlets Council runs things – down from 67 per cent last year, but still above the 

satisfaction ratings for the two years previous to that (both 59 per cent).  

While the majority (78 per cent) of residents remain satisfied with their local area as a 

place to live, this is significantly down from last year’s peak of 84 per cent and close to 

previous levels.  

Views on the quality of the built environment are similar to last year, with over two thirds 

(68 per cent) saying they were ‘very’ or ‘fairly’ satisfied with the built environment (which 

was described as ‘the human-made surroundings that we live in. It includes the buildings, 

spaces and features people encounter everyday’.

2

2

5

15

17

79

3

19

2

4

7

13

66

0 20 40 60 80 1

Don't know

Haven't contacted Council

Other

Letter

Internet/ email  

Visit to a council office

Telephone  

00

% who used this method
of contact over last year

% preferred method 

Source: Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey, 

Figure 3 Method of contacting the Council

76

78

84

73

78

68
70

63
61

69

63

67

5959

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Source: Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey, 2010-11

% satisfied with their local 

area as a place to live

% satisfied with the built 

environment

% satisfied with the way 

Tower Hamlets Council 

runs things

Figure 4 Overall satisfaction with council and place, Tower Hamlets, 2010-11

Page 316



Results                             Page 9              

Areas of personal concern
Crime remains – by far - the top personal concern for borough residents; 42 per cent of 

residents say crime is one of their top three concerns. Positively, concern over crime has 

fallen by five percentage points over the year, though levels of concern still remain above 

the London average (38 per cent). 

Over the year, borough residents have also become less concerned about the level of 

council tax (-6) and traffic congestion (-3), both significantly down since last year. In both 

cases, levels of concern over these issues are far lower in Tower Hamlets than across 

London. Concern over education is also lower in Tower Hamlets than London.  

Concern over economic issues has increased markedly this year. Concern over lack of 

jobs has increased from 26 to 30 per cent over the year – this highest level of concern 

recorded on the survey since it started (in 1998/9).  Concern over jobs is higher in Tower 

Hamlets than in London (30 vs. 23 per cent).  

Concern over rising prices and interest rates has increased dramatically this year, almost 

doubling (from 9 to 17 per cent). Again, this is the highest level of concern recorded 

about this issue since the survey started. There was a similar level of concern over 

prices and interest rates across London.  

Concern over litter/dirt in the streets has increased this year by four points but still 

remains below previous levels. 

Appendix table B4 provides long term perception data on personal concerns back to 
1998/99.  

% %

Crime 42 -5 38 -3 4

Lack of jobs 30 4 23 -3 7

Litter/dirt in streets 23 4 21 -4 2

Affordable housing 22 2 22 4 0

Lack of provision for young people 18 3 15 -3 3

Rising prices / interest rates 17 8 17 6 1

Level of Council Tax 16 -6 23 -3 -7

Quality of health service 14 1 14 0 1

Traffic congestion 13 -3 24 2 -11

Standard of education 13 1 16 1 -3

Pollution 11 -2 11 -2 0

Not enough done for the elderly 9 0 11 0 -1

Lack of recreational facilities 9 0 9 1 0

Poor public transport 8 -1 9 0 -2

Number of homeless people 8 -1 7 -1 2

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 2010/11 & Survey of Londoners 2010/11

* All data are rounded to nearest percentage point (post calculations). Changes or differences that are statistically 

significant are denoted by arrows. 

Table 4 Areas of personal concern

% including each issue among top 3 

concerns

Change 

since 

09/10

Change 

since 

09/10

Tower Hamlets 

2010-11

London            

2010-11 Tower Hamlets 

vs. London    

p. point 

difference*

Page 317



Results                              Page 10            

Anti-social behaviour  
Table 5 shows resident perceptions around eight different areas of ASB (anti-social 

behaviour). The problem of ‘teenagers hanging around the street’ continues to top the list 

of ASB problems; 54 per cent of residents felt this was a very or fairly big problem in their 

local area, closely followed by concerns over people using or dealing drugs (52 per cent).  

Consistent with falling concern over crime, perceptions around the prevalence of (ASB) 

in the borough continue to show improvement. Of the eight ASB areas considered, three 

areas have seen significant falls in the percentage of residents citing them as a big 

problem over the last year: 

" Parents not taking responsibility for the behaviour of their children (-6) 

" Vandalism, graffiti and other deliberate damage to property or vehicles (-5) 

" Abandoned or burnt out cars (-4)  

No areas have seen a worsening in perceptions over the year.  These improvements are 

consistent with trends over the last four years. Since 2007/08, there has been significant 

improvement across most areas. On six of the eight ASB areas, the percentage finding 

these issues a big problem has fallen by 10 percentage points or more. The biggest 

improvement has been in relation to vandalism and graffiti; the percentage reporting this 

as a big problem in their area has fallen from 54 per cent down to 37 per cent over the 

last four years.

Views about how well services are dealing with ASB 
Almost half (48 per cent) of those surveyed said they agreed that police and other 

services were successfully dealing with crime and ASB issues in their local area; 18 per 

cent disagreed; and the remaining third were ambivalent (ie they neither agreed nor 

disagreed, or they didn’t know). This is a similar picture to last year.  

One third (34 per cent) of residents felt informed about what was being done in their local 

area to tackle ASB problems and 30 per cent felt uninformed. The remainder were 

ambivalent. Again, this was a similar picture to last year.   

% who feel the issue is a fairly big / very big 

problem in their local area: 2
0
0

7
-0

8

2
0
0

8
-0

9

2
0
0

9
-1

0

2
0
1

0
-1

1

Teenagers hanging around on the streets 67 61 56 54 -2 - -13

People using or dealing drugs 62 54 51 52 0 - -10

Rubbish and litter lying around 56 51 43 45 2 - -11

Parents not taking responsibility for their children 57 54 50 44 -6 -13

People being drunk or rowdy in public places 47 40 40 40 0 - -7

Vandalism, graffiti and criminal damage 54 45 42 37 -5 -17

Noisy neighbours or loud parties 28 24 26 25 -1 - -3 -

Abandoned or burnt out cars 27 17 16 12 -4 -15

Table 5  ASB problems in local area - Tower Hamlets

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey

* All data rounded to nearest percentage point (post calculations). Changes or differences that are 

statistically significant are denoted by arrows. 

%  fairly big / very 

big problem

Change 

over year

Change 

since 07/08

Percentage point 

change* 

Page 318



Results                              Page 11            

Cohesion and community  
Perceptions around cohesion and community engagement remain largely unchanged 

from last year. 

Three quarters (76 per cent) of residents feel that ‘the local area is a place where people 

of different backgrounds get on well together’, and a similar percentage (75 per cent) felt 

that ‘people treat each other with respect and consideration in the local area’. Around 

half of those surveyed (53 per cent) felt they could influence decisions affecting their 

local area. While these figures show no change from last year, they still remain above 

previous years.   

Perceived benefits of 2012
Two thirds of residents felt that there would be long term benefits from the Olympic and 

Paralympic games for Londoners and those living in the surrounding areas. A smaller 

percentage (57 per cent) felt there would be benefits for Tower Hamlets residents. Views 

about the benefits of the games have become less positive, and both measures show 

significant falls since last year (-9 and -10 respectively).  

69

41

70 71
75

76

70
69 69

75 75

48
46

53 53

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Source: Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey, 2010-11

% agreeing the area is a place where 

people from different backgrounds get 

on well together

% satisfied that people treat each other 

with respect and consideration in the 

local area

% who agree that they can influence 

decisions affecting their local area 

Figure 5  Community cohesion indicators, Tower Hamlets, 2010-11

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Tower Hamlets residents 63 67 57 -10

People of London and the surrounding area 69 75 66 -9

Table 6  Extent to which Tower Hamlets residents think the Olympic and Paralymic 

Games will have long term benefits for residents locally and across London

Source: TNS-BRMB, Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey 

Change since   

2009-10

% agreeing - a great deal / to some extent

Benefits for: 

Page 319



Appendices                            Page 12    

Appendix A – Survey methodology 

The Tower Hamlets Annual Residents Survey is carried out by TNS-BRMB, an 

independent research company. TNS-BRMB also undertakes a London-wide survey, 

called the Survey of Londoners, which provides comparative data for benchmarking 

purposes. Both the Tower Hamlets survey and the London-wide survey are conducted in 

the same way each year to maintain comparability over time.  

The sample 

The 2010-11 Tower Hamlets Residents Survey comprised a face to face survey of 1,150 

residents who were chosen to be representative of the borough population. The fieldwork 

was carried out during 10th January – 6th February 2011.  The sampling methodology 

comprised ward based quota sampling which comprised interviews at 83 different 

sample points across the borough. Quotas were set on age, gender, ethnicity, working 
status of women and housing tenure to ensure the final sample was representative.

The Survey of Londoners 2010, was based on a similar methodology and comprised 

1,043 respondents across London. The fieldwork for the survey took place in October 

2010. 

Topics covered and questionnaire design  

The Tower Hamlets questionnaire comprises two elements: core questions and 

additional questions. The core questions are asked every year and are the same as 

those on the London-wide survey, so benchmarking data are available for all these 

topics.  The core questions relate to views about services, council image and personal 

concerns (ie the topics covered in Appendix tables B1-B4). The additional questions are 

specific to Tower Hamlets and have been added over time to inform performance 

monitoring requirements, support service planning and assess emerging issues.  In 

2010-11, these included questions on anti-social behaviour, community cohesion, 

communication with the council and views about the benefits of the Olympics. Although 

these questions can be changed every year, many have been retained annually to create 

longitudinal data on progress in the borough.  

Data reliability 

As the data are based on a survey sample they are, of course, estimates not precise 

measures. All survey data have a degree of sampling variability attached to them which 

needs to be borne in mind when interpreting findings, particularly those relating to 

change over time. The concept of ‘statistical significance’ is used here to highlight those 

differences that are likely to reflect real differences in the population (or changes over 

time), as opposed to those which may be simply reflecting sampling variability. All 

significance testing has been carried out at the 95% confidence interval.  

In this report, green and red arrows are used to denote statistically significant 

differences or changes.

Page 320



Appendices                            Page 13    

Appendix B. Historical data for core questions 

1
9
9
8
-9

9

1
9
9
9
-0

0

2
0
0
0
-0

1

2
0
0
1
-0

2

2
0
0
2
-0

3

2
0
0
3
-0

4

2
0
0
4
-0

5

2
0
0
5
-0

6

2
0
0
6
-0

7

2
0
0
7
-0

8

2
0
0
8
-0

9

2
0
0
9
-1

0

2
0
1
0
-1

1

Public transport 45 43 41 43 38 53 53 66 65 69 65 67 72

Refuse collection 64 67 59 63 52 62 78 73 67 66 66 66 68

Recycling facilities 33 32 32 32 31 40 58 69 66 67 66 65 68

Local health services 42 49 39 44 41 46 53 58 51 59 65 65 68

Street lighting 58 47 45 49 46 53 58 65 61 64 61 64 66

Street cleaning 51 46 35 39 32 44 60 59 54 51 59 62 60

Parks and open spaces 31 29 30 34 28 33 39 46 50 54 53 61 60

Libraries/idea stores 45 37 35 39 42 46 47 54 54 55 55 59 58

Collection of council tax 43 38 40 40 38 56 58 59 54 50 55 53 57

Policing 36 25 24 26 27 32 34 42 46 39 41 47 50

Leisure & sports facilities 30 19 23 25 24 29 36 39 43 46 45 47 47

Road/pavement repairs 31 25 21 22 17 29 38 47 40 41 37 38 39

Primary education 30 20 26 26 32 31 35 39 36 37 32 34 34

Housing Benefit service 27 23 26 23 21 26 28 35 32 29 29 33 33

Council housing 19 17 19 20 18 22 23 31 26 25 26 29 33

Adult education/evening classes 29 15 21 31 27 32 35 38 31 36 30 34 30

Parking Services n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 23 25 23 25 30

Nursery education 27 19 22 21 26 25 34 33 29 30 28 30 30

Children's centres - - - - - - - - - - - 30 29

Secondary education 25 17 17 17 21 22 28 35 29 29 25 28 27

Social services: children/families n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 23 21 21 28 24

Social services: adults n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 22 21 24 28 22

B2 User satisfaction with services - historical data

1
9
9

8
-9

9

1
9
9

9
-0

0

2
0
0

0
-0

1

2
0
0

1
-0

2

2
0
0

2
-0

3

2
0
0

3
-0

4

2
0
0

4
-0

5

2
0
0

5
-0

6

2
0
0

6
-0

7

2
0
0

7
-0

8

2
0
0

8
-0

9

2
0
0

9
-1

0

2
0
1

0
-1

1

Libraries/idea stores 54 52 53 56 57 64 56 71 71 72 76 81 76

Nursery education 58 54 61 58 64 66 61 64 73 76 75 79 74

Children's centres - - - - - - - - - - - 82 72

Recycling facilities 60 65 54 59 54 63 67 74 71 71 74 72 72

Primary education n/a n/a n/a 59 63 63 61 73 69 73 69 77 71

Parks and open spaces 39 40 38 46 35 43 45 53 60 63 65 66 63

Housing Benefit service 51 48 55 51 42 55 43 60 58 59 64 66 63

Leisure & sports facilities 48 36 38 39 36 44 43 50 60 61 65 71 61

Secondary education n/a n/a n/a 43 38 50 43 61 63 62 65 64 55

Council housing 26 23 26 28 29 32 33 39 36 39 41 47 48

Parking Services - - - - - - - - 27 29 28 28 34

B1 Perceived views of services (all residents) - historical data 

% rating service good to excellent (base: service users)

% rating service good to excellent (base: all residents)

Note: Data for services with relatively small sample sizes of users (<100) have been excluded. 

Page 321



Appendices                            Page 14    

:\strategy and performance\research and data\research briefing series\2011_02 annual residents survey 2010-11 results\briefingm
2011-02 annual residents survey.doc 

1
9

9
8

-9
9

1
9

9
9

-0
0

2
0

0
0

-0
1

2
0

0
1

-0
2

2
0

0
2

-0
3

2
0

0
3

-0
4

2
0

0
4

-0
5

2
0

0
5

-0
6

2
0

0
6

-0
7

2
0

0
7

-0
8

2
0

0
8

-0
9

2
0

0
9

-1
0

2
0

1
0

-1
1

Staff are friendly and polite 73 68 64 68 68 71 68 75 71 75 76 76 81

Making local area a better place to live 53 43 54 56 50 58 55 69 66 67 67 72 72

Doing a good job 52 54 51 52 50 57 64 67 64 68 69 72 72

Keeps residents informed 57 54 53 62 57 61 57 68 66 68 70 72 71

Efficient and well-run 41 45 40 42 43 48 55 60 56 61 59 64 65

Listens to concerns 45 41 39 43 41 45 48 59 54 55 57 57 61

Responds quickly when asked for help 40 37 32 35 35 41 45 53 49 49 52 56 58

Involves residents in decision-making n/a 42 35 44 41 42 47 49 45 51 49 53 53

Does a better job than a year ago 35 30 35 37 36 38 42 52 45 50 49 52 51

Good value for Council Tax I pay 32 30 33 31 31 30 40 37 37 41 43 50 51

Doesn’t do enough for people like me* 44 36 41 39 35 45 42 46 48 51 50 47 45

Difficult to get through to on phone* 50 49 46 48 50 48 41 48 43 43 40 37 40

1
9

9
8
-9

9

1
9

9
9
-0

0

2
0

0
0
-0

1

2
0

0
1
-0

2

2
0

0
2
-0

3

2
0

0
3
-0

4

2
0

0
4
-0

5

2
0

0
5
-0

6

2
0

0
6
-0

7

2
0

0
7
-0

8

2
0

0
8
-0

9

2
0

0
9
-1

0

2
0

1
0
-1

1

Crime 36 41 53 59 49 54 45 49 50 55 47 46 42

Lack of jobs 25 20 14 14 15 15 15 22 21 19 22 26 30

Litter 16 22 27 30 27 27 27 28 22 26 27 19 23

Affordable housing 23 31 17 20 24 20 22 17 24 23 17 21 22

Lack of provision for young people* - - - - - - - - 20 17 16 16 18

Rising prices / interest rates* 8 7 7 5 7 7 9 9 10 11 12 9 17

Level of council Tax 20 21 15 19 23 34 35 28 28 24 24 22 16

Quality of health service 35 31 23 25 22 20 16 14 19 14 15 13 14

Traffic congestion 18 20 18 17 18 16 15 15 15 18 15 16 13

Standard of education - - - 16 15 14 9 11 14 11 14 11 13

Pollution - - - 13 12 14 12 13 15 14 17 13 11

Not enough done for the elderly 22 19 16 17 14 13 13 12 13 11 11 9 9

Lack of recreational facilities - - - 11 14 11 16 10 10 10 9 9 9

Poor public transport 13 13 16 17 20 13 8 5 10 8 11 8 8

Number of homeless people 12 9 9 8 9 10 8 9 10 7 11 9 8

*The sample base for this question was asked of all respondents except for: 'rising prices/interest rates' and 'lack of provision for 

young people', which were asked of half the sample each. This sample split was introduced in 2006-07 to deal with the addition of

the latter, and the need to keep the total number of concerns issued to each respondent the same (for consistency).

B4 Areas of personal concern - historical data

B3  Image of council - historical data

*Negative statements - so a fall in the percentage is an improvement.

% including each issue among top 3 concerns

% agreeing a great deal / to some extent

Page 322


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	5.1 Report 'Called In' - East End Life Review
	5.1a1_EEL Erratum 080611
	5.1a_EEL Review Cabinet Report for 8th June 2011 FINAL
	5.1b_EEL Cab appendix

	7.1 Strategic Performance and Corporate Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring - Year End 2010/11
	7.1a_Appendix 1 - Budget and Target Adjustment
	7.1b_Appendix 2 - GF Outturn 2010-11
	7.1c_Appendix 3 -  HRA Outturn 2010-11
	7.1d_Appendix 4 - General Reserves
	7.1e_Appendix 5 - Transformation Savings
	7.1f_Appendix 6 - Capital Outturn 2010-11
	7.1g_Appendix 7 - LPP capital receipts carry-forward
	7.1h_APPENDIX 8 - Strategic Plan Monitoring - final
	7.1i_APPENDIX 9 - Indicators - Strategic - Cabinet v1

	7.2 Cabinet Four Month Forward Plan
	7.3 Annual Residents' Survey Results 2010/11
	7.3a_Annual Residents Survey Results 2010-11 OS 5 July 2011


